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Important  Notice  Regarding  Acceptance  of  Notices 
For  Publication  in  the  Weekly  “Gazette”

Attention is drawn to the Notification appearing in the 1st week of every month, regarding the latest dates and times of acceptance of Notices 
for publication in the weekly Gazettes, at the end of every weekly Gazette of Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes shall close at 12.00 noon of each Friday, two weeks before the date of publication. 
All Government Departments, corporations, Boards, etc. are hereby advised that Notifications fixing closing dates and times of applications in 
respect of Post-Vacancies, Examinations, Tender Notices and dates and times of Auction Sales, etc. should be prepared by giving adequate time 
both from the date of despatch of notices to Govt. Press and from the date of publication, thereby enabling those interested in the contents of such 
notices to actively and positively participate please note that inquiries and complaints made in respect of corrections pertaining to notification will 
not be entertained after three months from the date of publication.

All Notices to be published in the weekly Gazette should reach Government Press two weeks before the date of publication i.e. Notices 
for publication in the weekly Gazette of 26th March, 2021 should reach Government Press on or before 12.00 noon on 12th March, 2021.

Electronic Transactions Act, No. 19 of  2006 - Section 9
“Where any Act or enactment provides that any proclamation, rule, regulation, order, by-law, notification or other matter shall be 

published in the Gazette, then such requirement shall be deemed to have been satisfied if such rule, regulation, order, by-law, notification or other 
matter is published in an electronic form of the Gazette.”

	 Gangani Liyanage,
	 Government Printer.

Department of Govt. Printing, 
Colombo 08,
01st January, 2021.

  This Gazette can be downloaded from www.documents.gov.lk
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	 N. B. -	 Part IV (A) of the Gazette No. 2217 of 25.02.2021 was not published.

Note.— 	 (i) 	Ruhunu Awakening Organization (Incorporation) Bill was published as a supplement to the Part II of the Gazette of the 
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka of February 12, 2021.

	 (ii) 	Sri Balabhivurdhi Wardana Samithiya (Incorporation) Bill was published as a supplement to the Part II of the Gazette of the 
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka of February 12, 2021.
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Appointments &c., by the President
No. 209 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/PRO/MAJ GEN/20 (09).

Sri  Lanka  Army—regular  force

Promotions, Relinquishment of Appointments and 
New Appointments approved by His Excellency 

the President

Promotions

1. His Excellency the President has approved the promotion 
of the under mentioned Senior Officers to the rank of 
Temporary Major General with effect from 30th November, 
2020:

	 a.	 Brigadier M P Lamahewa, USP (O/61121);
	 b.	 Brigadier D M A P Dissanayake, RWP RSP USP ndu 

IG (O/61127);
	 c.	 Brigadier D G Hewage, RSP (O/61128);
	 d.	 Brigadier M P Karunaratne, IG (O/61107);
	 e.	 Brigadier P M L Chandrasiri WWV RWP RSP ndu 

(O/61152).

Relinquishment of Appointments and 
New Appointments

2. His Excellency the President has approved the 
relinquishment of appointments and new appointments of 
the under mentioned Senior Officers with effect from 30th 
November, 2020:

	 a.	 Brigadier (Temporary Major General) M P Lamahewa, 
USP (O/61121).- To relinquish the appointment of 
Commander, 233 Infantry Brigade and to be appointed 
as Commander, President’s Guard;

	 b.	 Brigadier (Temporary Major General) D M A P 
Dissanayake, RWP RSP USP ndu IG (O/61127). - 
To relinquish the appointment of Commander, 242 
Infantry Brigade and to be appointed as Military 
Secretary, Army Headquarters;

	 c.	 Brigadier (Temporary Major General) D G Hewage, 
RSP (O/61128).- To relinquish the appointment of 
Commander, 511 Infantry Brigade and to be appointed 
as Chief of Staff, Army Headquarters.

	 d.	 Brigadier (Temporary Major General) M P 
Karunaratne, IG (O/61107).- To relinquish the 

appointment of Commander, 532 Infantry Brigade 
and to be appointed as Director General General Staff, 
Office of the Chief of Defence Staff.

	 e.	 Brigadier (Temporary Major General) P M L 
Chandrasiri, WWV RWP RSP ndu (O/61152). - To 
relinquish the appointment of Commander, 611 
Infantry Brigade and to be appointed as General 
Officer Commanding, 51 Infantry Division.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Rtd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

28th December, 2020.

03-121/1

No. 210 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/PRO/MAJ GEN/21 (01).

Sri  Lanka  Army—regular  force

Promotions, Relinquishment of Appointments and 
New Appointments approved by His Excellency 

the President

Promotions
	
1. His Excellency the President has approved the promotion 
of the under mentioned Senior Officers to the rank of 
Temporary Major General with effect from the dates 
mentioned below: 

a. With effect from 28th January, 2021:

	 (1)	 Brigadier M I P Nanayakkarawasam (O/61103);
	 (2)	 Brigadier R A D P Ranawaka RWP RSP USP ndc 

(O/61159);
	 (3)	 Brigadier K A N N Koswatta RWP RSP ndu 

(O/61124);
	 (4)	 Brigadier A A D N S P Dunuwila RWP RSP USP 

(O/61163);
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(5) Brigadier (Temporary Major General) D M K 
D B Pussella RWP RSP (O/61120). To relinquish the 
appointment of Commander, 641 Infantry Brigade 
and to be appointed as Deputy Commander, Security Force 
(Jaffna);

(6) Brigadier (Temporary Major General) M W A A 
Wijesuriya, RWP RSP USP (O/60920).- To relinquish the 
appointment of Deputy General Officer Commanding, 58 
Infantry Division and to be appointed as Deputy Commander, 
Security Force (Wanni);

(7) Brigadier (Temporary Major General) G M C K B 
Ekanayake WWV  RWP RSP psc (O/61065). To relinquish 
the appointment of Commander, 643 Infantry Brigade and to 
be appointed as General Officer Commanding, 11 Infantry 
Division;

(8) Brigadier (Temporary Major General) A K G K 
U Gnanaratne ndc psc (O/61225).- To relinquish the 
appointment of Commander, 533 Infantry Brigade and to be 
appointed as Deputy Commander, Security Force (Central);

(9) Brigadier (Temporary Major General) D B S N 
Bothota RWP RSP USP psc (O/61227).- To relinquish the 
appointment of Commander, 211 Infantry Brigade and to 
be appointed as General Officer Commanding, 24 Infantry 
Division;

(10) Brigadier (Temporary Major General) K T A D S 
Kolambathantri RWP RSP USP psc IG (O/61245).- To 
relinquish the appointment of Assistant Military Secretary, 
Military Secretary's Branch, Army Headquarters and to be 
appointed as General Officer Commanding, 68 Infantry 
Division;

(11) Brigadier (Temporary Major General) P M R H S K 
Herath RWP RSP (O/61252).- To relinquish the appointment 
of Commander, 522 Infantry Brigade and to be appointed as 
General Officer Commanding, 52 Infantry Division;

 
(12) Brigadier  (Temporary/ Major General) A  C  Lamahewa 

WWV RWP RSP (O/61259).- To relinquish the appointment 
of Commander, 563 Infantry Brigade and to be appointed 
as Commandant, Defence Service Command and Staff 
College;

b. With effect from 04th February, 2021:

Brigadier (Temporary Major General) G R R P 
Jayawardena RWP RSP ndu (O/61270).- To relinquish the 

	 (5)	 Brigadier D M K D B Pussella RWP RSP (O/61120);
	 (6)	 Brigadier M W A A Wijesuriya RWP RSP USP 

(O/60920);
	 (7)	 Brigadier G M C K B Ekanayake WWV RWP RSP 

psc (O/61065);
	 (8)	 Brigadier A K G K U Gnanaratne ndc psc (O/61225);
	 (9)	 Brigadier D B S N Bothota RWP RSP USP psc 

(O/61227);
	(10)	 Brigadier W B S M Abeysekera RSP USP (O/61232). 

(Supernumerary);
	(11)	 Brigadier K T A D S Kolambathantri RWP RSP USP 

psc IG (O/61245);
	(12)	 Brigadier P M R H S K Herath RWP RSP (O/61252); 
	(13)	 Brigadier A C Lamahewa WWV RWP RSP (O/61259).

b. With effect from 04th February, 2021:

Brigadier G R R P Jayawardena RWP RSP ndu 
(O/61270).

RELINQUISHMENT OF APPOINTMENTS AND 
NEW APPOINTMENTS

2. His Excellency the President has approved the 
relinquishment of appointments and new appointments of 
the under mentioned Senior Officers with effect from the 
dates mentioned below:

a. With effect from 28th January, 2021:

(1) Brigadier (Temporary Major General) M I 
P Nanayakkarawasam, (O/61103).- To relinquish 
the appointment of Brigadier (Administration and 
Quartering), Security Force Headquarters (West) and to be 
appointed as Commander, Logistic Command;

(2) Brigadier (Temporary Major General) R A D P 
Ranawaka, RWP RSP USP ndc (O/61159).- To relinquish 
the appointment of Commander, 683 Infantry Brigade and 
to be appointed as Commander, Security Force (East);

(3) Brigadier (Temporary Major General) K A N N 
Koswatta, RWP RSP ndu (O/61124).- To relinquish the 
appointment of Brigadier (Coordinator), Defence Service 
Command & Staff Collage and to be appointed as Commander, 
Security Force (West);

(4) Brigadier (Temporary Major General) A A D N S P 
Dunuwila, RWP RSP USP (O/61163).- To relinquish the 
appointment of Commander, 121 Infantry Brigade and to 
be appointed as Chief Field Engineers, Army Headquarters;
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appointment of Commander, 515 Infantry Brigade and to 
be appointed as Deputy Chief of Staff, Army Headquarters.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP RSP USP 
	 ndc psc MPhil,
	 General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

02nd February, 2021.

03-121/2

No. 211 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/PRO/BRIG/21 (01).

Sri  Lanka  Army—regular  force

Promotions, Relinquishment of Appointments and 
New Appointments approved by His Excellency 

the President

Promotions
	
1. His Excellency the President has approved the promotion 
of the under mentioned Senior Officers to the rank of 
Temporary Brigadier with effect from 21st December, 2020:

	 a.	 Colonel J Ranahewa ato (O/61755);
	 b.	 Colonel C S Dissanayake ato (O/61777);
	 c.	 Colonel R G Herathge AATO (O/62695);
	 d.	 Colonel D P Welagedara RSP USP psc IG (O/62109);
	 e.	 Colonel K P A Perera RSP (O/62183);
	 f.	 Colonel R P A R P Rajapaksa RSP (O/62194);
	 g.	 Colonel D R N Hettiarachchi RWP RSP USP 

(O/62168);
	 h.	 Colonel M C S K Senaratne RWP RSP (O/62199);
	 i.	 Colonel V D S Perera (O/62188);
	 j.	 Colonel K K S Perakum RWP RSP (O/62185);
	 k.	 Colonel D B L Colonne USP (O/62175);
	 l.	 Colonel D C A Wickramasinghe USP USAC GSC 

(O/62208);
	 m.	 Colonel T C Peiris RSP USP (O/62191);
	 n.	 Colonel P K W W M J S B W Pallekumbura RWP 

RSP psc (O/62186);
	 o.	 Colonel U A A P Ubesiriwardana RSP USP (O/61810) 

(Supernumerary);
	 p.	 Colonel T M R B Ratnayake RWP RSP (O/61822);

	 q.	 Colonel A M S Premawansa RWP RSP USP (O/61827);
	 r.	 Colonel J L T K Hewa RWP RSP (O/61834) 

(Supernumerary);
	 s.	 Colonel G S Fonseka USP psc (O/62054);
	 t.	 Colonel K A U Kodituwakku RSP USP psc IG 

(O/62055);
	 u.	 Colonel W S N Hemarathna RWP RSP psc (O/62063);
	 v.	 Colonel S P G Gamage RWP RSP USP (O/62068);
	 w.	 Colonel K C Prathapasinghe (O/61623).
	

RELINQUISHMENT OF APPOINTMENTS AND 
NEW APPOINTMENTS

2. His Excellency the President has approved the 
relinquishment of appointments and new appointments of 
the under mentioned senior officers with effect from 21st 
December, 2020:

	 a. 	Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) J Ranahewa ato 
(O/61755).- To relinquish the appointment of Colonel 
(Electrical & Mechanical Engineers), Directorate 
of Electrical & Mechanical Engineers, Army 
Headquarters and to be appointed as Director Electrical 
and Mechanical Engineers, Army Headquarters;

	 b.	 Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) C S Dissanayake ato 
(O/61777).- To relinquish the appointment of Colonel 
(Administration & Quartering), Headquarters 54 
Infantry Division and to be appointed as Brigadier 
(Administration and Quartering), Security Force 
Headquarters (Jaffna); 

	 c.	 Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) R G Herathge AATO 
(O/62695).- To relinquish the appointment of Colonel 
(Administration & Quartering), Task Force 7 and to 
be appointed as Assistant Military Secretary, Military 
Secretary’s Branch, Army Headquarters;

	 d.	 Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) D P Welagedara RSP 
USP psc IG (O/62109).-To relinquish the appointment 
of Colonel (General Staff), Headquarters 57 Infantry 
Division and to be appointed as Director Training, 
Army Headquarters;

	 e.	 Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) K P A Perera RSP 
(O/62183).- To relinquish the appointment of Colonel 
(General Staff), Headquarters 53 Infantry Division 
and to be appointed as Director Military Intelligence, 
Army Headquarters;

	 f.	 Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) R P A R P Raiapaksa 
RSP (O/62194). To relinquish the appointment of 
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Deputy Centre Commandant, Regimental Centre 
Gajaba Regiment and to be appointed as Director 
Personal Administration, Army Headquarters;

	 g.	 Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) D R N Hettiarachchi 
RWP RSP USP (O/62168).- To relinquish the 
appointment of Colonel (General Staff), Defence 
Services Command and Staff College and to be 
appointed as Deputy General Officer Commanding, 
57 Infantry Division;

	 h.	 Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) M C S K Senaratne 
RWP RSP (O/62199).- To relinquish the appointment 
of Commanding Officer (Staff), Kothalawala Defence 
University and to be appointed as Deputy General 
Officer Commanding, 59 Infantry Division;

	 i.	 Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) V D S Perera 
(O/62188). To relinquish the appointment of Colonel 
(General Staff), Security Force Headquarters (Wanni) 
and to be appointed as Commander, 232 Infantry 
Brigade;

	 j.	 Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) K K S Perakum RWP 
RSP (0/62185).- To relinquish the appointment of 
Military Assistant, Army Headquarters and to be 
appointed as Commandant, Army Training School;

	 k.	 Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) D B L Colonne USP 
(O/62175). To relinquish the appointment of Deputy 
Centre Commandant, Regimental Centre Mechanical 
Infantry Regiment and to be appointed as Commander, 
622 Infantry Brigade;

	 l.	 Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) D C A 
Wickramasinghe USP USACGSC (O/62208).- To 
relinquish the appointment of Colonel (General Staff), 
Headquarters 51 Infantry Division and to be appointed 
as Commander, 642 Infantry Brigade;

	 m.	 Colonel (Temporary Brigadier).- T C Peiris RSP USP 
(O/62191). To relinquish the appointment of Colonel 
(Coordinator) Engineer, Security Force Headquarters 
(East) and to be appointed as Commander, 652 
Infantry Brigade;

	 n.	 Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) P K W W M J S B 
W Pallekumbura RWP RSP psc (O/62186).- To 
relinquish the appointment of Colonel (General Staff), 
Headquarters 64 Infantry Division and to be appointed 
as Deputy General Officer Commanding, 53 Infantry 
Division. 

	 o.	 Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) T M R 
B Ratnayake RWP RSP (O/61822).- To 
relinquish the appointment of Commanding 
Officer, Officer Cadet Training Wing, Sri 
Lanka Military Academy and to be appointed as 
Commander, 233 Infantry Brigade;

	 p.	 Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) A M S Premawansa 
RWP RSP USP (O/61827).- To relinquish the 
appointment of Deputy Centre Commandant, 
Regimental Centre Sri Lanka Armoured Corps and to 
be appointed as Commander, 242 Infantry Brigade;

	 q.	 Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) G S Fonseka USP psc 
(O/62054).- To relinquish the appointment of Colonel 
(Welfare), Directorate of Veteran Affairs, Army 
Headquarters and to be appointed as Commander, 
Signal Brigade;

	 r.	 Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) K A U Kodituwakku 
RSP USP psc IG (O/62055).- To relinquish the 
appointment of Deputy Director, Directorate of 
Rehabilitation, Army Headquarters and to be 
appointed as Commander, 511 Infantry Brigade;

	 s.	 Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) W S N Hemarathna 
RWP RSP psc (O/62063).- To relinquish the 
appointment of Commandant, Transit Camp 
(Kankasanthurai) and to be appointed as Commander, 
611 Infantry Brigade;

	 t.	 Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) S P G Gamage RWP 
RSP USP (O/62068).- To relinquish the appointment 
of Commandant, Transit Camp (Anuradhapura) and to 
be appointed as Commander, 532 Infantry Brigade;

	 u.	 Colonel (Temporary Brigadier) K C Prathapasinghe 
(O/61623). - To relinquish the appointment of Colonel 
(Information Technology), Headquarters Chief Signal 
Officer, Army Headquarters and to be appointed as 
Director Information Technology, Army Headquarters

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP RSP USP 
	 ndc psc MPhil,
	 General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

02nd February, 2021.

03-121/3
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No. 212 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/CONF/COL/20 (03).

SRI LANKA  ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Confirmation of rank approved by His Excellency 
the President

CONFIRMATION OF RANK

His Excellency the President has approved the 
confirmation of rank of the under mentioned Senior Officers 
in the rank of Colonel with effect from the dates indicated:

	 a.	 With effect from 03rd November, 2016:-
		  Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Kankanige 

Keerthi Sarath Perakum RWP RSP (O/62185);

	 b.	 With effect from 26th August, 2017:-
		  Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Sumithra 

Don Prabath Chaminda Arachchige (O/62362);

	 c.	 With effect from 27th August, 2017:-
		  Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel)

Warnakulasuriya Nicklas Pradeep Sastheri Kumar 
Perera RWP RSP (O/61715);

	 d.	 With effect from 17th November, 2017:-

	 (1)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Muthukuda 
Wijesuriya Arachchige Ruwan Chaminda Wijesuriya 
RSP USP (O/62536);

	 (2)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Pataka 
Ralalage Bandula Abayarathna Bandara RSP 
(O/62493);

	 (3)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Lukruwan 
Chaminda Karagoda Pathirana RSP IG (O/62517);

	 (4)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Kulasekara 
Mudiyanselage Nadeeka Kulasekara RWP RSP psc 
(O/62509);

	 (5)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Chaminda 
Sirisena Thibbotuge (O/62527);

	 (6)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) 
Warnakulasooriya Patabedige Waruna Crishantha 
Perera Lsc (O/62518);

	 (7)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Edirisinghe 
Arachchige Disna Kumara Edirisinghe (O/62497);

	 (8)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) 
Madakalapuge Lakshan Anuruddhika de Silva RSP 
USP psc (O/62524);

	 (9)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Channa 
Sanjeewa Padmashantha RSP psc (O/62516);

 
	(10)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Tuan 

Nazeer Majeed RSP USP Isc (O/62510);

	(11)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Chaminda 
Kalutharaarachchi (O/62519);

	(12)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Thusecooray 
Mohotti Gurunnanselage Suresh Thushara Cooray 
RWP RSP USP psc (O/62496);

	(13)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Piyal 
Nishantha Wijesiriwardena RSP USP (O/62535);

	(14)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Priyankara 
Vithanage (O/62530);

	(15)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Wanasekara 
Arachchilage Ushantha Sanjeewa Wanasekara 
RWP USP (O/62531);

	(16)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Don Anura 
Sirimannage (O/62492).

	 e.	 With effect from 25th November, 2017:-

		  Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Acharige 
Lasantha Mapalagama (O/63194);

	 e.	 With effect from 09th December, 2017:-

	 (1)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Abeysinghe 
Mudiyanselage Anurasiri Abeysinghe RWP RSP 
USP psc (O/62117);

	 (2)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Wasala 
Mudiyanselage Nandana Kamal Dilupa Bandara 
RWP RSP USP psc (O/62125);

	 (3)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Abeyanayake 
Mudalige Ajith Abeyawardana WWV RWP RSP 
(O/62128);

	 (4)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Maha 
Arachchi Muhandiramge Tusara Senaviratne USP 
(O/62129);



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2021'03'05

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 05.03.2021 339

	 (5)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Kondasinghe 
Gamlathge Chaminda Manjula Hemasiri Gamlath 
RSP USP (O/62130);

	 (6)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Abeykoon 
Mudiyanselage Chandrasiri Abeykoon RWP RSP 
USP (O/62132);

	 (7)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Ekanayake 
Mudiyanselage Galbadagedara Hemantha Jaliya 
Bandara Dehideniya RWP RSP (O/62133);

	 (8)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Loku 
Gamage Bandula Kariyawasam RWP RSP USP 
(O/62134);

	 (9)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Thirimanne 
Hettige Don Sujith Roshan Thirimanne USP 
(O/62136);

	(10)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Hewage 
Tissa Wishwajith Vidyananda RWP RSP USP 
(O/62141);

	(11)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Gunamuni 
Padma Priyanga Kulatilaka (O/62143);

	(12)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Ranaweera 
Arachchilage Nishantha Prasanna Ranaweera 
(O/62149);

	 f.	 With effect from 22nd January, 2018:-

		  Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Don 
Chandika Mahathanthila psc (O/63196);

	 g.	 With effect from 10th February, 2018:-

	 (1)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Chaminda 
Arjuna Bandara Tennakoon RSP psc IG (O/62702);

	 (2)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Boyagama 
Rallage Ananda Jayarathna USP ato (O/62708);

	 (3)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) 
Weerahannadige Shihan Vikum Fernando USP IG 
(O/62212);

	 (4)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Kaluwanage 
Wijayanatha Jayaweera USP psc (O/62214);

	 (5)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Mediwaka 
Walawwe Dushantha Nalin Mediwaka RSP USP 
(O/62215).

	 (6)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Nalaka 
Hirosha Malsinghe RWP RSP psc (O/62220);

	 (7)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Hiyarapitiya 
Vithanalage Anil Somaweera RWP RSP USP 
(O/62225);

	 (8)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Samantha 
Amaranath Hettige RSP psc (O/62232);

	 (9)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) 
Samaththuwa Wasan Ramith Prasanna RWP RSP 
USP (O/62242);

	(10)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Tuwan 
Ramesh Dilwan Sallay (O/62229);

	(11)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Wijekoon 
Mudiyanselage Aruna Bandula Wijekoon USP 
(O/62250);

	(12)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Godewatte 
Arachchige Thanuja Godewatte RWP RSP 
(O/62251);

	(13)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Jayasinghe 
Kankanamalage Ravindra Prabath Jayasinghe RWP 
RSP USP (O/62252);

	(14)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) 
Horathuduwage Ananda Mohan Premaratne psc Lsc 
(O/62227);

	(15)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) 
Leemagastenne Gedara Jagath Nandasiri 
Ariyathilaka, RWP RSP (O/62465);

	(16)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Munasinghe 
Arachchige Dasantha Suranjith Munasinghe RWP 
RSP psc IG (O/62466);

	(17)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Abeysingha 
Mudiyanselage Ravindra Abeysinghe (O/62474);

	(18)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) 
Kodituwakku Maddage Vindana Kodituwakku 
(O/62478);

	(19)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Gallage 
Don Suneth Medanka Alwis RWP RSP (O/62479);

	(20)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Tuwan 
Mohamed Fahum Kitchilan RWP RSP (O/62482);
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	(21)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) 
Bodhimaluwa Mudiyanselage Senaka Kamal 
Kumara Dharmawardena RWP RSP USP (O/62483);

	(22)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Don Namal 
Chandana Serasinghe RSP USP (O/62484);

	(23)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Millagale 
Wedaralalage Shirantha Millagala RWP RSP USP 
psc (O/62485);

	(24)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Gamage 
Chandima Varuna Fernando (O/62486);

	 h.	 With effect from 17th May, 2018:-

	 (1)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Hewa 
Manage Shamal Indika Senarath (O/62334);

	 (2)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Nanabi 
Arachchige Sasanka Chaminda Perera (O/62333);

	 i.	 With effect from 18th May, 2018:-

		  Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Galauda 
Bandara Wasala Mudiyanse Ralahamillage 
Kanchana Rajaguru Bandara RWP RSP (O/62494);

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP RSP USP 
	 ndc psc Major,
	 General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

30th November, 2020.

03-121/4

No. 213 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/CONF/COL/20 (OH).

SRI LANKA  ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Confirmation of rank approved by His Excellency 
the President

CONFIRMATION OF RANK

His Excellency the President has approved the 
confirmation of rank of the under mentioned Senior Officers 
in the rank of Colonel with effect from the dates indicated:

	 a.	 With effect from 22nd June, 2017:-

		  Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Saman 
Indrajith Priyankara Vidanagamage RSP IG 
(O/61829);

	 b.	 With effect from 10th February, 2018:-

		  Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Nishan 
Pradeepa Hettiarachchi RWP RSP (O/62148);

	 c.	 With effect from 24th July, 2018:-
	
	 (1)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) 

Kanagarathne Mudiyanselage Chandima Suren 
Kumarasinghe (O/62680);

	 (2)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Herath 
Mudiyanselage Gramer Enoj Herath RSP USP psc 
(O/62910);

	 (3)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) 
Weerasekara Bamunu Mudiyanselage Kanchana 
Gayantha Kumara Weerasekara WWV RWP RSP 
USP psc (O/62912);

	 (4)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Sumal 
Prasanga Wickramasekara RWP RSP USP psc 
(O/62913);

	 (5)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Pallegama 
Senevirathge Janaka Dilruk Samarasekara RSP 
USP psc (0/62576);

	 (6)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Mohomed 
Rizvi Razick RSP (O/62579);

	 (7)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Thantulage 
Toshinath Probodha Siriwardene RSP psc Isc 
(O/62582);

	 (8)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) 
Ambalangoda Gurunnanselage Sanjeewa Mahendra 
Perera RWP RSP USP (O/62585);

	 (9)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Thushara 
Chaminda Harasgama RSP (O/62587);

	(10)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Uditha 
Kelum Wickramaarachchi (O/62590);

	(11)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Solanga 
Arachchige Upul Anuruddha Solangaarachchi RSP 
psc (O/62588);



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2021'03'05

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 05.03.2021 341

	(12)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Atigala 
Patirage Chinthaka Rajitha Prematilaka RSP USP 
(O/62594);

	(13)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Jayasekera 
Mudiyanselage Anura Jayasekera RSP USP 
(O/62595);

	(14)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Andarawass 
Patabendi Sandhana De Vaas Gunawardhana 
(O/62336);

	(15)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Randunu 
Pathirennehelage Saminda Prasad RWP RSP USP 
(O/62596);

	(16)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Aruppala 
Appuhamillage Darshana Pradeep Kulathilaka USP 
psc (O/62598);

	(17)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Senaka 
Priyashantha Malawarage RSP USP IG (O/62281);

	(18)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Liyanage 
Krishandra Thushara Fernando RSP USP (O/62283);

	(19)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Liyanage 
Dulith Perera RWP RSP USP (O/62287);

	(20)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) 
Thotupitiyage Nandasiri Kumar Perera (O/62291);

	(21)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Piyal 
Renuka Samaraweera (O/62335);

	(22)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Korale 
Arachchilage Subash Kumara Siriwardena RWP 
RSP USP (O/62299);

	(23)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Aruna 
Hema Kumara Wijegunawardana RSP (O/62303);

	(24)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Millaniyage 
Suranga Chaminda Peiris RSP USP (O/62305);

	(25)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Kuda 
Vidanage Indika Lai Jayaweera USP (O/62310);

	(26)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Siddika 
Jude Kariyakarawana RWP RSP USP (O/62313);

	(27)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) 
Samaranayake Rajapaksha Mudiyanselage Lakshman 
Prakash Samaranayake USP (O/62315);

	(28)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Piyal 
Nishad Wickramasinghe (O/62317);

	(29)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Munasinghe 
Pathirannalage Kamal Laksitha Amarasinghe 
WWV RWP RSP (O/62323);

	(30)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Galhenage 
Saman Kumara Perera RSP (O/62324);

	(31)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) 
Nanayakkara Saliya Sanjeeva Dias RSP (O/62326);

	(32)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Indra 
Nissanka Kandanaarachchi RSP (O/62329);

	(33)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Mudiyanse 
Arachchilage Siran Weligama (O/64570);

	(34)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Yaddehi 
Chamil Dimuthu Priyankara Piyasena (O/62321);

	 d.	 With effect from 20th August, 2018:-

		  Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Mawanane 
Hewa Esha Chandani Wijayasena USP (O/63146);

	 e.	 With effect from 08th October, 2018:-

(1) Lieutenant Colonel	(Temporary Colonel)	Tennakoon 
Mudiyanselage Suneetha Jayaprakash Tennakoon, RSP 
(O/62675);

(2) Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel 
Hettiarachchige Indika Perera RWP RSP USP (O/62677);

f. With effect from 08th November, 2018:-

	 (1)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Deva 
Kaminda Rowan Nimalasena Silva RSP USP psc 
(O/62715);

	 (2)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel 
Gorokgodage Don Janak Chandana Prematilaka 
USP psc (O/62721);

	 (3)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Kankani 
Gamage Manjula Naleen Seneviratne USP 
(O/62718);

	 (4)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Ratnayaka 
Mudiyanselage Sujeewa Priyanjith Rathnayake USP 
psc IG (O/62712);
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	 (5)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Konara 
Mudiyanselage Gamini Bandaranayake USP psc 
(0/62717);

	 (6)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Arachchige 
Sanjeewa Priyankara Jayampathi USP (O/62724);

	 (7)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Depanama 
Kankanamalage Rohan Perera (O/62723);

	 (8)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Dilantha 
Sajith Jayawardana RSP (O/62728);

	 (9)	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Kalahe 
Lokuge Indika Karunanayaka RWP RSP (O/62741).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP RSP USP 
	 ndc psc MPhil,
	 General (Rtd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

25th January, 2021.

03-121/5

No. 214 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/PRO/COL/21 (01).

Sri  Lanka  Army—regular  force

Promotions, Relinquishment of Appointments and 
New Appointments approved by His Excellency 

the President

Promotions

1. His Excellency the President has approved the promotion 
of the under mentioned Senior Officers to the rank of 
Temporary Colonel with effect from 21st January, 2021:

	 a.	 Lieutenant Colonel B A P Liyanage RWP RSP USP 
SLSR (O/62221) - (Battle Casualty Category 3 
Supernumerary Basis (Floating Cadre));

	 b.	 Lieutenant Colonel K G K Ariyadasa RWP RSP GR 
(O/62318);

	 c.	 Lieutenant Colonel G A D K G Ganegoda RSP USP 
psc SLLI (O/62607);

	 d.	 Lieutenant Colonel Y S P Sumanasinghe RSP SLSC 
(O/62609);

	 e.	 Lieutenant Colonel Y K S Rangika psc CES 
(O/63383);

	 f.	 Lieutenant Colonel A K Peiris RSP MIR (O/62611);

	 g.	 Lieutenant Colonel K A D N R Kannangara RSP IG 
SLA (O/63073);

	 h.	 Lieutenant Colonel K H M U B Kolongahapitiya USP 
GW (O/63080);

	 i.	 Lieutenant Colonel A K C S de Silva RSP SLSR 
(O/63084);

	 j.	 Lieutenant Colonel M H R Fernando RWP RSP USP 
GW (O/63086);

	 k.	 Lieutenant Colonel K P D N Chandrasena RWP RSP 
GW (O/61422);

	 l.	 Lieutenant Colonel K Weerasinghe USP CES 
(O/62209);

	 m.	 Lieutenant Colonel B A D R A C Wijesekara RSP 
USACGSC SLAC (O/63240);

	 n.	 Lieutenant Colonel G G R Madhugoda USP 
SLSC (O/63243) - (Battle Casualty Category 3 
Supernumerary Basis (Floating Cadre));

	 o.	 Lieutenant Colonel H D N Hettige SLEME  
(O/63460);

	 p.	 Lieutenant Colonel H D T Jayakody USP 
SLLI (O/63246) - (Battle Casualty Category 3 
Supernumerary Basis (Floating Cadre));

	 q.	 Lieutenant Colonel R A S M Ranasinghe RSP USP 
psc Isc Ml (O/63241);

	 r.	 Lieutenant Colonel R T Lokuthotahewa USP psc 
SLEME (O/63457);

	 s.	 Lieutenant Colonel M L D S Molligoda USP psc VIR 
(O/63250);

	 t.	 Lieutenant Colonel K L Munasinghe USP CES 
(O/63462);
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	 u.	 Lieutenant Colonel R K A R P Ratnayake RSP USP 
psc GW (O/63257);

	 v.	 Lieutenant Colonel K V P Dhammika USP ptsc SLSC 
(O/63458);

	 w.	 Lieutenant Colonel B Y C Fernando RWP USP VIR 
(O/63252);

	 x.	 Lieutenant Colonel D I S Jayasinghe psc SLEME 
(O/63264);

	 y.	 Lieutenant Colonel M B L Perera RSP USP psc GW 
(O/63242);

	 z.	 Lieutenant Colonel N W P S M Perera CES (O/63461);

	 aa.	 Lieutenant Colonel S R Hewapathirana, Isc MI 
(O/63258);

	 ab.	 Lieutenant Colonel T L M Chandrasekara RWP psc 
SLLI (O/63247); 

	 ac.	 Lieutenant Colonel M J Ubeysekera RSP psc VIR 
(O/63259);

	 ad.	 Lieutenant Colonel R M C Rathnayake RWP RSP 
USP GW (O/63248);

	 ae.	 Lieutenant Colonel K P N S K Kariyawasam AATO 
Lsc SLAOC (O/63266);

	 af.	 Lieutenant Colonel M K S S De Silva SLAGSC 
(O/63253);

	 ag.	 Lieutenant Colonel M N J Perera CES (O/63463);

	 ah.	 Lieutenant Colonel W G S de S Rajakaruna RSP 
USP GR (O/63261) - (Battle Casualty Category 3 
Supernumerary Basis (Floating Cadre));

	 ai.	 Lieutenant Colonel E M L P Ekanayake USP SLSR 
(O/63267).

RELINQUISHMENT OF APPOINTMENTS AND 
NEW APPOINTMENTS

2. His Excellency the President has approved the 
relinquishment of appointments and new appointments of 
the under mentioned Senior Officers with effect from 26th 
January, 2021:-

a. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) B A P 
Liyanage RWP RSP USP SLSR (O/62221). - To relinquish 
the appointment of General Staff Officer Grade 1 
(Coordinator), Security Force Headquarters (West);

b. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) K G K 
Ariyadasa RWP RSP GR (O/62318).- To relinquish the 
appointment of Staff Officer Grade 1 (Logistic), Regimental 
Centre Gajaba Regiment and to be appointed as Colonel 
(General Staff), Security Force Headquarters (Kilinochchi);

c. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) G A D K G 
Ganegoda RSP USP psc SLLI (O/62607).- To relinquish the 
appointment of Staff Officer Grade 1 (Administration and 
Quartering), Jungle Warfare Training School (Nelugala) and 
to be appointed as Colonel (General Staff), Headquarters 22 
Infantry Division;

d. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Y S P 
Sumanasinghe RSP SLSC (O/62609).- To relinquish the 
appointment of Staff Officer Grade 1, Directorate of Army 
Quartering, Army Headquarters and to be appointed as 
Colonel (Military Secretary), Military Secretary’s Branch, 
Army Headquarters;

e. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) Y K S 
Rangika psc CES (O/63383).- To relinquish the appointment 
of Commanding Officer, 2 Corps of Engineer Services and 
to be appointed as Colonel (Engineer Services), Directorate 
of Engineer Services, Army Headquarters;

f. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) A K Peiris 
RSP MIR (O/62611). - To relinquish the appointment of 
Directing Staff (Syndicate), Defence Services Command 
and Staff College and to be appointed as Colonel (General 
Staff), Headquarters 58 Infantry Division; 

g. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) K A D N R 
Kannangara RSP 1G SLA (O/63073).- To relinquish the 
appointment of Commanding Officer, 4 Sri Lanka Artillery 
and to be appointed as Colonel (General Staff), Headquarters 
59 Infantry Division;

h. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) K H M U B 
Kolongahapitiya USP GW (O/63080).- To relinquish the 
appointment of General Staff Officer Grade 1 (Operations), 
Headquarters 51 Infantry Division and to be appointed as 
Colonel (General Staff), Headquarters 61 Infantry Division;

i. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) A K C S de 
Silva RSP SLSR (O/63084).- To relinquish the appointment 
of Commanding Officer, 14 Sri Lanka Sinha Regiment and 
to be appointed as Colonel (General Staff), Headquarters 23 
Infantry Division;
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j. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) M H R 
Fernando RWP RSP USP GW (O/63086).- To relinquish  
the appointment of General Staff Officer Grade 1 
(Operations), Headquarters 56 infantry Division and to be 
appointed as Chief Instructor, Defence Services Command 
and Staff College;

k. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) K P D N 
Chandrasena RWP RSP GW (O/61422).- To relinquish the 
appointment of General Staff Officer Grade 1 (Operations), 
Headquarters 59 infantry Division and to be appointed 
as Colonel (Coordinator), Headquarters Sri Lanka Army 
Volunteer Force (Special Cadre Approval on Supernumerary 
Basis);

l. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel)  
K Weerasinghe USP CES (O/62209).- To relinquish the 
appointment of Commanding Officer, 1 Engineer Service 
Regiment and to be appointed as Colonel (Logistic), 
Regimental Centre Corps of Engineer Services;

l. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) B A D 
R A C Wijesekara RSP USACGSC SLAC (O/63240). 
To relinquish the appointment of Staff Officer Grade 1, 
Military Secretary’s Branch, Army Headquarters and to 
be appointed as Chief Instructor (Military Training Wing), 
Sri Lanka Military Academy (Special Cadre Approval on 
Supernumerary Basis);

m.	 Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) H D N 
Hettige SLEME (O/63460).- To relinquish the appointment 
of Commanding Officer, 4 Sri Lanka Electrical and 
Machanical Engineers and to be appointed as Colonel 
(Administration of Quartering), Headquarters 23 Infantry 
Division;

n. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) R A S 
M Ranasinghe RSP USP psc Isc MI (O/63241).- To 
relinquish the appointment of General Staff Officer Grade 
1 (Operations), Security Force Headquarters (Kilinochchi) 
and to be appointed as Senior Instructor (Junior Staff Course 
and Junior Command Course), Officer Career Development 
Centre (Special Cadre Approval on Supernumerary Basis).

o. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) R T 
Lokuthotahewa USP psc SLEME (O/63457).- To relinquish 
the appointment of Staff Officer Grade 1, Directorate of 
Electrical and Mechanical Engineers, Army Headquarters 
and to be appointed as Colonel (Administration and 
Quartering), Headquarters 52 Infantry Division;

p. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) M L D S 
Molligoda USP psc VIR (O/63250).- To relinquish  the 
appointment of Commanding Officer, 8 Vijayabahu Infantry 
Regiment and to be appointed as Directing Staff (Senior 
Command Course), Officer Career Development Centre 
(Special Cadre Approval on Supernumerary Basis);

q. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) K L 
Munasinghe USP CES (O/63462).- To relinquish the 
appointment of Staff Officer Grade 1 (Logistic), Regimental 
Centre Corps of Engineers Services and to be appointed as 
Colonel (Administration and Quartering), Headquarters 58 
Infantry Division;

r. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) R K A R P 
Ratnayake, RSP USP psc Gw (O/63257).- To relinquish 
the apointment of Commanding Officer, 12 Gemunu Watch 
and to be appointed as Directing Staff (Higher Defence 
Managment Course), Army School of Logistics (Special 
Cadre Approval on Supernumerary Basis);

s. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) K V P 
Dhammika USP ptsc SLSC (O/63458).- To relinquish 
the appointment of Commanding Officer, 3 Sri Lanka 
Signal Corps and to be appointed as Chief Coordinator 
(Project), Telecom Wing, Headquarters Centre for Research 
Development (Sri Lanka Signal Corps);

t. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) B Y C 
Fernando RWP USP VIR (O/63252).- To relinquish the 
appointment of Commanding Officer, 9 Vijayabahu Infantry 
Regiment and to be appointed as Directing Staff (Senior 
Command Course), Officer Career Development Centre 
(Special Cadre approval on Supernumerary Basis);

u. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) D I S 
Jayasinghe psc SLEME (O/63264).- To relinquish the 
appointment of Commanding Officer, 5 Sri Lanka Electrical 
and Mechanical Engineers and to be appointed as Deputy 
Centre Commandant, Regimental Centre Sri Lanka 
Electrical and Mechanical Engineers;

v. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) M B L 
Perera RSP USP psc GW (O/63242).- To relinquish the 
appointment of Commanding Officer, 7 Gemunu Watch 
and to be appointed as Directing Staff (Senior Command 
Course), Officer Career Development Centre (Special Cadre 
Approval on Supernumerary Basis);

w. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) N W P S 
M Perera CES (O/63461).- To relinquish the appointment 
of Staff Officer Grade 1 (Administration and Quartering), 
Headquarters 57 Infantry Division and to be appointed as 
Colonel (Logistics), Office of the Chief of Defence Staff;

x. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) S R 
Hewapathirana Isc (O/63258).- To relinquish the 
appointment of Sector Commander, Headquarters 14 
Infantry Division (Operations Command Colombo) and 
to be appointed as Head of Training Team, Army Training 
School (Special Cadre Approval on Supernumerary Basis);
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y. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) T L M 
Chandrasekara RWP psc SLLI (O/63247).- To relinquish 
the appointment of Commanding Officer, 4 Sri Lanka 
Light Infantry and to be appointed as Head of Training 
Team, Infantry Training Centre (Special Cadre Approval on 
Supernumerary Basis);

z. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) M J 
Ubeysekera RSP psc VIR (O/63259).- To relinquish the 
appointment of Commanding Officer, 14 Vijayabahu 
Infantry Regiment and to be appointed as Head of Training 
Team, Combat Training School (Special Cadre Approval on 
Supernumerary Basis);

aa. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) RMC 
Rathnayake RWP RSP USP GW (O/63248).- To relinquish 
the appointment of Staff Officer Grade 1 (Administration), 
Regimental Centre Gemunu Watch and to be appointed 
as Head of Training Team, International Peace Support 
Operational Training Sri Lanka (Special Cadre Approval on 
Supernumerary Basis);

ab. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) K P N S K 
Kariyawasam AATO Lsc SLAOC (O/63266).- To relinquish 
the appointment of Commanding Officer, 3 Sri Lanka 
Army Ordnance Corps and to be appointed as Colonel 
(Administration & Quartering), Headquarters 62 Infantry 
Division;

ac. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) M K S S De 
Silva SLAGSC (O/63253).- To relinquish the appointment 
of Staff Officer Grade 1 (Pay), Directorate of Pay & Record, 
Army Headquarters and to be appointed as Deputy Centre 
Commandant, Regimental Centre Sri Lanka Army General 
Service Corps;

ad. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) M N J 
Perera CES (O/63463).- To relinquish the appointment 
of Staff Officer Grade 1 (Administration and Quartering), 
Headquarters 61 Infantry Division and to be appointed as 
Deputy Centre Commandant, Regimental Centre Corps of 
Engineer Services; 

ae. Lieutenant Colonel (Temporary Colonel) E M L 
P Ekanayake USP SLSR (O/63267).- To relinquish the 
appointment of Commanding Officer, 20 Sri Lanka Sinha 
Regiment and to be appointed as Senior Instructor Higher 

Defence Management Course, Army School of Logistics 
(Special Cadre Approval on Supernumerary Basis).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP RSP USP 
	 ndc psc MPhil,
	 General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

02nd February, 2021.

03-121/6

No. 215 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/CONF/LTCOL/20 (06).

Sri  Lanka  Army—regular  force

Confirmation of rank approved by His Excellency 
the President

His Excellency the President has approved the 
confirmation of undermentioned officers in the rank of 
Lieutenant Colonel with effect from the dates shown against 
their names:

	 1.	 Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) Wanigamuni 
Hiran Kumar Wimalaratne USP SLAMC (O/64714) 
- 26.03.2015;

	 2.	 Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) Abesinghe 
Mudiyanselage Aruna Deshapriya SLCMP (O/62905) 
21.05.2020.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP RSP USP 
	 ndc psc MPhil,
	 General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

25th January, 2021.

03-121/7
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No. 216 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/PRO/LT COL/20 (11).

Sri  Lanka  Army—regular  force

Promotions and New Appointments approved by 
His Excellency the President

Promotions

1. His Excellency the President has approved the 
promotion of undermentioned senior officers to the rank of 
Lieutenant Colonel with effect from the dates shown against 
their names:

	 a.	 Major Thalpegama Kankanamge Prince Milroy Dias 
RWP RSP USP psc SLLI (O/64882) - 05.10.2015;

	 b.	 Major Don Bodhi Sumeda Senavirathne RWP VIR 
(O/64890) - 05.10.2015;

	 c.	 Major Gallolu Kankanamlage Virajpriya 
Dharmasena USP psc Lsc SLASC (O/64880) - 
05.10.2015

	 d.	 Major Gamlath Ralalage Ajantha Indika Mihira 
Kumara Gamlath RSP USP psc SLA (O/64886) - 
05.10.2015

	 e.	 Major Ruwan Sampath Punchihewa USP CES 
(0/65191) - 05.10.2015;

	 f.	 Major Mohottalalage Janaka Dananjaya Bandara 
Udapamunuwa RWP RSP USP VIR (0/64875)  - 
05.10.2015;

	 g.	 Major Kekulawala Vidanalage Thushara Sampath 
Kakulawala Lsc CR (O/64892) - 05.10.2015;

	 h.	 Major Etige Rohan Antani Silva MIR (O/64897) - 
05.10.2015;

	 i.	 Major Wiyanage Prasanna Jayalath Subasinghe RSP 
lsc Ml (O/64895) - 05.10.2015;

	 j.	 Major Indrajith Thusitha Kumara Hapuarachchi 
RWP RSP SLLI (O/64889) - 05.10.2015;

	 k.	 Major Haburugala Vithanage Kapila Wasantha 
Abeywickrama USP IG SLA (O/64898) - 05.10.2015

	 l.	 Major Kannangara Koralalage Sanath Ranjan 
Kannangara RWP RSP USP SLA (O/64143) - 
13.10.2015;

	 m.	 Major Rathnayake Mudiyanselage Senaviratne RWP 
RSP USP GR (O65346) - 16.10.2015;

	 n.	 Major Wijetunga Mudiyanselage Gnanasiri 
Wijetunga USP CR (0/65347) - 16.10.2015;

	 o.	 Major Udadiwale Gedara Assadduma Keeralage 
Sisil Chandana Somapala USP lsc MI (O/65348) - 
16.10.2015;

	 p.	 Major Jayakodyge Mithripala Jayakody RWP RSP 
USP GR (O/65350) - 16.10.2015;

	 q.	 Major Herath Mudiyanselage Lal Premachandra 
RSP USP GW (O/65351) - 16.10.2015;

	 r.	 Major Himihami Mudiyanselage Jayantha Vipula 
Bandara Herath RSP IG SLA (O/65352) - 16.10.2015;

	 s.	 Major Amarajeewa Wijesundara Nallaperuma RWP 
RSP USP SLSR (O/65354) - 16.10.2015;

	 t.	 Major Jayapathma Herath Mudiyanselage Mahinda 
Herath RSP USP VIR (O/65353) - 16.10.2015;

	 u.	 Major Dissanayake Mudiyanselage Lalith Thushara 
Dissanayake USP psc IG SLA (O/65356) - 16.10.2015;

	 v.	 Major Weuda Kumarasinghalage Sugath Rohitha 
Wijesiri RSP USP SLAC (O/65358) - 16.10.2015;

	 w.	 Major Herath Bandara Mudiyanselage Buddika 
Nishantha Bandara RWP RSP USP SLA (O/65360) - 
16.10.2015;

	 x.	 Major  Dyyannegama Gedara Thilakaratne RSP 
USP SLE (O/65361) - 16.10.2015;

	 y.	 Major Kandambi Arachchige Ariyawansha psc SLSC 
(O/65364) - 16.10.2015;

	 z.	 Major Gama Rallage Upul Priyantha Abeyratne 
GW (O/65366) - 16.10.2015;

	 aa.	 Major Ranjith Thilakarathna Ganegoda SLE 
(O/65369) - 16.10.2015;

	 ab.	 Major Kaluthanthri Patabedige Rukman Panduka de 
Silva SLAGSC (O/65370) - 16.10.2015;
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	 ac.	 Major Herath Mudiyanselage Priyankara Bandara 
USP MIR (O/65371) - 16.10.2015;

	 ad.	 Major Ekanayake Mudiyanselage Thotupola Pitiye 
Gedara Wijitha Kumara Ekanayake USP ato SLAOC 
(O/65372) - 16.10.2015;

	 ae.	 Major Kuripotha Deshapriyage Nimal Karunaratne 
USP SLCMP (O/65373) - 16.10.2015;

	 af.	 Major Rathnayake Kankanamge Don Victor 
Rathnayake RWP RSP SLSR (O/65377) - 16.10.2015;

	 ag.	 Major Warnasooriya Mudiyanselage Subasinghe 
Warnasooriya USP MIR (O/65379) - 16.10.2015;

	 ah.	 Major Sooriya Malala Kumara Senanayake 
Mudiyanselage Ratnayake USP SLA (O/65381) - 
16.10.2015;

	 ai.	 Major Galappaththi Arachchige Rathnapriya Lal 
Ediriweera RSP USP GR (O/65384) - 16.10.2015;

	 aj.	 Major Pitiye Gedara Christy Sisil Wijerathna ato 
Lsc SLAOC (O/63989) - 20.10.2015;

	 ak.	 Major Migahage Alais Irasinghe Arachchige Don 
Rajeev Samantha Irasinghe RWP SLSR (O/63374)  - 
01.12.2015;

	 al.	 Major Yaparathna Mudiyanselage Don Jeewantha 
Geeth Munagamage VIR (O/63430) - 01.12.2015;

	am.	 Major Herath Mudiyanselage Ravindra Kumara 
RSP VIR (O/64265) - 01.12.2015;

	 an.	 Major Hidella Arachchige Don Wijitha Kumara 
Alexander WWV RWP SLLI (O/63754) - 01.12.2015;

	 ao.	 Major Weerappulige Prasanna Hemajith RSP GR 
(O/64039) - 01.12.2015;

	 ap.	 Major Dilan Dilruk Wickramasinghe GR (O/64307) 
- 01.12.2015;

	 aq.	 Major Malagalage Lalith Kumara Jayawardhana 
Peiris SLA (O/64697) - 01.12.2015;

	 ar.	 Major Ukwaththa Jayalathge Suhada Sarathchandra 
RSP GW (O/64868) - 01.12.2015.

NEW APPOINTMENTS

2. His Excellency the President has approved the new 
appointments of undermentioned senior officers with effect 
from 02nd July, 2020:

	 a.	 Lieutenant Colonel Thalpegama Kankanamge Prince 
Milroy Dias RWP RSP USP psc SLLI (Q/64882).- 
To be appointed as Staff Officer 1 (Officer Section), 
Headquarters Sri Lanka Army Volunteer Force;

	 b.	 Lieutenant Colonel Don Bodhi Sumeda Senavirathne 
RWP VIR (Q/64890).-  To be appointed as Staff 
Officer 1 (Logistic), Regimental Centre Sri Lanka 
Signal Corps;

	 c.	 Lieutenant Colonel Gallolu Kankanamlage 
Virajpriya Dharmasena USP psc Lsc SLASC 
(Q/64880).- To be appointed as Staff Officer 1 
(Administrations & Quartering), Headquarters 22 
Division;

	 d.	 Lieutenant Colonel Gamlath Ralalage Ajantha 
Indika Mihira Kumara Gamlath RSP USP psc SLA 
(Q/64886).- To be appointed as Commanding Officer, 
11 Sri Lanka Artillery (Reinforcement).

	 e.	 Lieutenant Colonel Ruwan Sampath Punchihewa USP 
CES (O/65191).- To be appointed as Staff Officer 1 
(Administrations & Quartering), Headquarters 55 
Division;

	 f.	 Lieutenant Colonel Mohottalalage Janaka Dananjaya 
Bandara Udapamunuwa RWP RSP USP VIR 
(O/64875).- To be appointed as General Staff Officer 
1 (Operations), Security Force Headquarters (East);

	 g.	 Lieutenant Colonel Kekulawala Vidanalage 
Thushara Sampath Kakulawala Lsc CR (O/64892). 
To be appointed as Commanding Officer, Headquarter 
Battalion Commando Regiment;

	 h.	 Lieutenant Colonel Etige Rohan Antani Silva 
MIR (O/64897).- To be appointed as Staff Officer 1 
(Logistic), Regimental Centre Mechanized Infantry 
Regiment;

	 i.	 Lieutenant Colonel Wiyanage Prasanna Jayalath 
Subasinghe RSP lsc Ml (O/64895).- To be appointed 
as Commandant, Advance Infantry Platoon Training 
School (Kilinochchi);

	 j.	 Lieutenant Colonel Indrajith Thusitha Kumara 
Hapuarachchi RWP RSP SLLI (O/64889).- To be 
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appointed as Commanding Officer, 6 Sri Lanka Signal 
Corps (Reinforcement);

	 k.	 Lieutenant Colonel Haburugala Vithanage Kapila 
Wasantha Abeywickrama USP IG SLA (O/64898). 
To be appointed as Commanding Officer, 16 Sri Lanka 
Artillery (Reinforcement);

	 l.	 Lieutenant Colonel Kannangara Koralalage Sanath 
Ranjan Kannangara RWP RSP USP SLA (O/64143).- 
To be appointed as Staff Officer 1 (Administration), 
Regimental Centre Sri Lanka Signal Corps;

	 m.	 Lieutenant Colonel Rathnayake Mudiyanselage 
Senaviratne RWP RSP USP GR (O/65346).- To 
be appointed as Commanding Officer, Buddy Trio 
Training School (Thanthirimale);

	 n.	 Lieutenant Colonel Wijetunga Mudiyanselage 
Gnanasiri Wijetunga USP CR (O/65347).- To 
be appointed as Adjutant, Kotalawala Defence 
University;

	 o.	 Lieutenant Colonel Udadiwale Gedara Assadduma 
Keeralage Sisil Chandana Somapala USP lsc 
Ml (0/65348).- To be appointed as Staff Officer 
1 (Administration), Security Force Headquarters 
(Wanni);

	 p.	 Lieutenant Colonel Jayakodyge Mithripala Jayakody 
RWP RSP USP GR (O/65350).- To be appointed as 
Commanding Officer, 10 Sri Lanka Signal Corps;

	 q.	 Lieutenant Colonel Herath Mudiyanselage Lal 
Premachandra RSP USP GW (O/65351).- To be 
appointed as General Staff Officer 1, Regimental 
Centre Gemunu Watch;

	 r.	 Lieutenant Colonel Himihami Mudiyanselage 
Jayantha Vipula Bandara Herath RSP IG SLA 
(O/65352). To be appointed as General Staff Officer 1 
(Electronic Wing), Chief Signal Officer’s Office;

	 s.	 Lieutenant Colonel Amarajeewa Wijesundara 
Nallaperuma rwp rsp USP SLSR (O/65354).- To 
be appointed as Staff Officer 1 (Administration), 
Security Force Headquarters (West)

	 t.	 Lieutenant Colonel Jayapathma Herath 
Mudiyanselage Mahinda Herath RSP USP VIR 
(O/65353).- To be appointed as Staff Officer 1 
(Administration), Regimental Centre Sri Lanka Army 
Women’s Corps;

	 u.	 Lieutenant Colonel Dissanayake Mudiyaselage 
Lalith Thushara Dissanayake USP psc IG SLA 
(0/65356). To be appointed as Senior Instructor 
(Training), Defence Services Command and Staff 
College;

	 v.	 Lieutenant Colonel Weuda Kumarasinghalage 
Sugath Rohitha Wijesiri RSP USP SLAC (O/65358).- 
To be appointed as Commanding Officer, 4 Sri Lanka 
Armoured Corps;

	 w.	 Lieutenant Colonel Herath Bandara Mudiyanselage 
Buddika Nishantha Bandara RWP RSP USP 
SLA (O/65360).- To be appointed as Staff Officer 
1 (Logistic), Regimental Centre Sri Lanka Army 
Women’s Corps;

	 x.	 Lieutenant Colonel Dyyannegama Gedara 
Thilakaratne RSP USP SLE (O/65361).- To be 
appointed as Commanding Officer, 9 Sri Lanka 
Engineers;

	 y.	 Lieutenant Colonel Kandambi Arachchige 
Ariyawansha psc SLSC (O/65364).- To be appointed 
as Commanding Officer, 1 Sri Lanka Signal Corps;

	 z.	 Lieutenant Colonel Gama Rallage Upul Priyantha 
Abeyratne GW (O/65366).- To be appointed as Staff 
Officer 1, Holiday Resort (Wadduwa);

	 aa.	 Lieutenant Colonel Ranjith Thilakarathna Ganegoda 
SLE (0/65369).- To be appointed as Commanding 
Officer, 12 Sri Lanka Engineers (Reinforcement);

	 ab.	 Lieutenant Colonel Kaluthanthri Patabedige 
Rukman Panduka de Silva SLAGSC (O/65370).- To 
be appointed as Staff Officer 1 (Logistic), Forward 
Maintenance Area (Mullaittivu).

	 ac.	 Lieutenant Colonel Herath Mudiyanselage 
Priyankara Bandara USP MIR (O/65371).- To 
be appointed as Staff Officer 1, Holiday Resort 
(Kukuleganga);

	 ad.	 Lieutenant Colonel Ekanayake Mudiyanselage 
Thotupola Pitiye Gedara Wijitha Kumara Ekanayake 
USP ato SLAOC (O/65372).- To be appointed as Staff 
Officer 1 (Administrations & Quartering), Forward 
Maintenance Area (Kilinochchi);

	 ae.	 Lieutenant Colonel Kuripotha Deshapriyage Nimal 
Karunaratne USP SLCMP (O/65373).- To be 
appointed as Staff Officer 1, Seva Vanitha Army 
Branch;
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	 af.	 Lieutenant Colonel Rathnayake Kankanamge Don 
Victor Rathnayake rwp RSP SLSR (O/65377).- To 
be appointed as General Staff Officer 1, Regimental 
Centre Sri Lanka Army Women’s Corps;

	 ag.	 Lieutenant Colonel Warnasooriya Mudiyanselage 
Subasinghe Warnasooriya USP MIR (O/65379).- To 
be appointed as Civil Administration Officer, Security 
Force Headquarters (Jaffna);

	 ah.	 Lieutenant Colonel Sooriya Malala Kumara 
Senanayake Mudiyanselage Ratnayake USP SLA 
(O/65381).- To be appointed as Research Coordinator, 
Kotalawala Defence University;

	 ai.	 Lieutenant Colonel Galappaththi Arachchige 
Rathnapriya Lal Ediriweera RSP USP GR 
(O/65384).- To be appointed as Civil Administration 
Officer, Security Force Headquarters (Wanni);

	 aj.	 Lieutenant Colonel Pitiye Gedera Christy Sisil 
Wijerathna ato Lsc SLAOC (O/63989).- To be 
appointed as Staff Officer 1 (Logistic), Headquarters 
Logistics Command;

	 ak.	 Lieutenant Colonel Migahage Alais irasinghe 
Arachchige Don Rajeev Samantha Irasinghe RWP 
SLSR (O/63374).- Supernumerary Promotion of 
Officers Wounded In Action;

	 al.	 Lieutenant Colonel Yaparathna Mudiyanselage Don 
Jeewantha Geeth Munagamage VIR (O/63430).- To 
be appointed as Civil Administration Officer, Security 
Force Headquarters (East);

	am.	 Lieutenant Colonel Herath Mudiyanselage Ravindra 
Kumara RSP VIR (O/64265).- To be appointed as Civil 
Administration Officer, Security Force Headquarters 
(Mullaittivu);

	 an.	 Lieutenant Colonel Hidella Arachchige Don Wijitha 
Kumara Alexander WWV RWP SLLI (O/63754).- To 
be appointed as Civil Administration Officer, Security 
Force Headquarters (West);

	 ao.	 Lieutenant Colonel Weerappulige Prasanna 
Hemajith RSP GR (O/64039).- To be appointed as 
Human Resources and Quartering Manager, Ranaviru 
Apparels;

	 ap.	 Lieutenant Colonel Dilan Dilruk Wickramasinghe 
GR (O/64307).- Supernumerary Promotion of Officers 
Wounded In Action;

	 aq.	 Lieutenant Colonel Malagalage Lalith Kumara 
Jayawardhana Peiris SLA (O/64697).- To be 
appointed as Production Planning Manager, Ranaviru 
Apparels;

	 ar.	 Lieutenant Colonel Ukwaththa Jayalathge Suhada 
Sarathchandra Rsp Gw (O/64868).- To be appointed 
as Factory Manager, Ranaviru Apparels (Yakkala).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Rtd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

06th October, 2020.

03-121/8

No. 217 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/PRO/LT COL/20 (08).

Sri  Lanka  Army—regular  force

Promotions approved by His Excellency the 
President

1. His Excellency the President has approved the 
promotion of undermentioned senior officers to the rank of 
Lieutenant Colonel with effect from the dates shown against 
their names:

	 a.	 Major Manorathne Acharige Thushantha Indika 
USP SLAMC (O/65766) - 03.12.2016;

	 b.	 Major Dikwelle Vidanage Wasathmie Kulunusisi 
Harischandra USP SLAMC (O/65491) - 18.11.2017;

	 c.	 Major Matarage Don Harshaka Ranganath 
Sumanasekara RSP SLAMC (O/65525) - 21.03.2018;

	 d.	 Major Nizar Mohamed Niflar USP SLAMC 
(O/65529) - 21.03.2018;

	 e.	 Major Lahandapurage Cyril Kulathunga USP 
SLAMC (O/64840) - 14.04.2018;

	 f.	 Major Saunda Hennadige Prabath Chandena De 
Silva USP SLAMC (O/64841) - 14.04.2018;
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	 g.	 Major Janaka Ratna Kumara Samarakoon USP 
SLAMC (O/64842) - 14.04.2018;

	 h.	 Major Hewaduwe Balage Nihal USP SLAMC 
(O/64843) - 14.04.2018;

	 i.	 Major Bamunu Mudiyanselage Nandana Pushpa 
Kumara USP SLAMC (O/64845) - 14.04.2018

	 j.	 Major Epita Kaduwa Gamage Vineeta Kumara USP 
SLAMC (O/64846) - 14.04.2018;

	 k.	 Major Ravindra Udayakumara Weerasinghe RSP 
SLAMC (O/64847) - 14.04.2018;

	 l.	 Major Wijekoon Bandara Mudiyanselage Kithsiri 
Prasanna Bandara USP SLAMC (O/64848) - 
14.04.2018;

	 m.	 Major Dissanayake Mudiyanselage Deshan Jayasena 
Dissanayake RSP USP SLAMC (O/65523) - 
09.08.2018;

	 n.	 Major Renuka Susanthi Gunawardena USP SLAMC 
(O/64900) - 30.12.2018.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Rtd.),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

18th September, 2020.

03-121/9

	

No. 218 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/PRO/MAJ/21 (02).

Sri  Lanka  Army—regular  force

Promotions approved by His Excellency the 
President

His Excellency the President has approved the promotion 
of undermentioned Officers to the rank of Temporary Major 
with effect from the dates stated against their names: 

	 1.	 Captain Herath Bandara Mudiyanselage Ajith 
Herath Bandara RSP USP SLA (O/66989) - 12th 
July, 2017;

	 2.	 Captain Ranasinghe Mudiyanselage Gedara 
Chandana Bandara Ariyasinghe RSP VIR (O/66525) 
- 30th September, 2017;

	 3.	 Captain Katukurunda Kanaththage Rishi Kavinga 
Katukurunda VIR (O/66875) - 30th January, 2018;

	 4.	 Captain Ekanayaka Mudiyanselage Udaha Walawwe 
Ravindra Bandara Boyagoda VIR (O/67338) - 30th 
January, 2018;

	 5.	 Captain Wanasinghe Arachchilage Don Ruwan 
Sampath Adikari SLAGSC (O/68658) - 30th January, 
2018;

	 6.	 Captain Manikka Baduge Lakshitha Dhanushka De 
Silva MIR (O/67346) - 23rd March, 2018;

	 7.	 Captain Dimingu Merannage Ranga Shalinda Perera 
RSP SLLI (O/66876) - 23rd March, 2018;

	 8.	 Captain Mahamarakkalage Lochana Mahesh 
Kumara Perera SLE (O/67336) - 23rd March, 2018;

	 9.	 Captain Wannakuwaththe Waduge Yayesh 
Nadeeshan Fernando SLSR (O/67340) - 23rd March, 
2018;

	 10.	 Captain Liyana Waduge Thanushka Sajith Sanjeewa 
VIR (O/66905) - 24th April, 2018;

	 11.	 Captain Kodithuwakku Kankanamge Kalana Lakmal 
CES (O/68504) - 24th April, 2018;

	 12.	 Captain Gallage Rakshitha Pathum Gallage SLLI 
(O/67830) - 05th May, 2018;

	 13.	 Captain Pahala Gedara Dhammika Sameera 
Ariyawansha SLSR (O/67817) - 01st June, 2018;

	 14.	 Captain Marasingha Mudiyaselage Jagath Kumara 
Marasinghe RSP USP CR (O/66420) - 01st June, 
2018;

	 15.	 Captain Uyangodage Athula Chandrasiri SLE 
(O/66449)	 - 03rd July, 2018;

	 16.	 Captain Herath Mudiyanselage Mahinda Kumara 
RSP GW (O/66530)	- 10th September, 2018;
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	 17.	 Captain Kahada Arachchige Dinesh Chanaka 
Gunarathne SLLI (O/68012) - 10th September, 2018;

	 18.	 Captain Hetti Arachchige Chamith Manjula 
Hettiarachchi RWP USP SLE (O/66686) - 10th 
September, 2018;

	 19.	 Captain Dilshan Chanaka Liyanagamage CR 
(O/67969) - 10th September, 2018;

	 20.	 Captain Batagalle Gedara Sarath Ashoka Kumara 
GR (O/66846) - 09th November, 2018;

	 21.	 Captain Ponsuge Waruna Lakmina Thisera GR 
(O/67974) - 09th November, 2018;

	 22.	 Captain Don Beztian Perera Danushka Sampath 
Abegunawardhena GR (O/68000) - 12th December 
2018;

	 23.	 Captain Solanga Arachchige Kelum Nishantha 
Jayasena SLEME (O/69010) - 12th December, 2018; 

	 24.	 Captain Wijesingha Arachchilage Sanath Niranga 
GR (O/68011) - 12th December, 2018;

	 25.	 Captain Uduwa Vidanalage Sameera Suranjan 
Perera GR (O/68050) - 12th December, 2018;

	
	 26.	 Captain Duminda Paranagamage GW (O/68238) - 

12th December, 2018;

	 27.	 Captain Radampola Gamage Jayangika Maduranga 
GW (O/68006) - 13th December, 2018;

	 28.	 Captain Wijethunga Mudiyanselage Susil Kumara 
VIR (O/68151) - 13th December, 2018;

	 29.	 Captain Kasthuri Arachchige Kasun Chammi 
Kasthuriarachchi MIR (O/68153) - 13th December, 
2018;

	 30.	 Captain Bandara Gamage Don Rashmi Desman 
Gunathilake CES (O/68944) - 13th December, 2018;

	 31.	 Captain Weerakoon Mudiyanselage Praneeth 
Rohitha Bandara Weerakoon GR (O/68145) - 14th 
January, 2019;

	 32.	 Captain Wanninayake Mudiyanselage Sumith  
Wanninayake SLAOC (O/68561) - 14th January, 
2019;

	 33.	 Captain Kande Vidanalage Eranda Madusanka 
Dharmarathne SLSR (O/68042) - 14th January, 2019;

	 34.	 Captain Hewakara Sindurage Priyantha Kumara 
RSP USP SLAC (O/67157) - 14th January, 2019;

	 35.	 Captain Dasanayake Ralalage Shalika Jeewantha 
Dasanayake SLSC (O/68555) - 14th January, 2019;

	 36.	 Captain Herath Mudiyanselage Amith 
Wickramasinghe GW (O/68124) - 14th January, 2019;

	 37.	 Captain Bulathsinhala Mudiyanselage Harshana 
Chathuranga SLSR (O/68152) - 14th January, 2019;

	 38.	 Captain Wickramasinghe Arachchige Thilak 
Wikcramasinghe SLE (O/67215) - 14th January, 
2019;

	 39.	 Captain Rubasinghage Ravindra Kumara RWP RSP 
GW (O/67288) - 14th January, 2019;

	 40.	 Captain Dayananda Sekara Mudiyanselage Kamal 
Weerasuriya SLASC (O/68262) - 14th January, 2019;

	 41.	 Captain Isusru Gayashan Kannangara SLAOC 
(O/68266) - 14th January, 2019;

	 42.	 Captain Pol Arawe Gedara Asanka Samaraweera 
USP SLE (O/67291) - 14th January, 2019;

	 43.	 Captain Daya Kulasiri Senavirathne SLSC 
(O/68975)	 26th February, 2019;

	 44.	 Captain Babanisge Srimal Senavirathne GR 
(O/68495) - 28th March, 2019;

	 45.	 Captain Walakada Gamage Rajitha Rupathunga GW 
(O/68272) - 28th March, 2019;

	 46.	 Captain Rajapaksha Pathirannehelage Wasala 
Rajapaksha SLAC (O/68276)	 - 29th March, 2019;

	 47.	 Captain Weerappuli Gamage Chanaka Ranga 
Madushan GW (O/67942) - 24th May, 2019;

	 48.	 Captain Dissanayaka Mudalige Shalika Nirmala 
Dissanayake CES (O/68775) - 24th May, 2019;

	 49.	 Captain Suduwa Dewage Suranga Anushad Fernando 
MIR (O/67951) - 24th May, 2019;

	 50.	 Captain Budvin Asiri Bobuwala GR (O/67954) - 24th 
May, 2019;
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	 51.	 Captain Gurusinghe Wijesekara Arachchi Sasila 
Gurusinghe VIR (O/67958) - 24th May, 2019;

	 52.	 Captain Don Nalin Bandara Ilesinghe SLLI 
(O/67960) - 24th May, 2019;

	 53.	 Captain Moragaspitiya Ralalage Sri Nadushan 
Shashi Moragaspitiya SLAOC (O/68487) - 24th May, 
2019;

	 54.	 Captain Malneththiyalage Mahesh Manjula 
Dasanayake SLEME (O/68471) - 01st June, 
2019; 	

	 55.	 Captain Walgama Vithanage Sasika Lakmal CES 
(O/68549) - 01st June, 2019;

	 56.	 Captain Chandrasekara Mudiyanselage Gayan 
Sanjaya Chandrasekera VIR (O/66541) - 01st July, 
2019;

	 57.	 Captain Punchi Hewage Suresh Lakmal SLEME 
(O/68724) - 01st July, 2019;

	 58.	 Captain Mallawa Arachchige Pradeep Kumara 
Senevirathne VIR (O/68808) - 06th July, 2019;

	 59.	 Captain	 Premathilaka Rathnayake USP SLSC 
(O/67276) - 06th July, 2019;

	 60.	 Captain Marapana Walawwe Charith Nilanga 
Marapana VIR (O/67952) - 06th July, 2019;

	 61.	 Captain Wickrama Ushaka Saman Kumara, GW 
(O/67522) - 06th July, 2019;

	 62.	 Captain Uda Gedara Ajith Chaminda Senevirathna 
Bandara USP SLSC (O/67418) - 06th July, 2019;

	 63.	 Captain Yapa Hamige Harishchandra RWP SLLI 
(O/67448) - 06th July, 2019;

	 64.	 Captain Ranasinghe Arachchilage Priyantha Ml 
(O/68496) - 06th July, 2019;

	 65.	 Captain Henda Witharana Saliya Sandaruwan Silva 
SLEME (O/68473) - 06th July, 2019;

	 66.	 Captain Gode Kankanamge Manoj Harendra 
Amaranayake SLAC (O/69146) - 15th July, 2019;

	 67.	 Captain Ilandari Dewa Hashan Neranjan Piyathissa 
SLLI (O/68874) - 15th July, 2019;

	 68.	 Captain Adillage Dimuthu Dilshan GW (O/68195) - 
15th July, 2019;

	 69.	 Captain Herath Mudiyanselage Sanju Amith 
Gunathilake VIR (O/68625) - 23rd September, 2019

	 70.	 Captain	 Dewanarayana Arachchige Shiwantha 
Lakshan Dayarathne SLA (O/68193) - 23rd 
September, 2019;

	 71.	 Captain Amarakon Pathiranalage Pradeep 
Chathuranga Jayawardhena SLLI (O/68293) - 23rd 
September, 2019;

	 72.	 Captain Galle Madagoda Gedara Dhanuka 
Madushan Fernando SLCMP (O/68302) - 23rd 
September, 2019;

	 73.	 Captain Tikirage Chaminda Senarathna SLA 
(O/67681) - 23rd September, 2019;

	 74.	 Captain Liyannalage Gedara Suminda Kumara 
Somathilaka Wickramasinghe SLSR (O/67738) - 
25th October, 2019;

	 75.	 Captain Sandra Marakkala Kasun Nilanga 
Wijesekara SLSC (O/70138) - 31st December, 2019 
;			 

	 76.	 Captain Dinarathnage Indika Pushpakumara SLA 
(O/67779) - 07th January, 2020;

	 77.	 Captain Gonagala Dewayalage Buddhika 
Sandaruwan Gunawardhana SLAGSC (O/69713) - 
10th February, 2020;

	 78.	 Captain Bulathsinhalage Lahiru Sameera 
Bulathsinhala SLAGSC (O/69717) - 10th February, 
2020;

	 79.	 Captain Godagama Gamage Lasantha SLAGSC 
(O/69719) - 10th February, 2020;

	 80.	 Captain Obinamuni Dileepa Maduwantha de Silva 
SLAC (O/69259) - 20th March, 2020;

	 81.	 Captain Niwantha Sampath Jayasinghe VIR (O/69067) 
- 20th March, 2020;

	 82.	 Captain Thilanka Priyasad Wijayasiriwardhana SLE 
(O/69276) - 20th March, 2020;

	 83.	 Captain Pelenda Pathirage Dinusha Sasanka Dias 
GR (O/69286) - 20th March, 2020;
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	 84.	 Captain Alagiyawadu Dimuthu Pathma Karunarathne 
VIR (O/69074) - 20th March, 2020;

	 85.	 Captain Naththaranpatha Mudali Rankendage 
Oshali Erandika Chathurangi Ekanayake SLCMP 
(O/69282) - 20th March, 2020;

	 86.	 Captain Chathuranga Randimal Warusamana 
SLEME (O/69270) - 20th March, 2020;

	 87.	 Captain Galkatiye Gedara Duminda Kumara 
Sugathapala SLAMC (O/68314) - 18th May, 2020;

	 88.	 Captain Lalitha Chandana Polpitiya SLSR 
(O/69328) - 18th May, 2020;

	 89.	 Captain Tikiri Hannadige Janaka Chaturanga 
Somathilaka SLEME (O/69273) - 18th May, 2020;

	 90.	 Captain Karunanayake Pathirannahelage Randika 
Ruwan Karunanayake VIR (O/69261) - 18th May, 
2020;

	 91.	 Captain Kalupahanage Isuru Chameera Kalupahana 
GW (O/69262) - 18th May, 2020;

	 92.	 Captain Lekam Wasam Liyanage Rukshan  
Wishvanath Liyanage GW (O/69329) - 18th May, 
2020;

	 93.	 Captain Rathnayaka Bandaralage Nalinda 
Rathnayake SLASC (O/68320) - 18th May, 2020

	 94.	 Captain Bokalawela Ihalagedara Sampath Sri 
Champika Weerakoon SLAGSC (O/68321) - 18th 
May, 2020

	 95.	 Captain Kanaththage Gayan Shanaka SLAOC 
(O/68322) - 18th May, 2020;

 			 
	 96.	 Captain Weerakoon Hemachandrage Anura Jayalath 

Hemachandra SLAOC (O/68332) - 18th May, 2020;

	 97.	 Captain Rajapakshage Senarath Mahinda Rajapaksha 
SLCMP (O/68345) - 18th May, 2020;

	 98.	 Captain Wijesinghe Mudiyanselage Sudeepika 
Sajeewani Bandara SLAWC (O/69331) - 18th May, 
2020;

	 99.	 Captain Herath Mudiyanselage Theekshana 
Dhananjaya Bandara Herath SLAOC (O/68817) - 
01st June, 2020;

	100.	 Captain Viduranga Denagamage SLAOC (0/68896) - 
01st June, 2020;

	101.	 Captain Kumarasinghe Mudiyanselage Laxman 
Suraweera GR (O/68356) - 01st June, 2020;

	102.	 Captain Kankanam Gamage Somi Jayarathne MIR 
(O/68357) - 01st June, 2020;

	103.	 Captain Kodithuwakku Madanayake Sajith Imal GR 
(O/69075) - 01st June, 2020

	104.	 Captain Kahawe Guruge Sanka Ravindranath 
Wijesinghe SLSC (O/70142) - 01st June, 2020

	105.	 Captain Balasooriya Mudiyanselage Dhammika 
Jayalath Balasooriya SLASC (O/69092) - 29th July, 
2020;

	106.	 Captain Anuradha Chinthaka Sellahewa GR 
(O/69247) - 29th July, 2020;

	107.	 Captain Agalagama Malawarage Suranga Pradeep 
Kumara SLLI (O/68386) - 29th July, 2020;

	108.	 Captain Kasun Bandula Liyanapathirana SLAGSC 
(O/68387) - 29th July, 2020;

	109.	 Captain Henda Marakkala Asela Vishvajith De 
Silva GW (O/68884) - 29th July, 2020;

	110.	 Captain Alagiyawanna Mohottalalage Manoj 
Mangala Madhusanka VIR (O/69325) - 29th July, 
2020;

	111.	 Captain Hiran Rathnayake SLLI (0/69099) - 29th 
July, 2020;

	112.	 Captain Dissanayake Mudiyanselage Damith 
Dissanayake SLAOC (O/68699) - 29th July, 2020;

	113.	 Captain	 Hedeniya Vidanelage Buddhi Chamara 
Madushanka Hedeniya SLSR (0/69134) - 29th July, 
2020;

	114.	 Captain Kodippilikanda Witharanage Malitha 
Chathuranga SLEME (O/69097) - 29th July, 2020;

	115.	 Captain Mallawa Arachchige Bhathiya Rajitha 
Mallawaarchchi SLLI (O/69143) - 29th July, 2020;

	116.	 Captain	 Abeywardhana Arachchi Piyumal 
Prasanga Janapriya MI (0/69144) - 29th July, 2020;
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	117.	 Captain Ranhoti Bandaralage Nalinda Chandana 
Wijewardhana SLSR (O/68696) - 29th July, 2020;

	118.	 Captain Eramudugoda Gamage Yayesh Madushan 
Gamage SF (O/69118) - 29th July, 2020;

	119.	 Captain Koralakumbure Gedara Suminda Bandara 
Koralakumbura SLASC (O/68704) - 29th July, 2020;

	120.	 Captain Atuwa Gedara Prabhash Karunarathne 
SLSC (O/68679) - 02nd December, 2020;

	121.	 Captain Nirmal Geethanga Madanayake SLSC 
(O/68976) - 02nd December, 2020;

	122.	 Captain Herath Mudiyanselage Sithra Chandima 
Herath SLA (O/68920) - 09th January, 2021;

	123.	 Captain Keragalage Chamil GR (O/68708) - 09th 
January, 2021;

	124.	 Captain Pelenage Sashintha Thulitha Kumara SLSR 
(O/68904) - 09th January, 2021;

	125.	 Captain Warnakulasuriya Mahalekamlage 
Darshani Warnakulasuriya SLAWC (O/68476) - 
10th February, 2021;

	126.	 Captain Sanduni Erandhika Kapugamage SLAWC 
(O/68477) - 10th February, 2021.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne (Retd),
 	 WWV RWP  RSP USP ndc psc Mphil,
	 General/(Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

02nd February, 2021.

03-121/10

No. 219 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/PRO/MAJ/20 (13).

Sri  Lanka  Army—regular  force

Promotions approved by His Excellency the 
President

His Excellency the President has approved the promotion 
of undermentioned Officer’s to the rank of Temporary Major 
with effect from the dates stated against their names:

	 1.	 Captain Chalani Dulmini Rajasekara SLAMC 
(O/68964) - 27th November, 2020;

	 2.	 Captain Herath Mudiyanselage Udeshika 
Chathurangani Herath SLAMC (O/68965) - 27th 
November, 2020;

	 3.	 Captain Hewa Kodikarage Sadeesh Niroshaan 
SLAMC (0/69646) - 27th November, 2020;

	 4.	 Captain Wijayalath Abeysekara Mudiyanselage 
Thilanka Bandara Abeysekera SLAMC (O/69643) - 
27th November, 2020;

	 5.	 Captain Nisala Indrajith Rathnayake SLAMC 
(O/69639) - 27th November, 2020;

	 6.	 Captain Mathugama Liyanage Janak Karunarathne 
SLAMC (O/69641) - 27th November, 2020;

	 7.	 Captain Baddegama Kankanamge Chethana Kasun 
Kumara Baddegama SLAMC (O/69640) - 27th 
November, 2020;

	 8.	 Captain Weerasinghage Ishanka Mahendra SLAMC 
(O/69645) - 27th November, 2020;

	 9.	 Captain Medagedara Channa Sandaruwan 
Ranaweera SLAMC (O/69642) - 27th November, 
2020;

	 10.	 Captain Dodangoda Gamage Thilanka Indunil 
Dodangoda SLAMC (O/69638) - 27th November, 
2020;

	 11.	 Captain Gallage Malinu Jeewantha Jayatissa 
Gallage SLAMC (O/69636) - 27th November, 2020;

	 12.	 Captain Gammanavidanelage Don Kanishka Bhasura 
Ariyarathne SLAMC (O/69635) - 27th November, 
2020;

	 13.	 Captain Ayesh Dushmantha Muthumala SLAMC 
(O/69633) - 27th November, 2020;

	 14.	 Captain Wellawattage Chamal Eshan 
Wickramarathne SLAMC (O/69647) - 27th 
November, 2020

	 15.	 Captain Diwana Waththe Puwakgaha Kumbure 
Gedara Prashad Malinda Gunawardhana SLAMC 
(O/69637) - 27th November, 2020;	

	 16.	 Captain Rupasinghe Jayasundara Kasun Wijesiri 
SLSC (O/70559) - 02nd December, 2020;
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	 17.	 Captain Samarappuli Arachchilage Ajith Parakrama 
Perera SLSC (O/70560) - 02nd December, 2020;

	 18.	 Captain Rathnayaka Mudiyanselage Chamedi 
Sandunika Bandara SLAGSC (O/70558) - 02nd 
December, 2020; 

	 19.	 Captain Bodara Gamage Isuru Udani Karunathilaka 
SLAGSC (O/70562) - 02nd December, 2020; 

	 20	 Captain Abeysooriya Arachchige Lasika Lochani 
SLAGsC (O/70564) - 02nd December, 2020.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

23rd December, 2020.

03-121/11

No. 220 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/PRO/MAJ/20.

Sri  Lanka  Army—regular  force

Promotion approved by His Excellency the 
President

His Excellency the President has approved the promotion 
of undermentioned Officers’ to the rank of Temporary Major 
with effect from 09th January, 2021:

	 1.	 Captain Horathal Pedige Saliya Priyantha Peiris 
VIR (O/68717);

	 2.	 Captain Kandangamuwa Pathirannehelage Janaka 
Deshan Rathnasekara SLE (O/68719);

	 3.	 Captain Asuramannage Dinesh Saminda Asuramanna 
VIR (O/68721);

	 4.	 Captain Kaluperuma Darshana Idunil De Soyza SLA 
(O/68722);

	 5.	 Captain Thushan Buddhika Amarasinghe  
Ml (O/68905);

	 6.	 Captain Attanayake Mudiyanselage Gayan Kavinda 
Attanayake SLLI (O/68907);

	 7.	 Captain Kaludeva Shanaka Viduranga De Silva GR 
(O/68911);

	 8.	 Captain Dassanayake Mudiyanselage Chathura 
Madusanka Dassanayake VIR (O/68915);

	 9.	 Captain Rajakaruna Mudiyanselage Thanuja 
Samantha Bandara Rajakaruna SLSR (O/68916)

	 10.	 Captain Bulugahamulle Gedara Amila Indika 
Bandara Gunasekara SLLI (O/68917)

	 11.	 Captain Kappitiyagoda Vithanage Janith 
Madhusanka Vithanage SLAC (O/68694)

	 12.	 Captain Don Kanakarathna Mudalige Thushantha 
Kasun Anuradha Kanakarathne SLSR (O/68921)

	 13.	 Captain Malwenna Hewage Thushan Asanka 
Malwenna GR (O/68922)

	 14.	 Captain Rathnayaka Mudiyanselage Chinthaka 
Sadaruwan Semasinghe SLE (O/68923)

	 15.	 Captain Kankanamlage Don Chamilka Lakshitha 
Rajapakshe SLAGSC (O/68928)

	 16.	 Captain Kolamba Gedara Saliya Aravinda 
Kolambage SLLI (O/68929);

 	17.	 Captain Sureshani Madumali Rankothge SLAWC 
(O/68478).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc Mphil,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

25th January, 2021.

03-121/12

No. 221 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/PRO/MAJ/21 (01).

Sri  Lanka  Army—regular  force

Promotions approved by His Excellency the 
President

His Excellency the President has approved the promotion 
of undermentioned officers to the rank of Temporary Major 
with effect from the dates stated against their names:

	 1.	 Captain Uduwarage Lahiru Madushanka Silva MIR 
(O/69332) - 09th January, 2021;	

	 2.	 Captain Abdul Hasan Mohamed Khan MI (O/69333) 
- 09th January, 2021;

	 3.	 Captain Herath Mudiyanselage Ruwan Priyadarshana 
Herath SLE (O/69335) - 09th January, 2021	

	 4.	 Captain Darshana Udaya Kumara Lokuwellage 
SLEME (O/69338) - 09th January, 2021;	
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	 5.	 Captain Gajasinghage Kasun Sampath Silva VIR 
(O/69340) - 09th January, 2021;	

	 6.	 Captain Demanagammana Gameathige Madhawa 
Mahesh Sandaruwan SLLI (O/69345) - 09th January, 
2021;	

	 7.	 Captain Imihami Mudiyanselage Aruna Priyantha 
Herath SLAGSC (O/69346) - 09th January, 
2021;	

	 8.	 Captain Siriwardhana Sandapala Arachchige Lahiru 
Manoj Maduwantha Siriwardhana SLAC (O/69353) 
- 09th January, 2021;

	 9.	 Captain Ranasinghe Arachchilage Rashmika Eranda 
Damruwan GR (O/69359) - 09th January, 2021;	

	 10.	 Captain Jude Nilukshan Weerasooriya SLAC 
(O/69334) - 09th January, 2021;	

	 11.	 Captain Dharmapala Vidanalage Nuwan 
Dharmapriya SLSC (O/69168) - 09th January, 2021;

	 12.	 Captain Ekanayake Mudiyanselage Nuwan 
Dhananjaya Bandara Ekanayake SLSC (O/69337) - 
09th January, 2021;	

	 13.	 Captain Kamburugomuwa Lokuarachchige Gayan 
Indika Kaburugomuwa SLA (O/69169) - 09th January, 
2021;	

	 14.	 Captain Ekanayaka Wasala Mudiyanselage 
Idame Walawwe Chathura Harshalal Bandara 
Wijethilake VIR (O/69170) - 09th January, 2021;

	 15.	 Captain Ketipe Kankanamge Mahesh Niroshan 
Kankanamge GW (O/69339) - 09th January, 2021;

	 16.	 Captain Edirisinghe Sinhala Viduramalage Niroshan 
Jayasinghe SF (O/69171) - 09th January, 2021;

	 17.	 Captain Mawanana Hewa Chameesha Madushan 
Silva SLCMP (O/69341) - 09th January, 2021;

	 18.	 Captain Chulendra Yasassri Bandara Senarathna 
SLSR (O/69342) - 09th January, 2021;

	 19.	 Captain Kasun Chathuranga Gamage SLAOC 
(O/69344) - 09th January, 2021;

	 20.	 Captain Jayalathge Don Asanga Dilhara Jayalath 
SLASC (O/69176) - 09th January, 2021;

	 21.	 Captain Rubasin Siriwardhana Vimukthi CES 
(O/69347) - 09th January, 2021;

	 22.	 Captain Alawaththegama Maduwe Gedara Manoj 
Gayan Maduwantha Alawaththegama VIR 
(O/69348)	 - 09th January, 2021;

	 23.	 Captain Kumarage Indika Kasun Perera GR 
(O/69349) - 09th January, 2021;

	 24.	 Captain Jayakody Arachchige Saranga Jayakody GR 
(O/69183) - 09th January, 2021;

	 25.	 Captain Galagama Arachchige Dilan Dhanushka 
Abeydheera SLSR (O/69350) - 09th January, 2021;

	 26.	 Captain Vimukthi Kasun Bandara Imaduwa SLE 
(O/69351) - 09th January, 2021;

	 27.	 Captain Dombagoda Liyanage Nuwan Priyadarshana 
Liyanage SLLI (O/69352) - 09th January, 2021;

	 28.	 Captain Pathirage Rumesh Lakmal Perera SLCMP 
(O/69187) - 09th January, 2021;

	 29.	 Captain Ravindu Jayadeesha Narangoda SLA 
(O/69354) - 09th January, 2021;

	 30.	 Captain Hitihami Arachchilage Sandun Krishantha 
Siriwardhana VIR (O/69356)	09th January, 2021;

	 31.	 Captain Rathnayaka Kaluarachchige Chathuranga 
Fielix Rathnayake CR (O/69357) - 09th January, 
2021;

	 32.	 Captain Harsha Lalith Hettiarchchi CR (O/69358) 
- 09th January, 2021  

	 33.	 Captain Thanthri Hewage Sandaruwan Chandana 
Peiris SLLI (O/69194) - 09th January, 2021;

	 34.	 Captain Akila Viraj Madusanka Gunathilake SLSR 
(O/69361) - 09th January, 2021;

	 35.	 Captain Warnakulapatabandige Tharindu Gayan 
Lakshantha Perera GR (O/69362) - 09th January, 
2021;

	 36.	 Captain Madapathage Don Chathuranga Sameera 
Sampath Madapathage VIR (O/69197)	 - 09th 
January, 2021;

	 37.	 Captain Rathnayaka Mudiyanselage Isuru Sashika 
VIR (O/69363) - 09th January, 2021;

	 38.	 Captain Kiri Bandage Vikum Sri Vijutha Vishwa 
Bandara SLLI (O/69364) - 09th January, 2021;

	 39.	 Captain Dissanayake Mudiyanselage Lahiru Yohan 
Dissanayake SLSR (O/69365) - 09th January, 2021;

	 40.	 Captain Udesh Madushan Herath SLLI (O/69366) - 
09th January, 2021;

	 41.	 Captain Gonaduwage Don Rasanka Laknidu 
Gonaduwage SLE (O/69172) - 09th January, 2021;

	 42.	 Captain Alahakoon Mudiyanselage Sajith Dananjaya 
Bandara Alahakoon GW (O/69173) - 09th January, 
2021;

	 43.	 Captain Jayawardhana Mudiyanselage Kreshan 
Chinthaka Jayawardhana SLSR (O/69174) - 09th 
January, 2021;

	 44.	 Captain Lekamlage Sameera Chinthaka Bandara 
SLLI (O/69177) - 09th January, 2021;

	 45.	 Captain Thennakoon Mudiyanselage Subash Harsha 
Bandara MIR (O/69180) - 09th January, 2021;

	 46.	 Captain Godagama Widanalage Eranga Lakmina 
Senadheera SLAGSC (O/69182) - 09th January, 
2021;

	 47.	 Captain Nagodage Tharindu Sampath Perera 
SLAMC (O/70048) - 08th February, 2021;

	 48.	 Captain Dissanayake Mudiyanselage Gamini Wijaya 
Bandara SLSR (O/70548) - 10th February, 2021;

 	49.	 Captain Horawala Withanage Krishan Kavinda 
Dumindaraj SLAGSC (O/69732) - 10th February, 
2021;	

	 50.	 Captain Hadunneththi Sameera Madusanka Mendis 
Wickramarathne MI (O/69184) - 10th February, 
2021;
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	 51.	 Captain Galhenage Piyum Madusanka Perera GW 
(O/69185) - 10th February, 2021;

	 52.	 Captain Warusapperuma Ranasinghe Arachchilage 
Krishan Danushka Ranasinghe SLSR (O/69186) - 
10th February, 2021;

	 53.	 Captain Pattiyage Heshan Oshada Gomes SLA 
(O/69190) - 10th February, 2021;

	 54.	 Captain Weerakoon Achchige Mihilaka Chathuranga 
Weerakoon GW (O/69367) - 10th February, 2021;

	 55.	 Captain Wijesinhage Roshan Fonseka SLSC 
(O/69735) - 10th February, 2021;

	 56.	 Captain Diulgaha Gedara Chandana Priyakantha 
Piyasena SLSC (O/69736) - 10th February, 2021.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne,
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc Mphil,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

02nd February, 2021.

03-121/13

No. 222 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/PRO/MAJ/20 (11).

Sri  Lanka  Army—regular  force

Promotions approved by His Excellency the 
President

His Excellency the President has approved the 
undermentioned Officers promotions to the rank of 
Temporary Major (Quartermaster) with effect from 09th 
September, 2020:

	 1.	 Captain (Quartermaster) Udagedara Mahinda 
Senarathne USP SLAOC (O/66990);

	 2.	 Captain (Quartermaster) Peduru Arachchige Sunil 
USP SLAMC (O/66993);

	 3.	 Captain (Quartermaster) Don Upul Ranjith 
Widhanapathirana Samarawickrama SLE (O/66996) 

	 4.	 Captain (Quartermaster) Kumara Bandage 
Dayananda Wanninayake USP VIR (O/66999);

	 5.	 Captain (Quartermaster) Sinnaiya Yogarajan 
SLAMC (O/66976);

	 6.	 Captain (Quartermaster) Bimbulewelage Roshan 
Indralal Bimbulewela SLEME (O/67002);

	 7.	 Captain (Quartermaster) Wijayasiri Udumulla GR 
(O/66991);

	 8.	 Captain (Quartermaster) Wakwella Kankanamge 
Nimal Priyansy USP SLAMC (O/67011);

	 9.	 Captain (Quartermaster) Ediripulige Sisil 
Wickramasiri RSP USP SLE (O/67013);

	 10.	 Captain (Quartermaster) Herath Mudiyanselage 
Sumith Kumara Herath SLAOC (O/67016);

	 11.	 Captain (Quartermaster) Rathnayaka Mudiyanselage 
Nihal SLAMC (O/67010);

	 12.	 Captain (Quartermaster) Fransis De Silva Ranjith 
Gunasekera SLAOC (O/67027);

	 13.	 Captain (Quartermaster) Thalgamuwalage Lal 
Wijewardena SLLI (O/67052);

	 14.	 Captain (Quartermaster) Ethugal Pedige Ebanaesar 
Memoriyal USP SLLI (O/67065).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

06th October, 2020.

03-121/14

No. 223 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/COM/CPT/20 (01).

Sri  Lanka  Army—regular  force

Commissions approved by His Excellency the 
President

His Excellency the President is pleased to approve the 
Commissioning of the undermentioned Professional Officers 
and lady Officers in the rank of Captain in the Regular Force 
of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 07.01.2020 and 
their posting to the Corps mentioned under their names with 
effect from the same date.

C/86489 Captain Wathukaralage Manjula Disanayaka 
Sri Lanka Army General Service Corps;

C/86485 Captain Rajakaruna Panditharathna Weda 
Mudali Gedara Chathuranga Rajakaruna Corps of 
Engineer Services;



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2021'03'05

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 05.03.2021
358

C/86492 Captain Koku Hannaduge Chandika Suvimal 
Sri Lanka Army General Service Corps

C/86491 Captain Kodikara Arachchige Anton Namal 
Suganda Perera Sri Lanka Army General Service Corps;

C/86484 Captain Wanasinghe Mudiyanselage Kanchana 
Sithira Wanasinghe Corps of Engineer Services;

C/86483 Captain Nadunge Dhananjali Madhushani 
Ranathissa Sri Lanka Signal Corps; 

C/86493 Captain Kalu Arachchige Pradeep Sulochana 
Bandaranayake Sri Lanka Army General Service Corps;

C/86488 Captain Edirisinghe Appuhamilage Jayathri 
Pasan Edirisinghe Corps of Engineer Services;

C/86490 Captain Don Rasika Niranjana Punchihewa 
Sri Lanka Army General Service Corps;

C/86487 Captain Jayasekara Mudalige Priya Thilina 
Madushan Jayasekara Corps of Engineer Services;

C/86486 Captain Udawela Lekamlage Manthinda 
Charaka Bandara Corps of Engineer Services;

C/86481 Captain Darada Kumbure Gedara Kapthura 
Jayasanka Sri Lanka Signal Corps.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

17th December, 2020.

03-121/15

No. 224 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/COM/UNI/20 (07).

SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Commissions approved by His Excellency the 
President

His Excellency the President is pleased to approve the 
Commissioning of the under mentioned Lady Officer Cadet 
as Second Lieutenant in the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka 
Army with effect from 25.02.2019 and she will be posted to 

Sri Lanka Army Madical Corps with effect from the same 
date.

	 C/59846 Lady Officer Cadet Buddhi Prabha Anushini 
Thennakoon.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc Mphil,
	 General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

31st December, 2020.

03-121/16

No. 225 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/COM/CDT/20 (03).

SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Commissions approved by His Excellency The 
President

His Excellency the President has pleased to approve the 
Commissioning of the under mentioned Lady Officer Cadets 
in the rank of Second Lieutenant in the Regular Force of the 
Army with effect from 21.12.2019 in the order of seniority 
shown and their posting to the Corps stated below their 
names with effect from the same date.

	 C/86172 L/Officer Cadet Kankani Pathirage Dona 
Iresha Madushani Sri Lanka Army Service Corps;
	 C/86179 L/Officer Cadet Ranhoti Pejlage Sanduni 
Ruwanthika Wijerathne Sri Lanka Army Ordnance Corps;
	 C/86175 L/Officer Cadet Anthoni Dura Pathum 
Nimni Sathsarani Silva Sri Lanka Women Corps;
	 C/86176 L/Officer Cadet Hannadige Pavithra 
Sewwandhi Soysa Sri Lanka Corps of Military Police;
	 C/86180 L/Officer Cadet Naotunna Gamage Dineshi 
Amandi Sri Lanka Women Corps;
	 C/85896 L/Officer Cadet Wijesundara Mudiyanselage 
Raveena Dilrukshi Sri Lanka Corps of Military Police;
	 C/86167 L/Officer Cadet Jinathul Hadeema Ahamad 
Sri Lanka Women Corps;
	 C/86168 L/Officer Cadet Madurapperuma 
Arachchilage Kaumadi Prismi Keshani Madurapperuma Sri 
Lanka Army Ordnance Corps;
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	 C/86173 L/Officer Cadet Dona Sashini Ravindi 
Apasinghe Sri Lanka Women Corps;
	 C/86170 L/Officer Cadet Ranathunga 
Disanayakalage Nadeesha Sewwandi Disanayake Sri Lanka 
Corps of Military Police;
	 C/86178 L/Officer Cadet Karunagoda Appuhamilage 
Nethra Sachinthanie Jayathilaka Sri Lanka Corps of 
Military Police;
	 C/86169 L/Officer Cadet Nanayakkara Wasam 
Weragoda Vidanalage Senuri Kavindya Sri Lanka Women 
Corps;
	 C/86174 L/Officer Cadet Kahangamage Hansika 
Sewwandi Jayawickrama Sri Lanka Army Service Corps
	 C/86181 L/Officer Cadet Agalla Dewage Prabodhani 
Kaushalya Kumari Perera Sri Lanka Women Corps;
	 C/86177 L/Officer Cadet Ekanayake Mudiyanselage 
Kithmini Gayanjana Ekanayaka Sri Lanka Women Corps;
	 C/86182 L/Officer Cadet Pinnapaya Disawala 
Walawwe Ishadi Kirunika Dharmakeerthi Sri Lanka Corps 
of Military Police;
	 C/86171 L/Officer Cadet Hingula Gamaralalage 
Imesha Piyumi Wickramarathna Sri Lanka Women Corps.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

29th August, 2020.

03-121/17

No. 226 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/COM/UNI/20 (03).

SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Commissions approved by His Excellency The 
President

His Excellency the President is pleased to approve the 
Commissioning of the undermentioned Officer Cadets as 
Second Lieutenants in the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka 
Army with effect from 04.01.2020 and they will be posted 
to Sri Lanka Army Madical Corps with effect from the same 
date.

	 C/59842 Officer Cadet Matharage Yasitha Aravinda

	 C/59843 Officer Cadet Vidana Gamage Kasun 
Madushan Sewwanda

	 C/59875 Lady Officer Cadet Patabendi Maddumage 
Nethmi Yasara.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

13th October, 2020.

03-121/18

No. 227 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/COM/UNI/20 (08).

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Commissions approved by His Excellency The 
President

His Excellency the President is pleased to approve the 
Commissioning of the undermentioned Officer Cadet as 
Second Lieutenant in the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka 
Army with effect from 04.01.2020 and he will be posted to 
Sri Lanka Army Madical Corps with effect from the same 
date.

C/59844 Officer Cadet Kavirathne Vithanalage 
Madushan Gamlath Wickramasinghe.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc Mphil,
	 General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

31st December, 2020.

03-121/19
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MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/VTR/20 (07).

SRI LANKA ARMY—volunteeR FORCE

Cessation of Commissions approved by His 
Excellency The President

The undermentioned Lady Officer ceased to be 
Commissioned Lady Officer in the Volunteer Force of 
the Sri Lanka Army with effect from the dates mentioned 
against her name.

	 C/86480 Lieutenant Colonel Champika Sanjeevanie 
Abeysinghe - 13.08.2015 Sri Lanka Army Medical Corps 
(Volunteer).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc Mphil,
	 General (Rtd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

08th January, 2021.

03-121/20

No. 228 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/R/VTR/20 (07).

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—REGULAR  FORCE

Commissions approved by His Excellency The 
President

His Excellency the President has pleased to approve 
the Commissioning of the undermentioned Senior Lady 
Officers of the Volunteer Force of the Sri Lanka Army in the 
Regular Force of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from the 
dates mentioned, in the order of seniority shown below and 
the posting to the Corps stated under their names with effect 
from the same dates.

	 a.	 Commissioning in the rank of Lieutenant Colonel 
from 13.08.2015 with seniority immediately below 
O/70112 Lieutenant Colonel S H Egodage (SLAMC) 

and  immediately above O/70113 Lieutenant Colonel 
M H W N M Perera (SLAMC)

		  C/86480 Lieutenant Colonel Champika Sanjeevanie 
Abeysinghe Sri Lanka Army Medical Corps.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc Mphil,
	 General (Rtd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

08th January, 2021.

03-121/21

No. 229 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/V/CONF/MAJ/21 (01).

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—volunteer  FORCE

Confirmation of Temporary Ranks approved by 
His Excellency The President

His Excellency the President has approved the 
confirmation of undermentioned Officers in the rank of 
Major of the Sri Lanka Army Volunteer Force with effect 
from the dates stated against their names.

	 a.	T emporary Major Edirisooriya Abeweera Arachchi 
Patabendige Mudith Manjula GR (O/5836) 
23.12.2014;

	 b.	T emporary Major Rajapaksha Arachchige Pradeep 
Sri Rajapaksha SLLI (O/5904) 22.06.2016;

	 c.	T emporary Major Godahenage Achinda Sithara GR 
(O/6073) 28.06.2017;

	 d.	T emporary Major Pohorambage Tharinda Lakmal 
Wickaramapala RSP VIR (O/6078) 28.06.2017;

	 e.	T emporary Major Diwakara Arachchige Kamal 
Amaranama SLAGSC (O/6027) 22.07.2020;

	 f.	T emporary Major Hewa Pedi Durayalage Chandana 
Thilakarathne GW (O/6172)	25.06.2018;

	 g.	T emporary Major Wijesundara Mudiyanselage 
Upulitha Sampath Wijesundara SLNG (O/6176) 
25.06.2018;

	 h.	T emporary Major Wickramasekara Mudiyanselage 
Chandana Bandara Wickramasekara SLNG 
(O/6187) 01.06.2019;
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	 i.	 Temporary Major Hettiarachchillage Pandula 
Sooriya Mangala Bandara Hettiarachchi SLSR 
(O/6461) 18.12.2018

	 j.	T emporary Major Watawala Kanakanamalage 
Dhanuska Indrajith Rathnapala SLNG (O/6462) 
18.12.2018;

	 k.	T emporary Major Yakgahawita Pathiranage Buddika 
Niroshan Gunaratne SLNG (O/6469)	18.12.2018;

	 1.	 Temporary Major Gabbela Abeysinghe 
Mohottalalage Janaka Abeysinghe SLE (O/6470) 
18.12.2018;

	 m.	T emporary Major Mahamudalige Amila Mayantha 
Mahamudalige psc GW (O/6440) 25.06.2019;

	 n.	T emporary Major Hewa Walimunige Wasantha 
Ranasinghe psc MI (O/6441)	25.06.2019;

	 o.	 Temporary Major Aruna Kirinda Hewage psc SLSR 
(O/6442) 25.06.2019;

	 p.	T emporary Major Bamunusinghe Arachchilage Don 
Nuwan Deshapriya Senavirathne SLA (O/6443) 
25.06.2019;

	 q.	 Temporary Major Edirisooriya Mudiyanselage 
Wasantha Sanjeewa Edirisooriya GR (O/6444) 
25.06.2019;

	 r.	T emporary Major Dampewaththe Atharlage Nuwan 
Chula Rupasinghe RSP VIR (O/6445)	25.06.2019;

	 s.	T emporary Major Edirisinghe Pedige Suresh 
Tharanga Jayasinghe SLLI (O/6446) 25.06.2019;

	 t.	 Temporary Major Kulathunga Mudiyanselage 
Gemunu Amaranayake psc SLNG (O/6448) 
25.06.2019;

	 u.	T emporary Major Ganegodage Nayana Kantha 
Lakmal Kumara Ganegoda VIR (O/6449) 25.06.2019;

	 v.	 Temporary Major Hangamuwe Mohotti Gayan 
Chamikara Mohotti psc GW (0/6450)	 25.06.2019;

	 w.	T emporary Major Wewala Ranawakage Buddhika 
Pradeep Kumara Ranawaka GR (O/6451) 25.06.2019;

	 x.	T emporary Major Jayalath Archchilalage Nandana 
Ruwan Kumara Herath MI (O/6452) 25.06.2019;

	 y.	 Temporary Major Mewan Manju Sri Kandearachchi 
SLA (O/6453) 25.06.2019;

	 z.	T emporary Major Weeraddana Viraj Siwantha De 
Silva MI (O/6454) 25.06.2019;

	 aa.	T emporary Major Nuwan Thiwanka Nawalage psc 
SLNG (O/6457) 25.06.2019;

	 ab.	T emporary Major Thewwa Handi Dhanushka Kumara 
De Silva psc SLAC (O/6530)	17.12.2019;

	 ac.	T emporary Major Naween Pramitha Daladawaththa 
psc SLA (O/6531) 17.12.2019;

	 ad.	T emporary Major Karunanayake Muhandiramlage 
Namal Sumith Saranga Karunanayake psc SLSR 
(O/6532) 17.12.2019;

	 ae.	T emporary Major Range Bandaralage Tharanga 
Kumara Wanninayake VIR (O/6533) 17.12.2019;

	 af.	T emporary Major Udage Ralalage Amila Danushka 
Jayawardena psc GW (O/6535) 17.12.2019;

	 ag.	T emporary Major Udawaththage Lasantha Pushpa 
Kumara Udawaththa SLAOC (O/6536) 17.12.2019;

	 ah.	T emporary Major Anjuna Samantha Widanapathirana 
psc SLNG (O/6540)	17.12.2019;

	 ai.	T emporary Major Liyanarathnage Manjula Suranga 
GW (O/6541) 17.12.2019;

	 aj.	T emporary Major Uduwaka Hewage Dhanushka 
Roshan Uduwaka SLNG (O/6544) 17.12.2019;

	 ak.	T emporary Major Ranathungage Dhanushka Suresh 
Benadic Fernando psc GR (O/6548) 17.12.2019;

	 al.	T emporary Major Narangoda Lekamalage Wesli 
Dinesh Narangoda CES (O/6487) 29.12.2015;

	am.	T emporary Major Wadduwage Don Buddika Perera 
CES (O/9509) 16.09.2019;

	 an.	T emporary Major Nilan Chamara Suwandaratne 
CES (O/6657) 28.11.2019;

	 ao.	T emporary Major Geeganage Lilan Asanga 
Geeganage SLAGSC (O/5368) 24.08.2015;

	 ap.	T emporary Major Kaludewa Kithsiri Chandana De 
Silva SLAGSC (O/8913) 16.08.2018;

	 aq.	T emporary Major Nelugolle Gedara Janaka 
Priyantha Bandara SLAGSC (O/9496) 06.01.2020.

By the order of His Excellency’s President,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc,
	 General (Rtd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

01st February, 2021.

03-121/22

No. 230 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/V/COM/CDT (20 (12).

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—VOLUNTEER FORCE
	
Commissioning of Officer, Posting, Transfer to the 
Volunteer General Reserve and Recall to the active 
service approved by His Excellency the President

COMMISSIONING OF OFFICER, POSTING, 
TRANSFER TO THE VOLUNTEER GENERAL 

RESERVE AND RECALL FOR ACTIVE SERVICE

His Excellency the President has approved the 
commissioning of the under mentioned Professional Officer 
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in the Sri Lanka Army Volunteer Force in the rank shown 
against his name and posting to the Sri Lanka Engineers 
with effect from 17th October, 2019. transfer to the General 
Reserve of the Sri Lanka Army Volunteer Force and recall 
for active service WEF the same date:

Officer Cadet Lakshan Mahanama Dissanayaka - 
Captain.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
23rd December, 2020.

03-121/23

No. 231 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/01/V/COM/CDT/20 (11).

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—volunteeR  FORCE

Commissioning and Posting of Officers approved 
by His Excellency The President

COMMISSIONING AND POSTING OF OFFICERS

His Excellency the President has approved the 
commissioning of the under mentioned Officer Cadets / 
Lady Officer Cadets in the Sri Lanka Army Volunteer Force 
under the “Direct Enlistment Scheme” in the ranks shown 
against their names with effect from 01st January, 2020 and 
posting to the Corps as stated with effect from the same date:

Lady Officer Cadet Ruhunage Udari Malshani 
Ruhunage - Captain (Sri Lanka Engineers); 

Officer Cadet Karunadhipathige Diyes Bandula 
Amarathunga - Captain (Sri Lanka Engineers);

Officer Cadet Andaramanage Udara Nilanka - Captain 
(Sri Lanka Army General Service Corps);

Officer Cadet Wickramasinghe Alugolla Appuhamilage 
Kawishwara Yasasith Wickramasinghe - Captain (Sri 
Lanka Army General Service Corps);

Lady Officer Cadet Athukoralage Dulani Kalpana 
Athukorala - Captain (Sri Lanka Engineers); 

Lady Officer Cadet Siriwardhana Hewage Samali 
Madhushika Siriwardhana - Captain (Sri Lanka Army 
General Service Corps);

Officer Cadet Iduruwage Harsha Kumara Premarathna 
- Captain (Sri Lanka Army General Service Corps)

Officer Cadet Ranasinghe Arachchilage Tharidu 
Thushantha - Captain (Corps of Engineer Services)

Lady Officer Cadet Rajapakshage Nisansala Rajapaksha 
- Captain (Corps of Engineer Services)

Officer Cadet Alankara Sampath De Silva - Captain (Sri 
Lanka Army General Service Corps)

Lady Officer Cadet Katuwawala Arachchilage Sachini 
Asanka Katuwawala - Captain (Sri Lanka Army Pioneer 
Corps);

Officer Cadet Malala Aloka Bandaralage Shirantha 
Kaushalya Bandara - Captain (Sri Lanka Signals Corps)

Officer Cadet Dandeniya Gamage Thushitha Udaya 
Kumara - Captain (Sri Lanka Army Pioneer Corps);

Lady Officer Cadet Rathnayaka Mudiyanselage 
Malshani Hansika Rathnayaka - Captain (Sri Lanka 
Signals Corps);

Officer Cadet Widana Hewage Ranga Prabath 
Harischandra - Captain (Sri Lanka Engineers);

Lady Officer Cadet Dissanayaka Mudiyanselage Manik 
Chandanamali - Captain (Sri Lanka Army General Service 
Corps);

Lady Officer Cadet Wadukumbure Arachchillage 
Maheshika Maduhansi Nishantha Captain (Sri Lanka Army 
General Service Corps);

Lady Officer Cadet Ellewela Kankanamge Radhika 
Lakshani Wansadaya - Captain (Sri Lanka Engineers);

Lady Officer Cadet Hewawalgamage Waruni 
Samarawickrama - Captain (Sri Lanka Signals Corps);

Officer Cadet Nagodagei Harsha Iroshan Nagoda - 
Captain (Sri Lanka Signals Corps);

Lady Officer Cadet Samarakoon Mudiyanselage 
Yashika Rangani Samarakoon - Captain (Sri Lanka Army 
General Service Corps);

Officer Cadet Thennakoon Mudiyanselage Lahiru 
Sadaruwan Thennakoon - Captain (Sri Lanka Army General 
Service Corps); 

Lady Officer Cadet Galolu Mudiyanselage Chathurika 
Madushani Dayananda - Captain (Sri Lanka Army General 
Service Corps);

Officer Cadet Galgamuwa Mudiyanselage Sanjeewa 
Supun Shanaka - Captain (Sri Lanka Army General Service 
Corps);

Lady Officer Cadet Jayalath Gunasekara Mudiyanselage 
Rumesha Peshini Jayathilaka Kumarihami - Captain (Sri 
Lanka Army General Service Corps);

Lady Officer Cadet Kariya Wasam Hetti Gamage 
Dharshila Dewindi - Captain (Sri Lanka Army General 
Service Corps)

Lady Officer Cadet Wijekoon Mudiyanselage Maheshika 
Kumari Wijekoon - Captain (Sri Lanka Army General 
Service Corps)

Lady Officer Cadet Duwage Dona Nuwanthi Rodrigo - 
Captain (Sri Lanka Army General Service Corps);
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Lady Officer Cadet Wijekoon Mudiyanselage Samuditha 
Shamini Wijekoon - Lieutenant (Sri Lanka Army General 
Service Corps);

Officer Cadet Suriya Arachchige Lasantha Darshana 
Kumara - Lieutenant (Sri Lanka Army General Service 
Corps);

Lady Officer Cadet Mahamendige Lihiri Nawanshika 
Mendis - Lieutenant (Sri Lanka Engineers);

Officer Cadet Weraduwage Buddika Lasantha 
Weraduwa - Lieutenant (Sri Lanka Army General Service 
Corps);

Officer Cadet Nalawanamanage Amila Sankalpana 
Senarathna - Lieutenant (Sri Lanka Engineers);

Officer Cadet Widana Rallage Kalana Themiya Bandara 
- Lieutenant (Sri Lanka Engineers);

Officer Cadet Yatibahu Mudalige Kawinda Perera - 
Lieutenant (Sri Lanka Engineers).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
08th December, 2020.

03-121/24

 
No. 232 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/4T/21 (01).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Promotions approved by His Excellency The 
President

The undermentioned Officers are promoted to the rank 
of Temporary Air Commodore with effect from the dates 
mentioned against their names:

	 Substantive Group Captain Kankanamge Chandana 
Geethapriya (01817) AFC	01.01.2021;
	 Substantive Group Captain Kahingala Iresh Sumedha  
De Silva (01816) AFC 02.01.2021;
	 Substantive Group Captain Kankanamalage Manoaj 
Kumara Keppetipola (01822) Admin 03.01.2021;

	 Substantive Group Captain Thushara Indunil 
Fernando (01736) Log 04.01.2021;
	 Substantive Group Captain Makawitage Jude Ronnie 
Perera (01751) E/Eng 05.01.2021;
	 Substantive Group Captain Palpola Loku Liyanage 
Chandima Subhashana Alwis (01798) Tech/Eng 06.01.2021;
	 Substantive Group Captain Padman Nishantha De 
Costa	 (01879) Provost 07.01.2021;
	 Substantive Group Captain Varuna Thushara 
Sampath	 Sirimanne (01880) Admin  08.01.2021;
	 Substantive Group Captain Balasuriya Arachchilage 
Mohan Princely Balasuriya (01815) Ad/Regt 09.01.2021;
	 Substantive Group Captain Raigama Acharige Don 
Thushara Mahesh Weerarathna (02033) GD/P 01.03.2021;

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc Mphil,
	 General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
02nd February, 2021.

03-36/1

No. 233 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/04/21/(01).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Promotions approved by His Excellency The 
President

The undermentioned Officers are promoted to the rank 
of Substantive Air Commodore with effect from the dates 
mentioned against their names.

	T emporary Air Commodore Walimuni Kumudu 
Mendis Weerasekara (03220) Dental 01.01.2021;
	T emporary Air Commodore Vasu Bandu Edirisinghe 
(01848) Gd/P 01.01.2021;
	T emporary Air Commodore Lasitha Harshakumara 
Sumanaweera (01849) Gd/P 01.02.2021;
	T emporary Air Commodore Ponnamperumage Suresh 
Noel Fernando (01664) Ad/Regt 01.03.2021;
	T emporary Air Commodore Senaka Nishantha 
Fernandopulle (01734) Ad/Regt 02.03.2021;	
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	T emporary Air Commodore	 Muditha Piyankara 
Ariyadasa Mahawattage (01743) Tech/Eng 03.03.2021.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc Mphil,
	 General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
01st February, 2021.

03-36/2

No. 234 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/3T/21 (01).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Promotions approved by His Excellency The 
President

The undermentioned Officers are promoted to the rank 
of Temporary Group Captain with effect from the dates 
mentioned against their names:

	 Substantive Wing Commander Kalapuge Dona 
Shanthini Gunawardena (02064) Dental 01.01.2021;
	 Substantive Wing Commander Sanoj Ruchira 
Jayaratne (02236) Gd/P 01.01.2021;
	 Substantive Wing Commander Panangala Liyanage 
Pradeep Jayashantha (02000) Dental 02.01.2021;
	 Substantive Wing Commander Randeniya Mudalige 
Laxman Randeniya (02109) Log 03.01.2021;
	 Substantive Wing Commander Imaduwa Wickrama 
Arachchige Duminda Sudarshana Wickramarachchi 
(02023) Ops Air 04.01.2021
	 Substantive Wing Commander Biyanwila 
Kankanamalage Dayan Manjula Sumanasekara (02020) 
Tech/Eng 05.01.2021;
	 Substantive Wing Commander Malitha Srinath 
Kumarage (02118) Tech/Eng 06.01.2021
	 Substantive Wing Commander Liyana Mudiyanselage 
Chamila Buddika Nissanka (02148) Tech/Eng 07.01.2021;
	 Substantive Wing Commander Sawsiri Gedara 
Nishantha Udaya Kumara Wickramasinghe (02051) Log 
08.01.2021;
	 Substantive Wing Commander Panduwawala 
Kankanamalage Chandra Dinesh Panduwawala (02056) 
Admin 09.01.2021;

	 Substantive Wing Commander Sherika Aengalee 
Samarasinghe (02342) Medical 10.01.2021;
	 Substantive Wing Commander Sampath Viranga 
Premawardana (02053) Log 11.01.2021;
	 Substantive Wing Commander Millaniyage Chaminda 
Peiris	(02060) Ops Air 12.01.2021;
	 Substantive Wing Commander Muhandiram 
Hanthana Mudiyanselage Thushara Chaminda Kumara 
Bandara (02024) Ops Air 13.01.2021;
	 Substantive Wing Commander Don Nalin Sumedha 
Halahakoon (02063) Ops Air 14.01.2021;
	 Substantive Wing Commander Rajapaksha 
Pathiranage Don Malith Ranrajeewana (02058) Ad/Regt 
15.01.2021; 
	 Substantive Wing Commander Herath  Mudiyanselage 
Chaminda Herath (02057) Ad/Regt 16.01.2021;
	 Substantive Wing Commander Weeriyawantha 
Mudiyanselage Ananda Kumarasiri (02094) Ad/Regt 
17.01.2021;

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc Mphil,
	 General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

01st February, 2021.

03-36/3

No. 235 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/03/21 (01).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Promotions approved by His Excellency The 
President

The undermentioned Officers are promoted to the rank 
of Substantive Group Captain with effect from the dates 
mentioned against their names.

	T emporary Group Captain Chandimal Jayapath 
hettiarachchi (01953) Tech/Eng 01.01.2021;
	T emporary Group Captain Asitha Hettiarachchi 
(01933)	IT  Eng 01.02.2021;
	T emporary Group Captain Chandrika Visna 
Kadawarage (01915) Dental 01.03.2021;
	T emporary Group Captain Weerasekara 
Arachchilage Samantha Bandara Weerasekara (01885) 
Admin 01.03.2021;
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	 Temporary Group Captain Ramajeyam Ramalingam 
(02107) Afc 01.03.2021;
	T emporary Group Captain Bimal Sanjeewa De Silva 
Weerawardena (02036) Log 01.03.2021;
	T emporary Group Captain Uditha Chaminda Jayanath 
Piyasena (02040) Tech/Eng 01.03.2021;
	T emporary Group Captain Thellambura Vithanage 
Sujeewa Shiromani Alwis	 (02154) Medical 01.03.2021;
	T emporary Group Captain Warnasooriya 
Mudiyanselage Ananda Warnasooriya (01943) E/Eng 
01.03.2021;
	T emporary Group Captain Prabhath Chaminda 
Dissanayake (01952) Ops Air 01.03.2021;
	T emporary Group Captain Katipe Kankanamge 
Subash Chaminda Jayathilaka (01882) Admin 02.03.2021;
	T emporary Group Captain Vidana Gamage Girimewan 
Buddhika Piyasiri (01909) Ad/Regt 02.03.2021;
	T emporary Group Captain Jayasinghe Arachchige 
Champika Priyadarshanie Weerasooriya (01998) Dental 
02.03.2021;
	T emporary Group Captain Abeysinghe 
Kaluarachchige Kolitha Rohan Abeysinghe (02030) Tech/
Eng 02.03.2021;
	T emporary Group Captain Merennage Thusith 
Nandika Salgado (01951) Ops Air 02.03.2021;
	T emporary Group Captain Warnakula Patabendige 
Amal Hemantha Perera (02117) Gd/P 02.03.2021;
	 Temporary Group Captain Dassanayake 
Mudiyanselage Rukman Dassanayake (01908) Ad/Regt
	T emporary Group Captain Shanika Dilrukshi 
Wathugala Athaudage (03379) Afc 03.03.2021;
	T emporary Group Captain Nadun Asiri Gallage 
(02029)	 Admin 03.03.2021;
	T emporary Group Captain Chathura Chinthaka 
Morakanda Gamage (02039) Tech/Eng 03.03.2021;
	T emporary Group Captain Gardiyawasam 
Pussawelage Nilantha Chaminda Piyasena (01985) Ad/
Regt 04.03.2021.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc Mphil,
	 General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
01st February, 2021.

03-36/4

No. 236 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/RET/21 (02).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency The 
President

The undermentioned Officer retires from the Sri Lanka Air 
Force with effect from 01st April, 2021.

Wing Commander Herath Mudiyanselage Chelaka 
Bandara Herath (01958) - Logistics.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc MPhil,
	 General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
25th January, 2021.

03-36/5

No. 237 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/RET/21 (01).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency The 
President

The undermentioned Officer retires from the Sri Lanka Air 
Force with effect from 05th April, 2021.

Wing Commander Sinhalage Pradeep Sooriya Kumara 
Meddegoda (02223) - Administrative Regiment.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc Mphil,
	 General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

25th January, 2021.

03-36/6
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No. 238 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/RET/21 (04).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency The 
President

The undermentioned Officer retires from the Sri Lanka Air 
Force with effect from 01st May, 2021.

Wing Commander Sisitha Nuwan Jayawickrama (02309) 
- Administrative.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc Mphil,
	 General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
25th January, 2021.

03-36/7

No. 239 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/2T/21/(01).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Promotions approved by His Excellency The 
President

The undermentioned Officers are promoted to the rank of 
Temporary Wing Commander with effect from the dates 
mentioned against their names.

Substantive Squadron Leader Kapuseekkuge Prasanna 
Chandima Fernando (02646) - Medical 01.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Mohamed Thouwfeek 
Mohamed Safrask (02361) - Ad/Regt 01.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Kumudu Kumari 
Hewanayake (02662) - Dental 01.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Morawakage Nirosh 
Sanjaya Fernando (02461) - E/Eng 01.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Rajapaksha Rajakaruna 
Wijekoon Wasala Mudiyanse Ralahamilage Ruwan 
Priyadarshana Halangoda (02634) - Med/Psych 
01.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Wijesinghe Jayathilakage 
Nandana  Sumanasinghe (02689) Ad/Vet 01.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Don Nimantha 
Nallaperuma Abewickrama Jayathilaka (02437) Log 
01.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Anil Nishantha 
Hathurusinghe (02482) Afc 01.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Gallena Watte Rukshan 
Dhanushaka Premachandra (02443) Tech/Eng 01.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Eranda Mahesh 
Kothalawala (02532) Provost 01.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Senarathne Mudalige 
Krishan Gunarathne (02542) Ops Air 01.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Wijenayaka Arachchilage 
Buddhi Chinthaka Rupasinghe (02521) Admin/Audit 
01.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Thammahetti Mudalige 
Nalin Sanjeewa Peiris (02550) Admin 01.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Senanayake Mohotti 
Mudiyanselage Mahesh Malinga Senanayake (02570)	
Gd/P 01.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Prasad Indika 
Samaraweera (03825) Ad/Legal 01.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Viranga Prathibha 
Samarasingha Gunasekara (02480) IT Eng 01.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Hissella Kankanamalage 
Ranjan Rathnasena (V/0463) Ad/Edu 01.01.2021;	

Substantive Squadron Leader Shiran Chaminda 
Rajakaruna (02645) Medical 02.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Wickrama Arachchige 
Prabhath Manjula Wickramaarachchi (02362) Ad/Regt 
02.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Ekanayake Mudiyanselage 
Chandana Sugathsiri Ekanayake (02632) Med/Psych 
02.01.2021;	

Substantive Squadron Leader Upul Priyantha Sethunga 
(02688)	 Ad/Vet 02.01.2021;	

Substantive Squadron Leader Herath Mudiyanselage 
Thushara Kelum Kumara Herath (02436) E/Eng 
02.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Ashan Daminda 
Karunadasa (02478) Afc 02.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Ganegoda Ranasinghe 
Arachchilage Prasad Chanaka Lasantha Hewapathirana 
(02524) Tech/Eng 02.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Ilankoon Arachchilage 
Chamith Janaka Ilankoon	(02529) Admin 02.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Habaraduwe Godeliyanage 
Kelum Harindra Rupasinghe (02494) Ops Air 02.01.2021

Substantive Squadron Leader Samantha 
Maddumasuriya	 (02644)	 Medical	03.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Konara Mudiyanselage 
Kanishka Bandara Jayasekara (02366) Ad/Regt 
03.01.2021;
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Substantive Squadron Leader Gallage Danushka 
Prasad Premadasa (02526) Tech/Eng 03.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Maheepala Mudalige 
Charith Sajeeva Maheepala (02528) E/Eng 03.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Don Rasika Tharanga 
Mallawaarachchi (02543) Ops Air	03.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Ediriweera Gamage Gayan 
Lankanath (02739) Afc 03.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Hureegolla Gedara 
Nandika Priyadharshana Hureegolla (02549) Admin 
03.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Anthony Ruwan 
Goonewardena (02643) Medical 04.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Don Lankanatha Nalin 
Gajendra Bentharaarachchi (02413) Ad/Regt 04.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Dissanayake Achchillage 
Hemantha Ruwan Dissanayake (02547) Afc 04.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Sakalasooriya Arachchige 
Danush Lalinda Sri Perera (02492) Ops Air 04.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Francisku Hettige Amila 
Suranjan  Silva (02551) Admin 04.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Asanka Chandimal 
Wijesinghe (02592) E/Eng 04.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Nilanga Malaka Waruna 
Vanderputt (02647) Medical 05.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Wickramasinghe 
Mudiyanselage Dishantha Tennakoon Bandara (02320) 
Ad/Regt 05.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Senarathna 
Mudiyanselage Nisanga Dilshan Senarathna (02682) 
Tech/Eng 05.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Rajakaruna Athapaththu 
Mudiyanselage Prasan Ranga Dasanayake (02530) Admin 
05.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Dinesha Tharanganie 
Hewawasam (03838) Afc 05.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Premanayake 
Godakandage Upul Nishantha Dharmapala (02581) Ops 
Air 05.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Withanage Devakumar 
Pradeep Fernando (02435) Admin 06.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Herath Mudiyanselage 
Madhusha Bhanuka Manju Sri Bandara (02432) Ad/Regt 
06.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Charith Chathuranga 
Thalpe Gamage (02608) Tech/Eng 06.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Ahalape Hewage Kumudu 
Kumara Pathmadewa (02741) Afc 06.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Paththage Sudesh 
Pushpakumara (02408) Ad/Regt 07.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Jauffer Mohamed Amaan 
(02463) Admin 07.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Bethmage Gayan 
Wasantha Perera (02457) Afc 07.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Kadawathgama 
Ethugalage Naveen Dhanushka Gunaratne (02609) Tech/
Eng 07.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Wijekoon Mudiyanselage 
Prasad Chinthaka Wijekoon (02414) Ad/Regt 08.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Kankanam Liyana 
Pathiranage Vithad Dammika (02428) Tech/Eng 
08.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Kattarama Gedara 
Janaka Shantha Kumara (02561) Afc 08.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Abediwakara Daham 
Rangana Wickramarathne (02469) Ad/Regt 09.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Raveen Thushara 
Liyanaarachchi (02527) Tech/Eng 09.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Medawatte 
Duggannaralalage Parackrama Bandara Medawatta 
(02470)	 Ad/Regt 10.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Kulathunga 
Mudiyanselage Prasad Sanjeewa Kulathunga (02473) Ad/ 
Regt 11.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Metiviliye Acharige 
Vijitha Gomis (02475) Ad/Regt 12.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Ritigala Mudiyanselage 
Sumedha Niroshan Ritigala (02391) Ad/Regt 13.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Hagili Kankanamalage 
Yohan Udara Somawansa (02534) Ad/Regt 14.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Polwaththa Gallage 
Mohan Tiroshana (02537) Ad/Regt 15.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Neluwa Liyanage Umesh 
Arjuna Lakpriya Liyanage (02535) Ad/Regt 16.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Henda Hewa Chaminda 
Kumara De Silva (02415 Ad/Regt 17.01.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Tuan Mohamed Ershad 
Mutaliph (02604) Gd/P 01.02.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Hitihamillage Senaka 
Pubudu Bandara Kuragamuwa (02605) Gd/P 01.03.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Jayalath Pathiranage 
Ajith Kumara (02441) Log 01.04.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Marasinghe Arachchilage 
Dumidu Darshana Marasinghe (02588) Gd/P 01.04.2021;

Substantive Squadron Leader Arjuna Fernandopulle 
(02572) Gd/P 02.04.2021.

 
By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne (Retd),
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc Mphil,
	 General Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
01st February, 2021.

03-36/8
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No. 240 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/02/21/(01).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Promotions approved by His Excellency The 
President

The Undermentioned Officers are promoted to the rank of 
Substantive Wing Commander with effect from the dates 
mentioned against their names.

	Temporary Wing Commander Gihan Padmashantha 
Dissanayake (02285) Ad/Regt 01.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Rajitha Lakmal 
Munasinghe (02661) Dental 01.01.2021;

	Temporary Wing Commander Edirisuriya Mohottige 
Tharanga Dhanushaka De Seram (02371) Ops Air 
01.01.2021;

	Temporary Wing Commander Araddha Vipassaka 
Wijekoon (02393) E/Eng 01.01.2021;

	Temporary Wing Commander Lekamalage Prasanna 
Dhammika Anurasiri (02417) Afc 01.01.2021;

	Temporary Wing Commander Kumarage Gayan 
Roshantha Indika Perera	 (02484)	 Gd/P 01.01.2021;

	Temporary Wing Commander Mujitha Kumara 
Hewapathirana (02464) Provost 01.01.2021;

	Temporary Wing Commander Kottawa Sameera 
Kumara Duminda Gamage (02381)	Tech/Eng 01.01.2021;

	Temporary Wing Commander Ranasinghe Arachchige 
Don Sadun Jinendra Ranasinghe (02438) Admin 
01.01.2021;

	Temporary Wing Commander Konara Mudiyanselage 
Henry Jinarathna (02687)	Ad/Vet 01.01.2021;

	Temporary Wing Commander Katugampalage Dona 
Harshani Chandrika Katugampala (02742) Ad/Legal 
01.01.2021;

	Temporary Wing Commander Ruwan Sujatha Kankani 
Gamage	(02228)	 Ops Air	 02.01.2021;

	Temporary Wing Commander Buddika Prasad 
Widanapathirana	(02368)	 Ad/Regt	02.01.2021;

	Temporary Wing Commander Heendeni Vidana 
Ralalage Meuna Heendeniya (02396) E/Eng 02.01.2021;

	Temporary Wing Commander Withanage Jude Channa 
Devandara (02403) Admin 02.01.2021;

	Temporary Wing Commander Kirikamkanamge Kelum 
Chamara Perera (02410) Provost 02.01.2021; 

Temporary Wing Commander Jayasuriya Mudiyanselage 
Nadun Sameera Atapattu (02377) Log 02.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Nilenthi Kapila Pandula 
Kumara De Silva	(02418)	 Afc 02.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Asiri Rangana Pathirage 
(02485)	 Gd/P 02.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Lekamwasam Sampath 
Priyadarshana Siriwardhana (02458) Tech/Eng 02.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Wickramarachchi 
Lekamge Indika Udayakumara (02192) Ad/Regt 03.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Anthingna Marakkala 
Yasanka Chinthana De Silva (02375) Ops Air 03.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Thalaththeni 
Mohottalage Channa Kumara Perera (02395) E/Eng 
03.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Hewage Erosh Ivan 
Fernando (02420) Afc 03.01.2021;

 Temporary Wing Commander Lasitha Yasanga 
Wicrama Senevirathne (02486) Gd/P 03.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Manimel Wadu Sajith 
Mohan Thilakarathne (02466) Admin 03.01.2021;

 Temporary Wing Commander Karunamunige Mangala 
Bandara Mendis	 (02476) Provost 03.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Senavirathne Deshappriya 
Dewamitta Jinendra Ranasinghe (02254) Ad/Regt 
04.01.2021;	

Temporary Wing Commander Ramukkanage Janaka 
Priyashantha (02354) Log 04.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Weerasooriya 
Mudiyanselage Thalakumbura Gedara Prabath Susantha 
Wijekoon (02483) Gd/P 04.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Wittachchi Koralalage 
Don Chamara Eric Adikaram (02459) E/Eng 04.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Thenuwara Hennadige 
Ishan Saranga Chandrasiri (02465) Admin 04.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Kariyapperuma 
Atukoralage Don Dumidu Tilak Kariyapperuma (02519) 
Afc 04.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Gayathri Kaushalya 
Waduge (Ow/01081) Ops Air 04.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Ranathunga Arachchige 
Yasintha Dilkushan Ranathunga (02221) Ad/Regt 
05.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Heenkenda Mudiyanselage 
Dhananjaya Bandara Heenkenda (02384) Log 05.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Pulahinge Don 
Thushantha  Rodrigo (02460) E/Eng 05.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Kanakaratne 
Mudiyanselage Dilshath Bandara Kanakaratne (02439) 
Tech/Eng 05.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Horawala Vithanage 
Gemunu	 Mahanama (02442) Gd/P	05.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Rasika Udaya 
Kumaragama (02447) Admin 05.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Jayantha Chanaka 
Manawadu (02289) Ad/Regt 06.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Kirakankanamge Janaka 
Suresh Fernando (02358) Admin 06.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Rathnayake 
Mudiyanselage Nuwan Sanjeewa Rathnayake (02400) Log 
06.01.2021;
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Temporary Wing Commander Amila Prasanga   
Rathgamage (02390) Tech/Eng 06.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Kodikarage Don Warna 
Kanchana Kodikara (02440) Gd/P 06.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Don Chandana 
Pushpakumara Munasinghe (02333) Ad/Regt 07.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander	 Udukuruppu Rallage 
Nalin Dammika Bandara (02397) Log 07.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Alahakoon Arachchilage 
Gedera Susantha Alahakoon (02522) Gd/P 07.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Chanaka Nilantha 
Karawita (02365)	 Ad/Regt	08.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Koswatte Gedara 
Buddhika Manju Sri Kularathne (02455) Log 08.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Mayakaduwa Gamage 
Hirantha De Silva (02523) Gd/P 08.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Gangoda Gamage Iranga 
Dileepa Viraj (02448) Tech/Eng 08.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Amila Sumal 
Karunarathna (02367) Ad/Regt 09.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Nanayakkarage Don 
Ranjula Chanaka Perera (02564) Gd/P 09.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Anwarama Pahalagedhara 
Upul Rohana Dharmasiri (02411) Ad/Regt 10.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Saranga Dilan Gordon 
(02569) Gd/P 10.01.2021

Temporary Wing Commander Chamara nuwan 
Jayasooriya (02409) Ad/Regt 11.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Herath Mudiyanselage 
Muditha Samarakoon (02565) Gd/P 11.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Kaluthanthri 
Arachchilage Indika Anuruddha Kaluthanthriarachchi 
(02265) Ad/Regt	 12.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander	 Kotigalage Shyam 
Upul Chrishantha Ranasinghe (02493) Gd/P 12.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Madduma Dodangodage 
Ashan Dodangoda (02430) Gd/P 13.01.2021;

Temporary Wing Commander Amarakoon 
Mudiyanselage Sarath Kumara Amarakoon (02431) Log 
02.03.2021.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc Mphil,
	 General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
01st February, 2021.

03-36/9

No. 241 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/RET/21 (03).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency The 
President

The undermentioned Officer retires from the Sri Lanka Air 
Force with effect from 05th April, 2021.

Squadron Leader Bamunu Pathirannehelage Upul 
Dammika Bandara Rajapathirana (02095) - Administrative 
Regiment.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc Mphil,
	 General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

25th January, 2021.

03-36/10

No. 242 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/1T/21/(01).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Promotions approved by His Excellency The 
President

The undermentioned Officers are promoted to the rank 
of Temporary Squadron Leader with effect from the dates 
mentioned against their names.

Flight Lieutenant Dodampahalage Manjula 
Pushpakumara Fernando (02809) Tech/Eng 19.12.2020;

Flight Lieutenant Opatha Kankanamalage Chamin 
Indika Perera (03201) IT/Eng 01.01.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Iddamalgodage Amila Chathuranga 
Dassanayake (03048) Admin 01.01.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Pattiya Pathirathnanahalage Rajitha 
Niroshan Peiris (03050) Log 01.01.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Rukshan Duminda Hewage (03090) 
Log 01.01.2021;
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Flight Lieutenant Athukoralage Don Nishan 
Chathuranga (03387) Log 01.01.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Ranaweera Rathna Arachchige Sunith 
Dilina Ranaweera (03097) Ad/Regt 03.01.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Opanayakage Nishantha Kumar 
Opanayake (03110) Admin 03.01.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Metaramba Paragahawaththage 
Gihan Vimukthi Metaramba Paragahawaththa (03046) 
Admin 01.02.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Wanniarachchige Harshana Prasad 
Silva (03079) Admin 01.02.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Gampolaya Waththe Nalaka 
Sadaruwan Wickramasinghe (03067) Admin 01.02.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Ranasinghe Hewage Dilan Rasantha 
Hemachandra (03217) Afc 25.02.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Jayamanna Mohottige Don Maneesha 
Neyomal Dushmantha Jayamanna (03373) Log 01.03.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Heenatigala Pathiranage Rayan 
Tharaka Pathirana (03386) Log 15.03.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Godigamuwa Acharige Harsha 
Sandaruwan Godigamuwa	(03222)	 E/Eng 23.03.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Baththana Mudiyanselage Heshini 
Danushka Kumari Abeyrathne (Ow/01091) Log 
23.03.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Hambange Dona Pavithra Prabhavi 
Dayananda (Ow/01092) Admin 23.03.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Munadeniya Enderage Tharuka 
Suwarni Nishara Munadeniya (Ow/01093) Log 23.03.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Adikari Arachchige Manuja 
Madushan Adikari (03223) Admin 23.03.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Welikadage Sandun Dhanushka 
Boteju (03225) Ad/Legal 23.03.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Kodippilige Hashan Sharindu 
Kodippilige (03227) E/Eng 23.03.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Dissanayakelage Buddhika Thiyak 
Eranga Dissanayake (03228) Admin 23.03.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Palawatta Mudiyanselage Shamal 
Chathuranga Palawatta (03229) E/Eng 23.03.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Loku Badathuruge Pubudith Gimhana 
Ariyadasa (03230) E/Eng 23.03.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Vijendra Gamlathlage Gihan 
Chathuranga Polpitiya (03231) Ad/Legal 23.03.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Hapuarachchige Sumoda Kalpika 
Navodya Hapuarachchi (03232) Admin 23.03.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Ekanayake Mudiyanselage Chamara 
Suranga Ekanayaka (03361) Admin 28.03.2021;

Flight Lieutenant Kristhombu Gurunnanselage Sameera 
Chanaka Mithrananda (03362) Admin 28.03.2021.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc Mphil,
	 General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
01st February, 2021.

03-36/11	

No. 243 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/01/21/(01).

SRI  LANKA  volunteer Air  force

Promotion approved by His Excellency The 
President

The undermentioned Volunteer Officer is promoted to the 
rank of Substantive Squadron Leader with effect from the 
date mentioned against his name.

Temporary Squadron Leader Thwan Sameer Saino 
(V/0510) - Ad/Edu 01.01.2021.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne WWV RWP 
	 RSP USP ndc psc Mphil,
	 General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

01st February, 2021.

03-36/12
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No. 244 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/01/21/(02).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Promotions approved by His Excellency The 
President

The undermentioned Officers are promoted to the rank of 
Substantive Squadron Leader with effect from the dates 
mentioned against their names.

Temporary Squadron Leader Ekanayake Mudiyanselage 
Upula Shameera Bandara (02709) Gd/P 01.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Dalada Wattage Archana 
Sameera Wimalaguna Daladawatta (03363) Afc 
11.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Embilla Waththe Gedara 
niluka Wilashinie (03364) Afc 11.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Naullage Gayan Ruwan 
Kumara Naullage (03370) Ad/Vet 18.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Rammuthu Praneeth 
Suranga Silva (02848) Log 19.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Gabadage Don Dinindu 
Praveen Senarathne (02851) Gd/P 19.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Ranneththige Chanaka 
Nuwan Ranneththi (02852) Ad/Regt 19.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Ganehi Achchi 
Kankanamalage Manoj Priyantha Chandralal (02853) 
Ops Air 19.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Rawatthe Widane 
Kankanamge Supun Buddika Rawatthe (02855) Log 
19.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Suraj Thilina Saunders 
(02856) Gd/P 19.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Samith Udara Kodikara 
(02857)	 Gd/P 19.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Amila niroshan  
Karunarathne (02858) Ops Air 19.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Hetti Arachchige Prabath 
Kanchana Fernando (02860) Ad/Regt 19.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Darshana Madushan 
Kumara Gamage	(02861) Ad/Regt 19.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Robolge Gangana 
Chandrashan Lenora (02862) Ops Air 19.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Ranaweera Rathnathilaka 
Palihana Walauwe Rukshan Thilakarathne (02864) Gd/P 
19.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Walimunige Chathima 
Maduranga Dayarathne (02865) Gd/P 19.01.2021;	

Temporary Squadron Leader Hetti Arachchige Shashika 
Madushanka Hettiarachchi (02870) Log 19.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Maharage Nimendra 
Ramesh Sylvester Gunawardane (02871) Gd/P 19.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Warnakula Patabendige 
Nuran Amila Buddhika Barnad Perera (02875) Gd/P 
19.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Nadun Umayanga 
Deneththi (02876) Gd/P 19.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Shanaka Dulshan Menikge 
(02879)	 Gd/P 19.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Manikarachchige Arjuna 
Udantha Manikarachchi (02880) Gd/P 19.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Udukalage Dhammika 
Ariyasena (02427) Ops Air 20.01.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Eranda Milan Attanayake 
(02678)	 Ad/Regt	01.02.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Waharaka Dewage Viraj 
Lakmal	 (02810)	 Tech/Eng 09.02.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Arawgoda Mudalige Don 
Hasitha Ramesh (02814) Tech/Eng 09.02.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Munasinghe Arachchige 
Damith Nuwan Indunil (02816) Tech/Eng 09.02.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Athukorallage 
Subhashana Athukorala (02818) Tech/Eng 09.02.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Dissanayaka 
Mudiyanselage Dhanushka Chandramal Jayaratna 
(02866) Ad/Regt 19.02.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Vidana Arachchige Prasad 
Tharanga Vidana Arachchi (03365) Afc 15.03.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Makawitage Dihan Romesh 
Perera (02849) Gd/P 19.03.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Amarasinghe Arachchige 
Ruwan Lakshan Jayatissa (02859) Gd/P 19.03.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Weerasinghe 
Mudiyanselage Amila Dinesh Weerasinghe (02873) Gd/P 
19.03.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Withanage Nuwan 
Indeewara Yalagama (02797) Tech/Eng 24.03.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Benthota Samith Gamage 
(02798)	T ech/Eng 24.03.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Kukule Viyannalage 
Nirudaka Thilakarathne (02799) Tech/Eng 24.03.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Nimesh Kasun 
Abeywardana (02800) Tech/Eng 24.03.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Kariyawasam Mathiggaha 
Gamage Lakmal Jayasuriya (02801) Tech/Eng 24.03.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Weerakoon Mudiyanselage 
Mogeeth Chathuranga Weerakoon (02802) Gd/P 
24.03.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Prageeth Kalum Gamage 
(02803)	 Log 24.03.2021;
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Temporary Squadron Leader Wijekoon Mudiyanselage 
Chanaka Harsha Bandara (02804) Log 24.03.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Baththana Ralalage 
Nuwan Senarath Mudiyanse Medagama (02863) Gd/P 
19.04.2021;

Temporary Squadron Leader Liyana Ralalage Thilanka 
Prabhath Bandara Senevirathna (02881) Ad/Regt 
19.04.2021.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP  RSP USP ndc psc Mphil,
	 General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

01st February, 2021.

03-36/13

No. 245 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/10/21/(01).

SRI  LANKA  Air  force

Promotion approved by His Excellency The 
President

The undermentioned Officer is promoted to the rank of 
Substantive Squadron Leader with effect from the date 
stated against her name.

Flight Lieutenant Kirihennadige Udani Narmada 
Jayalath (03593) - Dental 28.03.2021.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP  RSP USP ndc psc Mphil,
	 General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
01st February, 2021.

03-36/14

No. 246 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/PRO/02/21/(02).

SRI  LANKA  volunteer Air  force

Promotion approved by His Excellency The 
President

The undermentioned Volunteer Officer is promoted to the 
rank of Substantive Wing Commander with effect from the 
date mentioned against his name.

Temporary Wing Commander Chaminda Sampath 
Degambada (V/0507) - Tech/Eng 04.01.2021.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP  RSP USP ndc psc Mphil,
	 General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
01st February, 2021.

03-36/15

No. 247 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/05/AF/Com/2021/(01).

SRI  LANKA  volunteer Air  force

Commissioning approved by His Excellency The 
President

HIS Excellency the President has pleased to approve the 
Commissioning of undermentioned Officers in the rank 
mentioned before their names in the Sri Lanka Volunteer Air 
Force with effect from the dates stated against their names 
and their posting to the Branch of the Service with effect 
from the same date.

Flying Officer Pincha Dewage Shyamika Harshana 
Wijerathna (V/0595) - Tech/Eng 15.01.2020;

Flying Officer Liyana Pedige Salinda Amarasiri 
(V/0594) - Ad/Edu 08.01.2019.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	K amal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP  RSP USP ndc psc Mphil,
	 General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
01st February, 2021.

03-36/16
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Appointments &c., by the Cabinet of Ministers
No. 248 of 2021

Appointment

It is hereby notified that, in terms of Article 55 (2) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka, 
the Cabinet of Ministers has appointed Mr. H. M. W. C. Bandara, to the post of Commissioner General of Inland Revenue, 
with effect from 04th December, 2020.

By order of the Cabinet of Ministers,

	 W. M. D. J. Fernando,
	 Secretary to the Cabinet of Ministers.

15th February, 2021.

03-180 

registrar  general’s  department

My No.: RG/NB/11/2/05/2021/msgq$ie.

Notice under the land registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120)

	 01.	I  hereby give notice under section 04 of the land registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land 
Register folios, particulars of which appear in column 1 of the schedule hereto, affecting the Land described in 
column 2, there of which have been found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provincial folios 
and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of which are shown in column 3 of the said schedule.

	 02.	T he Provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested therein at the office of the 
Registrar of Lands, Delkanda between 05.02.2021 to 19.02.2021, during the hours of 10.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m. on all 
working days.

	 03.	 Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the 
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any 
particulars alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing 
addressed to the undersigned which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the office of the Registrar 
General not later than 26.03.2021. The matter in respect of which the objection or claim is made must be clearly and 
fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence 
relies upon the support of it.

	 W. M. M. B. Weerasekara,
	 Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department,
No. 234/A3,
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha, Koswatta,
Battaramulla.

Government Notifications
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Schedule

	 Particulars of Damaged	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
 Folios of the Land Registers

Folio No. 279 of volume 1353 of All that allotment of land depicted as	 01. Deed of Transfers No. 973 written and
Division M of the Land Registry		 Lot C in Plan No. 367 dated		 attested by W. W. B. M. Mandis,
Delkanda in Colombo District.		 13.08.1982 made by D. P. Liyanage, Notary Public on 08.05.1991.

Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called ‘Wadawasam Gamage watta’ 
situated at Wewala in the Palle Pattu 
Salpiti Korale in the District of 
Colombo, Western Province and 
bounded on the,		

North by   	: The land of K. C. Perera; 
East by 	 :	The land of K. C. Perera;
South by	 :	Gamsabha Road;
West by	 :	Lot No. B;
Extent by	 :	00A., 00R., 10P.

03-126

registrar  general’s  department

My No.: RG/NB/11/2/82/2020/msgq$ie.

Notice under the land registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120)

01.	I  hereby give notice under section 04 of the land registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land
Register folios, particulars of which appear in column 1 of the schedule hereto, affecting the Land described in
column 2, there of which have been found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provincial folios 
and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of which are shown in column 3 of the said schedule.

02. the Provisional  folio  will  be  opened for inspection  by any person or persons interested there in  at  the office of the    
      Registrar of  Lands, Delkanda  between  05.03.2021 to 19.03.2021, during  the  hours of 10.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m. on all

working days.

03. Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any
particulars alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing
addressed to the undersigned which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the office of the Registrar
General not later than 26.03.2021. The matter in respect of which the objection or claim is made must be clearly and
fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence
relies upon the support of it.

K. G. Dharmathilaka,
Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department,
No. 234/A3,
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
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Battaramulla.
Schedule

	 Particulars of Damaged	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
 Folios of the Land Registers

Folio No. 128 of volume 680 of 	 All that allotments of land depicted as	 01.	 Deed of Transfers No. 4088 written 
Division M of the Land Registry,		  Lot No. 36 and 37 in Plan No. 3473		  and attested by P. D. D. Gunathilaka, 
Delkanda in Colombo District.		  of the land called ‘Moragahakanatta’		  Notary Public on 29.08.1960.		
		  situated at Demaladuwa in the Palle 	
 		  Pattu Salpiti Korale in the District	 02.	 Deed of Gift No. 1269 written and 
		  of Colombo, Western Province and 		  attested by A. A. Karunaratna, Notary
		  bounded on the,		  Public on 17.02.1983.

	 North by   	: Lot 40 of this land; 	 03.		 Deed of Gift No. 5193 written and 
	 East by 	 :	Property of P. D. S. 			  attested by A. A. Karunaratna, Notary
		    Gunasekara;			  Public on 03.05.1992.
	 South by	 :	Lot 38;
	 West by	 :	Lot 40 of this land;
	 Extent by	 :	01A., 01R., 00P.

03-11

Revenue and Expenditure Returns
 Eastern  University,  Sri  Lanka 

 Statement of Financial Performance (Consolidated) For The Year Ended 31st December, 2019

 

 Operating Revenue  2019
Rs.

2018
Rs.

 Recurrent Grant         1,758,959,000         1,477,100,000 

 Net Income / ( Loss ) from other Activities                7,059,895                1,070,359 

 Other Income              43,932,583              20,860,194 
        1,809,951,479         1,499,030,553 

 Financial Assistance to Students            144,252,700            187,037,900 

    1,954,204,179     1,686,068,453 
 Operating Expenses 
 Personal Emoluments         1,388,336,816         1,107,373,273 

 Travelling Expenses                2,922,000                4,473,476 

 Supplies & Consumables              39,352,747              43,369,666 

 Minor Repairs & Maintenance              32,149,524              26,834,397 

 Contractual Services            231,287,934            221,955,061 
 Research & Development                   309,369                   471,567 
 Depreciation & Amortization Expenses            636,201,558            375,764,645 

 Other Operating Expenses              54,671,958              64,352,310 
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 Total Operating Expenses     2,385,231,910     1,844,594,395 

 Surplus / ( Deficit ) from Operating Activities (575,280,431)      (345,563,842)

 Financial Assistance to Students            144,252,700            187,037,900 

 Surplus / ( Deficit ) from Total Activities      (575,280,431)      (345,563,842)

 Extra Ordinary Items 
 ( Write off and Other Adjustments )                  (985,914)                    (27,968)

 Net Surplus / ( Deficit ) for The Period Transferred to General 
Reserve 

     (576,266,345)      (345,591,810)

	 2019	 2018
	 Rs. 	 Rs.

 Statement of Financial Position ( Consolidated ) As at 31st December, 2019 

 Assets 2019  
Rs.

2018  
Rs.

 Non-Current Assets 
 Property, Plant & Equipment 4,306,518,223      4,573,504,638 
 Intangible Assets 39,092,587            43,645,531 
 Investment ( L. T ) 7,553,883              7,451,355 
 Capital Work in Progress 1,029,832,086         524,761,553 

5,382,996,781         5,149,363,077 

 Current Assets 

 Inventories 11,811,451              9,661,200 
 Trade & Other Receivables 645,114,770         631,106,584 

 Investment (S.T) 93,617,929            84,563,384 
 Cash & Cash Equivalents 526,283,714         364,139,196 

1,276,827,865         1,089,470,364 

 Total Assets     6,659,824,647     6,238,833,441 

 Liabilities 
 Current Liabilities 
 Payables 269,360,911         254,248,051 
 Accrued Expenses 28,506,446            40,214,472 
 Lease Obligation (Short Term) 4,558,493 302,425,850              5,107,034            299,569,557 

 Non-current Liabilities 
 Payables 8,942,048              6,799,397 
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 Lease Obligation (Long Term) 7,551,205            12,209,160 
 Provision for Gratuity 454,047,238         215,973,769 
 Restricted Fund 117,601,891            91,765,658 
 Gift & Donation 3,701,178              6,342,684 
 Other Grant 930,310,238         884,691,301 

1,522,153,801         1,217,781,969 
 Total Liabilities 1,824,579,652         1,517,351,526 

 Total Net Assets 
 Accumulated Fund  
( Capital Grant ) 

7,084,853,658      6,388,598,617 

 Obligation Reserve 171,722,251         184,705,820 

 General Reserve (2,536,890,103)    (1,953,331,229)
 Capital Reserve 115,559,188         101,508,707 
 Total Net Assets / Equity 4,835,244,994         4,721,481,915 

 Total Liabilities / Equity
 ( Total Fund Employed ) 

    6,659,824,647     6,238,833,441 

These financial statements have been prepared and presented in compliance with Sri Lanka Public Sector 
Accounting Standards (SLPSAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and in terms of Sections 106 
(i) and 107 (ii) (b) of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 and Section 13 (6) of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971.

Prof. F. C. Ragel,
Accounting Officer,

Vice Chancellor.

A. Pahirathan,
Assistant Accounting Officer,

 Registrar.

M. M. M. Fareez,
Bursar.

	 2019	 2018
	 Rs. 	 Rs.

Eastern University, Sri Lanka

Statement of Cash Flows (Consolidated) For The Year Ended 31st December, 2019

2019
Rs.

2018
Rs.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Surplus / Deficit from Ordinary Activities           (576,266,346)           (345,591,810)

Non- cash Movements
Depreciation             438,875,197             381,815,116 
Amortization             (50,360,275)             (55,868,384)
Prior period adjustments                   (232,636)                       48,167 
Profit on disposable of Assets                               -                     (423,356)
Provision for Gratuity             247,686,636               49,817,914 
Finance Cost on Lease Vehicles                 2,505,497                 3,137,761 
Interest Income                (4,280,980)                (1,804,017)
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Increase / Decrease in Inventories                (2,150,251)                 1,502,168 
Increase / Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables             (14,008,187)                 5,892,107 
Increase / Decrease in Payables               14,564,320             (31,865,553)
Increase/ Decrease in Accrued Expenses             (11,708,025)             (10,012,916)
Gratuity Paid                (9,613,165)                (4,653,837)
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities           35,011,786           (8,006,640)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property Plant and Equipment           (171,888,783)           (668,923,550)
Work in Progress           (505,070,534)             (53,617,063)
Intangible Assets             (11,196,431)             (12,645,867)
Interest Received                 4,280,979                 1,804,017 
Investment                (9,157,075)                (7,274,407)
Sale Proceeds on disposable of Assets                     423,356 
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities       (693,031,843)       (740,233,514)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Restricted Funds and  Grants             825,185,375             917,394,083 
Net Long Term Obligations                (2,515,303)                (3,890,159)
Finance Cost on Lease Vehicle                (2,505,497)                (3,137,761)
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities         820,164,575         910,366,163 

Net Increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents         162,144,518         162,126,009 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the Year             364,139,196             202,013,187 
Cash and cash equivalents at the End of the Year         526,283,714         364,139,196 

	 2019	 2018
	 Rs. 	 Rs.

Eastern University, Sri Lanka

Statement of Changes in Net Assets/ Equity for The Year Ended 31st December, 2019
Rs.

Accumulated 
Fund

Bond 
Obligation 

Reserve

General Reserve Other 
Reserve

Total

Balance as at 31st December, 2017 5,692,915,886 188,269,504 (1,606,717,226) 86,611,119 4,361,079,283 

Surplus/ (Deficit) for the period - - (345,591,810) - (345,591,810)

Other Adjustments - - 48,166 - 48,166 

Increase/ decrease in Reserve - (3,563,684) (1,070,359) 14,897,588 10,263,545 

Additional Contribution 695,682,731 - - - 695,682,731 

Balance as at 31st December, 2018 6,388,598,617 184,705,820 (1,953,331,229) 101,508,707 4,721,481,915 

Surplus/ (Deficit) for the period - - (576,266,346) - (576,266,346)
Other Adjustments - - (232,634) - (232,634)
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Increase /(Decrease) in Reserve - (12,983,569) (7,059,895) 14,050,482 (5,992,982)

Additional Contribution 696,255,041 - - - 696,255,041 

Balance as at 31st December, 2019 7,084,853,658 171,722,251 (2,536,890,104)  115,559,189 4,835,244,994 

	 Rs.
	 Accumulated	 Bond Obligation	 General Other	 Other	 Total
	 Fund	 Reserve	 Reserve	 Reserve

Vice-Chancellor,
Eastern University, Sri Lanka.

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the Eastern University, Sri Lanka for the year ended 
31 December, 2019 in terms of Section 12 of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.

1. Financial Statements 

	 1.1	 Qualified Opinion

		T  he audit of the Financial Statements of the Eastern University , Sri Lanka (“University”) for the year ended 31st 
December, 2019 comprising the statement of financial positions as at 31st December, 2019 and the statement of 
financial performance, statement of changes in net assets and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, was carried out under my 
direction in pursuance of provisions in Article 154(1) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of 
Sri Lanka read in conjunction with Section 107(5) of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 and provisions of the 
National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018. My comments and observations which I consider should be published with the 
Annual Report of the University in terms of Section 108 (1) of the Universities Act appear in this report. My report 
to Parliament in pursuance of provisions in Article 154 (6) of the Constitution will be tabled in due course.

		I  n my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the basis for Qualified Opinion section of my report, 
the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the University as at 31st 
December, 2019, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Sri 
Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards.

	 1.2	 Basis for Qualified Opinion 

	 (a)	T he disclosure relating to the fully depreciated Property, Plant and Equipment of the university as at 31 December 
of the year under review cost of Rs. 468,015,255 and belonging to 20 items, had not been made in the financial 
statements as per section 42 (b) of the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard (SLPSAS) - 7. As well, the 
estimated error of the useful life of those assets had not been corrected according to the requirement of the SLPSAS 
- 3 with respect to show the fair value of those assets in the financial statements. 	

	 (b)	 According to section 72 of the SLPSAS, the land and building are accounted for separately even when they acquired 
together. However, the value of the lands and buildings of the University as at end of the year under review had been 
shown together as Rs. 1,707 million without being shown their values separately in the financial statements. 

	 (c)	 Even though depreciation expenditure for part of the Property, Plant and Equipment of the University for the 
Year under review amounted to Rs. 14,704,390, the depreciation expenditure charged to the statement of financial 
performance for those assets amounted to Rs. 64,735,341. As a result, the deficit for the year under review had been 
overstated by Rs. 50,030,095. 	

	 (d)	 Out of the total cash and cash equivalent balance shown in the cash flow statement amounting to Rs 526,283,741, 
evidence relating to cash and cash equivalents amounting to Rs 3,048,236 had not been made available for audit. 
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	 (e)	 Even though thirteen legal cases had been filed at the courts by the various parties against the university claiming 
compensation amounting to Rs. 504,574,803, the details relating to the contingent liabilities thereon had not been 
disclosed in the financial statements of the year under review as per SLPSAS - 8. 

		I   conducted my audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). My responsibilities, under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 
my report. 1 believe that the audit evidence 1 have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
qualified opinion. 

03-223

Miscellaneous Departmental Notices 
PV 112369.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Open Research (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Open 
Research (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“11.03.2016” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Open Research 
(Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, 
be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office 
and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
15th February, 2021.

03-38

PV 92625.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Emerson Electric Company Lanka (Private) 

Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Emerson Electric Company Lanka (Private) Limited” 

a Company incorporated on “13.11.2013” under the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business 
or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Emerson 
Electric Company Lanka (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
15th February, 2021.

03-39

PV 85599.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Sapphire Capital Group (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Sapphire Capital Group (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “24.04.2012” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
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of three months from this date the name of “Sapphire Capital 
Group (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
15th February, 2021.

03-40

PV 69053.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the 
name of “Greenshadow Nature Hotels (Private) 

Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Greenshadow Nature Hotels (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “03.09.2009” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Greenshadow 
Nature Hotels (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
    February, 2021,

03-41

PV 87795.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Naagaa Builders and Engineering (Private) 

Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Naagaa 
Builders and Engineering (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “23.08.2012” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Naagaa 
Builders and Engineering (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
14th February, 2021,

03-42

PV 62838.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Penthouse Caterers (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Penthouse Caterers (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “28.01.2008” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Penthouse 
Caterers (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to 
the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
15th February, 2021.
03-43
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PV 91849.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Euro Asian Estates (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Euro 
Asian Estates (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated 
on “02.04.2013” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Euro Asian 
Estates (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
15th February, 2021.

03-44

PV 84983.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “VE-Mag Consulting (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that  
“Ve-Mag Consulting (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “20.03.2012” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Ve-Mag 
Consulting (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to 
the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
15th February, 2021,

03-45

PV 00206050.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Uni Laboratory (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that  
“Uni Laboratory (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated 
on “07.11.2018” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Uni Laboratory 
(Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, 
be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office 
and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
14th February, 2021.

03-46

PV 127926.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Every Nation Travels (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Every 
Nation Travels (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“11.12.2017” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Every Nation 
Travels (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, 
be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office 
and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
14th February, 2021,

03-47
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PV 125208.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the 
name of “Kitchen Fresh Delivery Lanka (Private) 

Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Kitchen 
Fresh Delivery Lanka (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “31.08.2017” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Kitchen Fresh 
Delivery Lanka (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
15th February, 2021.

03-48
PV 124882.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Premier Pacific Felicity (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Premier Pacific Felicity (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “22.08.2017” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Premier Pacific 
Felicity (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
15th February, 2021.

03-49

PV 130830.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Nawaloka Legal & Consultancy (Private) 

Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Nawaloka Legal Consultancy (Private) Limited” a 
Company incorporated on “16.03.2018” under the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business 
or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Nawaloka Legal 
Consultancy (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
15th February, 2021.

03-50

PV 112133.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Emark Solutions (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Emark 
Solutions (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“01.03.2016” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Emark Solutions 
(Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, 
be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office 
and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
15th February, 2021.

03-51
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PV 77142.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Venus Manpower (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Venus 
Manpower (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“11.02.2011” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of 
three months from this date the name of “Venus Manpower 
(Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, 
be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office 
and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
15th February, 2021.

03-52

PV 92793.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Marox (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Marox 
(Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on “04.06.2013” 
under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on 
business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Marox (Private) 
Limited” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be 
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and 
the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
15th February, 2021.

03-53

PV 78261.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the 
name of “Guidline International Consultants and 

Academy (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Guidline International Consultants and Academy (Private) 
Limited” a Company incorporated on “29.04.2011” under 
the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on 
business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Guidline 
International Consultants and Academy (Private) Limited” 
will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the 
Register of Companies kept in this office and the Company 
will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
15th February, 2021.

03-54

PV 125760.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Udhayasena International Lanka (Private) 

Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Udhayasena International Lanka (Private) Limited” 
a Company incorporated on “21.09.2017” under the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business 
or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Udhayasena 
International Lanka (Private) Limited” will unless cause 
is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register of 
Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
14th February, 2021.
03-55
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PV 00201002.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “First Point Lamps (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “First 
Point Lamps (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“16.06.2018” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “First Point 
Lamps (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
    February, 2021.

03-56

PV 00200242.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Miracle Lightings (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Miracle Lightings (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“12.05.2018” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of 
three months from this date the name of “Miracle Lightings 
(Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be 
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and 
the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
15th February, 2021.

03-57

PV 00206886.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Midsouth Corporation (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Midsouth Corporation (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated 
on “05.12.2018” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Midsouth 
Corporation (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
14th February, 2021.

03-58

PV 00210150.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Tropical Sands (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Tropical Sands (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“23.03.2019” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Tropical Sands 
(Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be 
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and 
the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
  February, 2021.

03-59
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PV 105206.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Zhongtian Dinghui Tourism Development 

(Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Zhongtian Dinghui Tourism Development (Pvt) Ltd” 
a Company incorporated on “23.04.2015” under the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business 
or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of 
three months from this date the name of “Zhongtian Dinghui 
Tourism Development (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
15th February, 2021.

03-60

PV 110543.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Eighteen 47 Education Consultants (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Eighteen 47 Education Consultants (Pvt) Ltd” a Company 
incorporated on “16.12.2015” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Eighteen 47 
Education Consultants (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
15th February, 2021.

03-61

PV 108614

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “3 S M Global I T Solutions (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “3 S M 
Global I T Solutions (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“25.09.2015” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “3 S M Global 
I T Solutions (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
15th February, 2021.

03-62

PV 00203190.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Sunshine Builders (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Sunshine Builders (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“17.08.2018” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of 
three months from this date the name of “Sunshine Builders 
(Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be 
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and 
the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
14th February, 2021.

03-63
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PV 00200134.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “2 Zero 6 Entertainment Hub (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “2 Zero 
6 Entertainment Hub (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“05.05.2018” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “2 Zero 6 
Entertainment Hub (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to 
the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
15th February, 2021.

03-64

GA 2810.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Live & Learn”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Live & 
Learn” a Company incorporated on “02.05.2013” under the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business 
or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Live & Learn” 
will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the 
Register of Companies kept in this office and the Company 
will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
15th February, 2021.

03-65

GA 491.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Foundation For Law and Justice”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Foundation For Law and Justice” a Company incorporated 
on “07.10.2003” under the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Foundation for 
Law and Justice” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, 
be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office 
and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
14th February, 2021.

03-66

GA 2820.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the 
name of “People’s Action for Community 

Empowerment”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“People’s Action for Community Empowerment” a Company 
incorporated on “13.05.2013” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “People’s Action 
for Community Empowerment” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
14th February, 2021.

03-67
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PV 4315.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Geeteecee (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Geeteecee (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“06.11.2002” under the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Geeteecee 
(Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, 
be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office 
and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
14th February, 2021.

03-68

PV 11651.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Mayahni Enterprises (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Mayahni Enterprises (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “21.10.2005” under the Companies Act, 
No. 17 of 1982 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Mayahni 
Enterprises (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to 
the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
15th February, 2021.

03-69

PV 2563.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Almar Realty (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Almar 
Realty (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“28.03.2006” under the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Almar Realty 
(Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, 
be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office 
and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,	
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
14th February, 2021.

03-70

CARGILLS  BANK  LIMITED
rajagiriya  branch

 
Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors 

of The Bank under Section 4 of The recovery of 
Loans By Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 

No. 4 of 1990

Name of the Customer : Yashika Rashini Nadarajah.

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of Cargills Bank 
Limited held on 24.02.2020, it was resolved specially and 
unanimously as follows:

Whereas Yashika Rashini Nadarajah as Mortgagor 
has made default in the repayment of the housing loan 
facility granted against the security of the Property 
morefully described in the schedule hereto mortgaged 
and hypothecated by Mortgage Bond No. 475 dated 
18.09.2018 attested by A. C. Nadeesha, Notary Public, in 
favour of Cargills Bank Limited (hereinafter sometimes 
called as “the Bank”) bearing Registration No. PB 4847 
and having its registered office at No.696, Galle Road, 
Colombo 3;

I  »
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And Whereas there is now due and owing to the Bank 
on the said Mortgage Bond No. 475, a sum of Rupees 
Nine Million Two Hundred and Nineteen Thousand 
Five Hundred and Sixty-six and Cents Eighty-four  
(Rs. 9,219,566.84) on account of principal and interest 
upto 05.02.2020 together with interest at the rate of 18.50% 
per annum on Rs. 8,000,000.00 from 06.02.2020 until the 
date of payment in full in terms of the said Mortgage Bond 
No.475. 

It is hereby Resolved:

that in terms of Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by 
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, Chandima 
Priyadarshani Gamage the Licensed Auctioneer at No. 
9- I, Highlevel Road, Sarwodaya Mawatha, Panagoda, 
Homagama be authorized and empowered to sell by public 
auction the Property mortgaged to the Bank by Yashika 
Rashini Nadarajah as Mortgagor by Mortgage Bond No.475 
morefully described in the schedule hereto and for the 
recovery of the aforesaid sum of Rupees Nine Million Two 
Hundred and Nineteen Thousand Five Hundred and Sixty- 
six and Cents Eighty-four (Rs. 9,219,566.84) together with 
interest as aforesaid from the aforesaid date to date of sale 
and costs and monies recoverable under Section 13 of the 
said Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 4 of 1990 less payments (if any) since received:

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot A1 depicted in Plan No. 1958 dated 27th August, 2004 
made by A. Nawagamuwa, Licensed Surveyor (being a 
resurvey and a subdivision Lot A depicted in Plan No. 
24/1973 dated 12th April, 1973 made by H. S. Perera, 
Licensed Surveyor) of the land called “Ambagahawatta” 
situated at Weliwita within the Grama Niladari Division of 
No. 475, Weliwita within the Municipal Council Limits of 
Kaduwela and within the Divisional Secretariat Division 
of Kaduwela in the Palle Pattu of Hewagam Korale in the 
District of Colombo Western Province and which said Lot 
A1 is bounded on the North by Land of W. P. Bridjet and 
Others, on the East by Lots A4 and A3 hereof, on the South 
by Lot A hereof and on the West by Land of M. D. Claiment 
and Others and containing in extent Thirty-one Decimal 
Five Perches (0A., 0R., 31.5P.) according to the said Plan 
No. 1958 together with buildings, trees, plantations and 
everything else standing thereon Registered under title 
volume/folio B 264/92 at Homagama Land Registry.

Together with right of way over and along following 
allotment of Lands.

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot A4 (Reservation for Road) depicted in Plan No. 1958 

dated 27th August, 2004 made by A. Nawagamuwa, 
Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Ambagahawatta” 
situated at Weliwita within the Grama Niladari Division of 
No. 475, Weliwita within the Municipal Council Limits of 
Kaduwela and within the Divisional Secretariat Division 
of Kaduwela in the Palle Pattu of Hewagam Korale in the 
District of Colombo Western Province and which said Lot 
A4 is bounded on the North by Land of W. P. Bridjet and 
Others, on the East by Lot C in Plan No. 24/1973 (12 feet 
wide Road), on the South by Lots A2 and A3 hereof, and on 
the West by Lot A1 hereof and containing in extent Seven 
Perches (0A., 0R., 7P.) according to the said Plan No. 1958 
together with buildings, trees, plantations and everything 
else standing thereon Registered under title volume/folio  
B 264/118 at Homagama Land Registry.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot C (Reservation for Road) depicted in Plan No. 24/1973 
dated 12th April, 1973 made by H. S. Perera, Licensed 
Surveyor of the land called “Ambagahawatta” situated at 
Weliwita within the Grama Niladari Division of No.475, 
Weliwita within the Municipal Council Limits of Kaduwela 
and within the Divisional Secretariat Division of Kaduwela 
in the Palle Pattu of Hewagam Korale in the District of 
Colombo Western Province and which said Lot C is bounded 
on the North by Land Belonging to W. D. Muriel Bridget and 
Others and Road, on the East by Land formerly belonged 
to W. D. Juwan Appuhamy, on the South by Lot B and, on 
the West by Lot A and containing in extent Nine Decimal 
Three Perches (0A., 0R., 9.3P.) according to the said Plan 
No. 24/1973 together with buildings, trees, plantations and 
everything else standing thereon Registered under title 
volume/folio B 264/117 at Homagama Land Registry.

By Order of the Board of Directors, 

	 Chamila Abeysooriya,
	H ead Recoveries.

03-114

HATTON  NATIONAL  BANK PLC
kalutara  branch

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Hatton National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 

Act, No. 04 of 1990

Focus Batteries Group Of Companies (Private) Limited.

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National 
Bank PLC held on 30th December, 2020 it was resolved 
specially and unanimously.
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Whereas Focus Batteries Group of Companies (Private) 
Limited as the Obligor and Manampeli Mahapatabandi 
Ralalage Indupul Dhanuka Cooray Wanigarathna as the 
Mortgagor mortgaged and hypothecated property morefully 
described in the Schedule hereto by Mortgage Bond No. TR 
277 dated 29 03 2018, attested by P. V. N. K. Perera , Notary 
Public of Colombo in favour of Hatton National Bank 
PLC as security for repayment of the Term Loan granted 
by Hatton National Bank PLC to Focus Batteries Group of 
Companies (Private) Limited.

Whereas the aforesaid Manampeli Mahapatabandi 
Ralalage Indupul Dhanuka Cooray Wanigarathna is the 
virtual owner and person who is in control of the aforesaid 
Focus Batteries Group of Companies (Private) Limited in 
as much as aforesaid Manampeli Mahapatabandi Ralalage 
Indupul Dhanuka Cooray Wanigarathna as a Director of 
Focus Batteries Group Of Companies (Private) Limited 
is in control and management of the said Company and 
accordingly, the aforesaid Manampeli Mahapatabandi 
Ralalage Indupul Dhanuka Cooray Wanigarathna is the 
actual beneficiary of the financial accommodation granted 
by the Hatton National Bank PLC to Focus Batteries Group 
Of Companies (Private) Limited.

And whereas Focus Batteries Group of Companies 
(Private) Limited and Manampeli Mahapatabandi Ralalage 
Indupul Dhanuka Cooray Wanigarathna have made default 
in payment of the sum due to Hatton National Bank PLC 
and there is now due and owing to the Hatton National 
Bank PLC as at 20th July, 2020 a sum of Rs. 25,832,597.61 
(Rupees Twenty-five Million Eight Hundred and Thirty-two 
Thousand Five Hundred and Ninety-seven and Cents Sixty- 
one Only) on the said Bond and the Board of Directors of 
Hatton National Bank PLC under the power vested by the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 
4 of 1990, do hereto and mortgaged to Hatton National Bank 
PLC by the said Bond No. TR 277 be sold by Public Auction 
by L. B. Senanayake, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for 
recovery of the said sum of Rs. 25,832,597.61 together with 
further interest from 21st July, 2020 to date of sale together 
with costs of advertising and other charges incurred less 
payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land Parcel 
Bearing No. 150 in Block No. 15 depicted in Cadastral 
Map No. 520210 situated at Lakshapathiya in Grama 
Niladari's Division of Lakshapathiya South in the Divisional 
Secretary's Division of Moratuwa in the District of Colombo 
Western Province in the Democratic Socialist Republic of 
Sri Lanka and bounded

On the North by -	Land Parcel bearing No. 151 and De	
Mel Road;

On the East by -	Land Parcel bearing No. 39;
On the South by -	Land Parcel bearing No. 55;
On the West by -	Land Parcel bearing Nos. 41, 43, 52, 53 

and 54.

And containing in extent Naught Decimal One Six One 
Eight Hectares (0.1618 Hec.) and Registered under Title 
Registration Act, No. 21 of 1998.

By Order of the Board of Directors, 

	K . A. L. T. Ranaweera,
	 DGM (Legal) / Board Secretary.

03-100

 The Union Bank of Colombo PLC

Notice of Resolution passed by The Union Bank of 
Colombo Plc Under Section 04 of The recovery 
of Loans By Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 

of 1990

In terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, it is hereby notified 
that the following resolution was unanimously passed by the 
Board of Directors of Union Bank of Colombo PLC at the 
meeting held on 26th February, 2020.

Whereas Mohideen Abdeen Roshan Ameen alias 
Abdeen Roshan Mohideen Ameen (Holder of Nic. 
No. 721470040V) & Nerusha Iqlimah Ameen Nee 
Mahamooth (Holder of NIC No. 726963029V) both 
of No. 17/9 A2, Off First Lane, Old Road, Nawala 
(hereinafter sometimes called and referred to as the 
Obligors) obtained 02 Loan Against Property (LAP) 
facilities (both Rescheduled) of a Sum of Rupees Fourteen 
Million Seven Hundred and Eighty-eight Thousand 
(Rs. 14,788,000) and a sum of Rupees Six Million  
(Rs. 6,000,000) respectively from Union Bank of 
Colombo PLC bearing Registration No. PB676PQ 
(hereinafter referred to as “Union Bank”) and whereas 
the Obligors had executed the Primary Mortgage Bond 
No. 1244 dated 11.08.2016, and Secondary Mortgage 
Bond No. 1927 dated 29.09.2017, both attested by 
Dharshika Nayana Herat Gunaratne, Notary Public of 
Colombo and mortgaged and hypothecated the property 
morefully described in the schedule hereto as security for 
the payment of Rupees Twenty Million Seven Hundred 
and Eighty-eight Thousand (Rs. 20,788,000) and interest 
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thereon due to Union Bank on account of the said 
Financial Facilities.

And Whereas a sum of Rupees Twenty-one Million Six 
Hundred Thousand and Twenty-nine Cents Ninety-four  
(Rs. 21,600,029.94), together with further interest due 
and owing from the Obligor/Mortgagor to Union Bank as 
follows on account of the said Loan Facilities.

1. a sum of Sri Lankan Rupees Fifteen Million Three 
Hundred and Seventy-seven Thousand Two Hundred 
and Forty- seven Cents Thirty-one (Rs. 15,377,247.31), 
being the total outstanding on the Loan Facility  
No. 0024001000102408 as at 30.12.2019 together with 
interest at the rate of 20.50% per annum on the Capital 
Outstanding of Rupees Fourteen Million Seven Hundred 
Sixty-three Thousand (Rs. 14,763,000) from 31.12.2019;

2. a sum of Sri Lankan Rupees Six Million Two Hundred 
and Twenty-two Thousand Seven Hundred and Eighty- 
two Cents Sixty-three (Rs. 6,222,782.63), being the total 
outstanding on the Loan Facility No. 0024001000102417 as 
at 30.12.2019 together with interest at the rate of 19.25% 
per annum on the Capital outstanding of Rupees Six Million 
(Rs. 6,000,000) from 31.12.2019; to the date of sale.

And Whereas the Board of Directors of Union Bank 
acting under the powers vested in them under Section 3 
of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 4 of 1990 and being satisfied that the Obligor/
Mortgagor has made default in the payment of the aforesaid 
loan balances or parts thereof do hereby resolve in terms of 
Section 4 of the said Act, No. 4 of 1990 to authorize L. B. 
Senanayake, Auctioneers to sell by Public Auction in terms 
of the said Act, No. 4 of 1990 the property mortgaged to 
Union Bank under and by virtue of the aforesaid Primary 
Mortgage Bond No. 1244 and Secondary Mortgage 
Bond No.1927 both attested by Dharshika Nayana Herat 
Gunaratne, Notary Public of Colombo morefully described 
in the schedule hereto for the recovery of a sum of Rupees 
Twenty-one Million Six Hundred Thousand and Twenty-
nine Cents Ninety-four (Rs. 21,600,029.94), due and owing 
from the said Obligors to Union Bank as at 30.12.2019 on 
account of the said Loan Facilities together with further 
interest on the capital outstanding of the said Loan Facilities 
at the rates aforesaid from 31.12.2019 to the date of sale and 
all other amounts Union Bank is entitled to recover in terms 
of the aforesaid Mortgage Bonds Nos.1244 and 1927 and 
Section 13 of the said Act, No. 4 of 1990 less payments (if 
any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1G1 depicted in Plan No. 1160C dated 26.10.2000 made 

by J. M. W. Samaranayake, Licensed Surveyor and Leveller 
(the said Plan No. 1160C was further endorsed by the same 
surveyor mentioning that the extent and the boundaries 
remains the same dated 04.08.2016) and (being resurvey 
and sub-division of all that allotment of land marked Lot 
1G depicted in Plan No. 1160A dated 10.05.2000 made by 
J. M. W. Samaranayake, Licensed Surveyor and Leveller) 
of the land called “Kanapullemulle Owita and Kanapulle 
Owita alias Kannapullewela” together with the building, 
trees, plantations, soil and everything standing thereon 
bearing Assessment No. 17/9A2 situated  Nawala within the 
Municipal Counsil Limits of Sri Jayawardenapura Kotte in 
Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale in the Grama Niladhari Division 
of Nawala and in the Divisional Secretariat Division of Sri 
Jayawardenapura Kotte in the District of Colombo Western 
Province and which said Lot 1G1 is bounded on the 

North by Lot 1F in Plan No. 1160A, 
East by Lot 3 in Plan No. 1140, 
South by Lot 1G2 hereof,
West by -by Lot 1Q in Plan No. 1160A(Road Reservation 

20 ft.wide).

And containing in extent Eight Perches (A0-R0-P08) or 
0.0202 Hectare according to the said Plan No. 1160C and 
Registered at the Land Registry of Delkanda Under Volume 
Folio A 319/80.

Together with the rights of way and such other rights 
in over under and along the following allotment of lands 
morefully described in the Second Schedule to the Bonds 
Nos. 1244 and 1927.

1.	Lot 1C4 depicted in Plan No. 25201/lC/Sub dated 
18.09.1980 made by S. Lokanathan, LS

2.	Lot 2 depicted in Plan No. 2305 dated 25.09.1978 
made by S.Lokanathan, LS

3.	Lot 3 depicted in afresaid Plan No. 2305
4.	Lot 1D depicted in Plan No.2620 dated 04.09.1980 

made by S.Lokanathan, LS
5.	Lot 1Q depicted in Plan No. 1160A dated 10.05.2000 

made by J. M. W. Samaranayake, LS.

By Order of the Board, 

	I noka Jayawardena,
	 Secretary to the Board.

03-120
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 The Union Bank of Colombo PLC

Notice of Resolution passed by The Union Bank of 
Colombo Plc Under Section 04 of The recovery 
of Loans By Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 

of 1990

In terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, it is hereby notified 
that the following resolution was unanimously passed by the 
Board of Directors of Union Bank of Colombo PLC at the 
meeting held on 27th January, 2021.

Whereas Sedarahettige Chaminda Prabhath 
Sedarahetti (bearing NIC No. 752782172V) of 
Thunkama, Embilipitiya carrying on business as a 
sole proprietor under the name and style of New Sirini 
Wine Stores bearing registration No. R/EMB/03694 
(hereinafter sometimes called and referred to as the 
‘Obligor/Mortgagor’) obtained a Term Loan Facility 
of Rupees Fifty Million (Rs. 50,000,000) and a Term 
Loan Facility of Rupees Four Million (Rs. 4,000,000) 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the 'said Loan 
Facilities’) from Union Bank of Colombo PLC bearing 
Registration No.PB676PQ (hereinafter referred to as 
“Union Bank”) and whereas the Obligor/Mortgagor 
executed a Primary Mortgage Bond bearing No. 2573 
dated 29.04.2015, a Secondary Mortgage Bond bearing 
No. 3426 dated 21.11.2016 and a Tertiary Mortgage 
Bond bearing No. 4675 dated 02.04.2019 all attested 
by Niroshan Ranasinghe Bandara, Notary Public and 
mortgaged and hypothecated the property morefully 
described in the schedule hereto as security for the 
payment of Rupees Fifty-four Million (Rs. 54,000,000.) 
and interest thereon due to Union Bank on account of the 
said Loan Facilities. 

And Whereas as at 07.10.2019, there is a sum of Sri 
Lankan Rupees Fifty-four Million Nine Hundred and Forty-
two Thousand Seven Hundred and Forty-four Cents Seven 
(Rs. 54,942,744.07), together with further interest due 
and owing from the Obligor/Mortgagor to Union Bank as 
follows on account of the said Loan Facilities,

1.	a sum of Sri Lankan Rupees Fifty Million Nine 
Hundred Forty-two Thousand Seven Hundred and Forty-
four Cents Seven (Rs. 50,942,744.07), being the total 
outstanding on the Loan Facility No. 0444001000053880 as 
at 07.10.2019 together with interest at the rate of 20% per 
annum on the Capital Outstanding of Rupees Fifty Million 
(Rs. 50,000,000) from 08.10.2019;

2.	a sum of Rupees Four Million (Rs. 4,000.000), being 
the outstanding on the Loan Facility No.0444001000053899 
as at 07.10.2019 ;

And Whereas the Board of Directors of Union Bank 
acting under the powers vested in them under Section 3 of 
the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act 
No. 4 of 1990 and being satisfied that the Obligor/Mortgagor 
has made default in the payment of the aforesaid loan 
balances or parts thereof do hereby resolve in terms of 
Section 4 of the said Act, No. 4 of 1990 to authorize L. B. 
Senanayake, Auctioneers to sell by Public Auction in terms 
of the said Act, No. 4 of 1990 the properties mortgaged to 
Union Bank under and by virtue of the aforesaid Primary 
Mortgage Bond bearing No. 2573, Secondary Mortgage 
Bond bearing No.3426 and Tertiary Mortgage Bond bearing 
No. 4675 all attested by Niroshan Ranasinghe Bandara, 
Notary Public morefully described in the schedule hereto for 
the recovery of the said sum of Sri Lankan Rupees Fifty 
Four Million Nine Hundred and Forty Two Thousand Seven 
Hundred and Forty Four Cents Seven (Rs. 54,942,744.07) 
due and owing from the Obligor/Mortgagor to Union Bank 
as at 07.10.2019 on account of the said Loan Facilities 
together with further interest on the capital outstanding of 
the said Loan Facilities at the rates mentioned aforesaid 
from 08.10.2019 to the date of sale and all other amounts 
Union Bank is entitled to recover in terms of the said Primary 
Mortgage Bond bearing No. 2573, Secondary Mortgage 
Bond bearing No. 3426 and Tertiary Mortgage Bond bearing 
No. 4675 and Section 13 of the said Act No. 4 of 1990, less 
payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted 
as Lot A in Plan No. 2011/40 Dated 01.05.2011 made by 
S. H. Munasinghe Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
"lhala Digan Pelessa Kele" situated at lhala Digan Pelessa 
Village in the Grama Niladhari Division of Katupilagama 
in the Divisional Secretary's Division of Sewanagala and 
in the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Sevanagala in Kongala 
Binthenna Pattu of Wellawaya alias Siththaram Palatha 
Korale in the District of Monaragala, Uva Province and 
the said land is bounded on the North by Reservation along 
Udawalawa-Thanamalwila main Road on the East by Land 
claimed by Kapila on the South by Access and on the West 
by Land claimed by Munasinghe and containing in the extent 
Thirty-eight Decimal Seven Five Perches (00A., 00R., 
38.75P.) together with buildings fixtures trees, Plantations 
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2.	a sum of Rupees Four Million (Rs. 4,000.000), being 
the outstanding on the Loan Facility No.0444001000053899 
as at 07.10.2019 ;

And Whereas the Board of Directors of Union Bank 
acting under the powers vested in them under Section 3 of 
the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act 
No. 4 of 1990 and being satisfied that the Obligor/Mortgagor 
has made default in the payment of the aforesaid loan 
balances or parts thereof do hereby resolve in terms of 
Section 4 of the said Act, No. 4 of 1990 to authorize L. B. 
Senanayake, Auctioneers to sell by Public Auction in terms 
of the said Act, No. 4 of 1990 the properties mortgaged to 
Union Bank under and by virtue of the aforesaid Primary 
Mortgage Bond bearing No. 2573, Secondary Mortgage 
Bond bearing No.3426 and Tertiary Mortgage Bond bearing 
No. 4675 all attested by Niroshan Ranasinghe Bandara, 
Notary Public morefully described in the schedule hereto for 
the recovery of the said sum of Sri Lankan Rupees Fifty 
Four Million Nine Hundred and Forty Two Thousand Seven 
Hundred and Forty Four Cents Seven (Rs. 54,942,744.07) 
due and owing from the Obligor/Mortgagor to Union Bank 
as at 07.10.2019 on account of the said Loan Facilities 
together with further interest on the capital outstanding of 
the said Loan Facilities at the rates mentioned aforesaid 
from 08.10.2019 to the date of sale and all other amounts 
Union Bank is entitled to recover in terms of the said Primary 
Mortgage Bond bearing No. 2573, Secondary Mortgage 
Bond bearing No. 3426 and Tertiary Mortgage Bond bearing 
No. 4675 and Section 13 of the said Act No. 4 of 1990, less 
payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted 
as Lot A in Plan No. 2011/40 Dated 01.05.2011 made by 
S. H. Munasinghe Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
"lhala Digan Pelessa Kele" situated at lhala Digan Pelessa 
Village in the Grama Niladhari Division of Katupilagama 
in the Divisional Secretary's Division of Sewanagala and 
in the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Sevanagala in Kongala 
Binthenna Pattu of Wellawaya alias Siththaram Palatha 
Korale in the District of Monaragala, Uva Province and 
the said land is bounded on the North by Reservation along 
Udawalawa-Thanamalwila main Road on the East by Land 
claimed by Kapila on the South by Access and on the West 
by Land claimed by Munasinghe and containing in the extent 
Thirty-eight Decimal Seven Five Perches (00A., 00R., 
38.75P.) together with buildings fixtures trees, Plantations 

and everything else standing thereon and registered in the 
Monaragala Land Registry under folio Q 03/89.

By Order of the Board of Directors, 

	I noka Jayawardena,
	 Secretary to the Board.

03-119

 The  Union  Bank of Colombo PLC

Notice of Resolution passed by The Union Bank of 
Colombo Plc Under Section 04 of The recovery 
of Loans By Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 

of 1990

In terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, it is hereby notified 
that the following resolution was unanimously passed by 
the Board of Directors of Union Bank of Colombo PLC 
(hereinafter referred to as Union Bank) at the meeting held 
on 26th November, 2019.

Whereas Muthuthanthri Patabendige Menuka Dilhan 
Cooray (Holder of NIC No. 198715903205) and Guruge 
Renuka Damayanthi alias Renuka Damayanthi Cooray 
(Holder of NIC No. 617580144X) both of Cooray and 
Sons, Udagama, Embilipitiya and Frozen Villa Hotel, 
Ratnapura Road, Udagama, Embilipitiya in the Democratic 
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka, (hereinafter referred as 
“the OBLIGORS”) obtained several financial facilities from 
Union Bank of Colombo PLC bearing Company Registration 
No. PB676PQ (hereinafter referred to as Union Bank) and 
whereas the said Guruge Renuka Damayanthi alias Renuka 
Damayanthi Cooray executed Primary Mortgage Bond No. 
3660 dated 31.05.2017 and Secondary Mortgage Bond No. 
4115 dated 11.04.2018 both attested by N. R. Bandara, 
Notary Public for Rs. 50,000,000 and Rs. 30,000,000 
respectively and mortgaged and hypothecated the property 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto as security for 
the payment of the said financial facilities together with 
interest thereon due to Union Bank.

And Whereas as at 06.03.2019 a sum of Sri Lankan 
Rupees Seventy-seven Million Eight Hundred Forty-
five Thousand Four Hundred and Ten Cents Sixty-four 
(Rs.77,845,410.64), together with further interest on the 
capital outstanding of the said financial facilities is due and 
owing from the Obligors to Union Bank as follows:

1. a sum of Sri Lankan Rupees Five Million Nine 
Hundred Eighty-four Thousand Six Hundred and Eleven 
Cents Twenty-one (Rs. 5,984,611.21), being the total 
outstanding on the Loan Facility No. 444001000052088 as 
at 06.03.2019 together with interest at the rate of 20% per 
annum on the Capital Outstanding of Rupees Five Million 
Seven Hundred Thirty-four Thousand Six Hundred and 
Sixty-eight (Rs. 5,734,668) from 07.03.2019 to the date of 
sale;

2. a sum of Sri Lankan Rupees Thirty-four Million One 
Hundred and One Thousand Four Hundred and Thirty-one 
Cents Seventy-four (Rs. 34,101,431.74), being the total 
outstanding on the Loan Facility No. 444001000052097 as 
at 06.03.2019 together with interest at the rate of 20% per 
annum on the Capital Outstanding of Rupees Thirty-two 
Million Seven Hundred Thousand Three Hundred and Sixty-
six Cents Eighty-three (Rs. 32,700,366.83) from 07.03.2019 
to the date of sale;

3. a sum of Sri Lankan Rupees Six Million Nine 
Hundred Fifty-four Thousand Nine Hundred and Eighty- 
five Cents Twenty-three (Rs. 6,954,985.23), being the total 
outstanding on the Loan Facility No. 444001000052122 as 
at 06.03.2019 together with interest at the rate of 20% per 
annum on the Capital Outstanding of Rupees Six Million 
Six Hundred Sixty-nine Thousand Two Hundred and Fifty 
(Rs. 6,669,250) from 07.03.2019 to the date of sale;

4. a sum of Sri Lankan Rupees Thirty Million Eight 
Hundred Four Thousand Three Hundred and Eighty- 
two Cents Forty-six (Rs. 30,804,382.46), being the total 
outstanding on the Loan Facility No. 444001000052989 as 
at 06.03.2019 together with interest at the rate of 20% per 
annum on the Capital Outstanding of Rupees Twenty Nine 
Million Five Hundred Forty-five Thousand (Rs. 29,545,000) 
from 07.03.2019 to the date of sale. 

And Whereas the Board of Directors of Union Bank 
acting under the powers vested in them under Section 3 of 
the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act 
No. 4 of 1990 and being satisfied that the Obligors have 
made default in the payment of the aforesaid loan balances 
or parts thereof do hereby resolve in terms of Section 4 of 
the said Act, No. 4 of 1990 to authorize L. B. Senanayake, 
Auctioneers to sell by Public Auction in terms of the said 
Act, No. 4 of 1990 the property mortgaged to Union Bank 
under and by virtue of the aforesaid Primary Mortgage 
Bond No. 3660 and Secondary Mortgage Bond No. 4115 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto for the recovery 
of the said sum of Sri Lankan Rupees Seventy-seven 
Million Eight Hundred Forty-five Thousand Four Hundred 
and Ten Cents Sixty-four (Rs. 77,845,410.64), due and 
owing from the said Obligors to Union Bank on account of 
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the said financial facilities together with further interest on 
the capital outstanding of the said financial facilities at the 
rates aforesaid from 07.03.2019 to the date of sale and all 
other amounts Union Bank is entitled to recover in terms of 
the said Primary Mortgage Bond No.3660 and Secondary 
Mortgage Bond No. 4115 and Section 13 of the said Act, 
No. 4 of 1990 less payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
01 depicted in Survey Plan No. 982 dated 04.04.2017 made 
by H. M. A. U. Navaratne, Licensed Surveyor from and 
out of the land called part of  “Wewagawawatta” situated 
at Embilipitiya Udagama Village within the Grama Niladari 
Division Udagama and within the Divisional Secretariat 
and the Municipal Council Limits of Embilipitiya in 
Diyapotagam Pattu of Kolonna Korale and in the District 
of Ratnapura Sabaragamuwa Province and which said Lot 
01 is bounded on the North by Land claimed by B. L. A. 
Dingirimahathmaya, on the East by Access road marked 
as Lot D and Lot B, on the South by Access Road marked 
as Lot D and Land claimed by Seetha Dissanayake and 
on the West by Land claimed by Seetha Dissanayake and 
containing in extent Three Roods and Thirty Decimal Five 
Perches (0A., 3R., 30.5P.) 0.3806 Hectares together with 
buildings, trees, plantations and everything standing thereon 
and together with the right of way over and along the road 
leading towards the main road depicted in Plan No. 7700 
and in Plan no. 7166 and registered in Embilipitiya Land 
registry under volume/folio L 138/38.

By Order of the Board, 

	I noka Jayawardhana,
	 Secretary to the Board.

03-118

 Union  Bank of Colombo PLC

Notice of Resolution passed by The Union Bank of 
Colombo Plc Under Section 04 of The recovery 
of Loans By Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 

of 1990

In terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, it is hereby notified 
that the following resolution was unanimously passed by 
the Board of Directors of Union Bank of Colombo PLC 
(hereinafter referred to as Union Bank) at the meeting held 
on 30th September, 2020.

Whereas Edirisinghe Mudiyanselage Kasun Gayan 
Bandara (Holder of N.I.C.No. 892141010V) of  
No. 352, Kurunegala Road, Dambulla in the Democratic 
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka, (hereinafter referred 
as “the Obligor”) obtained a loan facility from Union 
Bank of Colombo PLC bearing Company Registration  
No. PB676PQ (hereinafter referred to as Union Bank) 
and whereas the Obligor executed a Primary Mortgage 
Bond No. 11497 dated 11.09.2018 and Secondary 
Mortgage Bond No. 11626 dated 31.05.2019 both 
attested by J Rathnadiwakara, Notary Public for  
Rs. 10,000,000 and Rs. 158,000 respectively and  
mortgaged and hypothecated the property morefully 
described in the Schedule hereto as security for the 
payment of Rupees Ten Million One Hundred and Fifty-
eight Thousand (Rs. 10,158,000) and interest thereon due 
to Union Bank on account of the said loan facility.

And Whereas Sri Lankan Rupees Eleven Million One 
Hundred Ninety-nine Thousand Six Hundred and Fifty-two 
Cents Five (Rs. 11,199,652.05), being the total outstanding 
on the said loan facility as at 05.01.2020 together with interest 
at the rate of 21% per annum on the Capital Outstanding 
of Ten Million One Hundred Fifty-eight Thousand  
(Rs. 10,158,000) from 06.01.2020 is due and owing from 
the Obligor to Union Bank to the date of sale.

And Whereas the Board of Directors of Union Bank 
acting under the powers vested in them under Section 3 
of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 4 of 1990 and being satisfied that the Obligor has 
made default in the payment of the aforesaid loan balances 
or parts thereof do hereby resolve in terms of Section 4 of 
the said Act, No. 4 of 1990 to authorize L. B. Senanayake, 
Auctioneers to sell by Public Auction in terms of the said 
Act, No. 4 of 1990 the property mortgaged to Union Bank 
under and by virtue of the aforesaid Primary Mortgage 
Bond No. 11497 and Secondary Mortgage Bond No. 11626 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto for the recovery 
of Sri Lankan Rupees Eleven Million One Hundred Ninety- 
nine Thousand Six Hundred and Fifty-two Cents Five  
(Rs. 11,199,652.05), being the total outstanding on the said 
loan facility as at 05.01.2020 together with the interest 
as mentioned above and all other amounts Union Bank is 
entitled to recover in terms of the said Primary Mortgage 
Bond No. 11497 and Secondary Mortgage Bond No. 11626 
and Section 13 of the said Act No. 4 of 1990 less payments 
(if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined portion of land depicted as Lot 
01 in Plan No. 4187/2017 dated 29.12.2017 made by H. M. S. 
K. Herath, Licensed Surveyor in extent One Acre Three Roods 
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and Thirty-six Decimal Two Naught Perches (01A., 03R., 
36.20P.) from and out of the land called by ‘Kongahamula 
hena’ presently as ‘Kongahamulawatta’ “situated at 
Karuwalagahawatta (Kuda Ahatuwewa) village within 
the Bakmeegahawaththa Grama Niladhari Division in the 
Divisional Secretary Division of Maho in the Pradeshiya 
sabha limits of Maho in Wanni Hathpaththuwe Pahala 
Wisideka Korale of Kurunegala District North Western 
Province and bound according to the said plan on the North 
by Lot 01 in Plan No. 5254/2000, East by Road, South by 
Road and Lot 2 in Plan No. 5254/2000, West by State land 
of Kongahamulahena.

Which said Land is a part and parcel of ‘Kongahamula 
hena’ presently as ‘Kongahamula Watta’ situated at 
Karuwalagahawaththa (Kuda Ahatuwewa) village within 
the Bakmeegahawaththa Grama Niladhari Division in the 
Divisional Secretary Division of Maho in the Pradeshiya 
sabha limits of Maho in Wanni Hathpaththuwe Pahala 
Wisideka Korale of Kurunegala District North Western 
Province and bound according to the said plan, on the 
North by Lot 01 in Plan No. 5254/2000, Eest by Maho to 
Madiyawa road reservation, South by Morogolla to Main 
road reservation, West by State land of Kongahamulahena 
together with buildings Plantations and everything standing 
thereon registered in Volume/folio D 12/243 and now carried 
over to L 62/104 at the Nikaweratiya Land registry.

By Order of the Board, 

	I noka Jayawardhana,
	 Secretary to the Board.

03-117

CARGILLS  BANK  LIMITED
nuwara eliya  branch

 
Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors 

of The Bank under Section 4 of The recovery of 
Loans By Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 

No. 4 of 1990

Name of the Customers : Kanagarathnam Pratheepan,
Balakrishnan Senthil Kumaran, Thangavelu
Kanagarathnam and Thangavelu Pathmanadhan

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of Cargills Bank 
Limited held on 25.10.2019, it was resolved specially and 
unanimously as follows:

I  »

WHEREAS Kanagarathnam Pratheepan, Balakrishnan 
Senthil Kumaran, Thangavelu Kanagarathnam and 
Thangavelu Pathmanadhan as Mortgagors have made default 
in the repayment of the credit facilities granted against the 
security of the Properties and Premises morefully described 
in the schedules hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by 
Mortgage Bond No. 6976 dated 18.01.2019 attested by 
A.P.Kanapathypillai Notary Public, in favour of Cargills 
Bank Limited (hereinafter sometimes called as “the Bank”) 
bearing Registration No. PB 4847 and having its registered 
office at No. 696, Galle Road, Colombo 3.

And Whereas there is now due and owing on the said 
Mortgage Bond No. 6976 to the Bank, a sum of Rupees 
Thirty-one Million Three Hundred and Forty-three 
Thousand Six Hundred and Ninety-one and Cents Ninety- 
one (Rs. 31,343,691.91) on account of principal and interest 
upto 08.09.2019 together with interest at the rate of 20% per 
annum on Rs.28,900,878.65 from 09.09.2019, and a sum 
of Twelve Million Nine Hundred and Sixty-five Thousand 
Fifty Six and Cents Thirteen (Rs. 12,965,056.13) on account 
of principal and interest upto 31.08.2019 together with 
interest at the rate of 17.20% per annum upto a limit of  
Rs. 11,000,000.00 and at the rate of 26.00% per annum on 
the amount exceeding Rs. 11,000,000.00 from 01.09.2019 
until the date of payment in full in terms of the said Mortgage 
Bond No. 6976.

It is hereby resolved:-

that in terms of Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by 
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, Chandima 
Priyadarshani Gamage the Licensed Auctioneer at  
No. 9-I, Highlevel Road, Sarwodaya Mawatha, Panagoda, 
Homagama be authorized and empowered to sell by public 
auction the Properties and Premises mortgaged to the 
Bank by Kanagarathnam Pratheepan, Balakrishnan Senthil 
Kumaran, Thangavelu Kanagarathnam and Thangavelu 
Pathmanadhan as Mortgagors by Mortgage Bond No. 6976 
morefully described in the schedule hereto and for the 
recovery of the aforesaid sums totaling to Rupees Forty-four 
Million Three Hundred and Eight Thousand Seven Hundred 
and Forty-eight and Cents Four (Rs. 44,308,748.04) together 
with interest as aforesaid from the aforesaid dates to date of 
sale and costs and monies recoverable under Section 13 of 
the said Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 4 of 1990 less payments (if any) since received;

THE FIRST SCHEDULE

All that allotment of land depicted as Lot 1 in Plan  
No. 381 N dated 22nd  August, 2003 drawn by L. C. K. 
Liyanage, Licensed Surveyor Nuwaraeliya which is situated 
at Nuwaraeliya town or the Municipal Limits of Nuwareliya 
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within the Grama Niladari Division of 535 S, Hawaeliya 
West and Divisional Secretary’s Division of Nuwaraeliya 
in the Oyapalatha Korale in the District of Nuwara Eliya 
Central Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on 
the North by L. M. Kusumawathias land, on the East by 
Municipal quarters, on the South by land of N. N. M. Zifan 
and on the West by Police Lane and Containing in extent 
Acres Nought Rood Nought Perches Nought Six Decimal 
Eight Two Perches (0A., 0R., 06.82P.) or 0.01725 Hectares 
as per Plan aforesaid in registered under Volume / Folio  
A 177/50 at the District Land Registry Nuwara Eliya.

THE SECOND SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land 535J Topass 
Grama Niladari’s Division called Walauwewatta situated at 
Kodigaha Village within the Pradeshiya Sabha of Nuwara 
Eliya in Ramboda Udapane Korale and in the Divisional 
Secretary’s at Nuwara Eliya and in the District of Nuwara 
Eliya Central Province being Lot No. 01 depicted in Survey 
Plan No. 221 N dated 29th day of January, 2001 made by  
L. C. K. Liyanage, Licensed Surveyor and Leveller of 
Nuwara Eliya containing in extent Nought Acres One Rood 
and Twelve Decimal Six Perches (0A., 1R., 12.6P.) and 
which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Main Road, on 
the East by Main Road and Lot 2 in this Plan, on the South 
by Lot 2 in this Plan and on the West by Lot 2 of this Plan in 
registered Volume/Folio A 184/22 at District Land Registry 
Nuwara Eliya.

Which aforesaid Land is from and out of the land called 
Walauwatta situated at Ramboda in Udapane Korale and 
Divisional Secretariat Division of Kotmale in the District 
of Nuwara Eliya Central Province of Sri Lanka and which 
is bounded on the North by High Road to Nuwara Eliya, on 
the East by West ward Ho Estate but more correctly the High 
Road to Nuwara Eliya and on the South and West by West 
ward Ho Estate and Containing in extent of about One Acre 
(1A., 0R., 0P.).

By Order of the Board of Directors, 

	 Chamila Abeysooriya,
	H ead Recoveries.

03-115

PEOPLE’S BANK—MALIYADEWA - 226 
Branch

Resolution under Section 29 D of the People’s 
Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 As Amended by the Act 

No. 32 of 1986

Branch	 :	 Maliyadewa - 226
Borrower	 :	 1) Mr. M. R. M. Irfan
		  2) Mrs. M. A. H. F. Mahbooba	
Amount Granted	 :	 1) Rs. 5, 000, 000  2) Rs. 5, 000, 000 
Date Granted	 :	 1) 12.06. 2017	 2) 28.05.2018
Minimum Bit	 :	 Seventeen decimal Seven Five Million 
		  (Rs. 17, 750, 000 ).
	
It is hereby notified that the following resolution was 
unanimously passed on 27.11.2020 by the Board of Directors 
of People’s Bank under Section 29 D (29D) of the People’s 
Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as Amended by the Act, No. 32 
of 1986.

Where as Mr. Muhammadu Razick Muhammadu 
Irfan and Mohammadu Abul Hasan Fathima Mahbooba. 
have made default in payment due on the Bond No. 5944 
dated 12.06.2017, attested by Mrs. Nileeka Harshani 
Weerakoon Notary Public of Kurunegala and Bond  
No. 800 dated 28.03.2018, attested by Mr. Poal Hinnige 
Laksiri Jayathilaka Notary Public of Kurunegala in 
favour of the People’s Bank and there is now due and 
owing to the People’s Bank a sum of Rupees Five Million  
(Rs. 5,000,000), and sum of Rupees Five Million  
(Rs. 5,000,000), and on the said Bond, The Board of 
Directors of People’s Bank Under powers vested in them 
by the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as Amended 
by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 do here by resolve that the 
properly and premises mortgaged to the said Bank by 
the said Bond No. 5944 and , Bond No. 800 be sold by 
the Public Auction by, Shockman and Samarawickrama 
Licensed Auctioneer of Kurunegala for recovery of the 
said sum of and with further interest on Rupees Five 
Million (Rs. 5,000,000), and sum of Rupees Five Million 
(Rs. 5,000,000), and with further interest on Rupees 
Five Million (Rs. 5,000,000), Nineteen decimal Five 
percentum (19.5 %) per annum from 03.10.2019 to date 
of the sale and Rupees Five Million (Rs. 5,000,000). at 
Twenty decimal Five per centum (20.5%) per annum 
from 27.05.2013 to date of the sale and coast and money 
recoverable under section 29 D of the said People’s Bank 
Act les payment (if any) since received.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY / PROPERTIES 
MORTGAGED

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
lot No: 02 depicted in Plan No. 7789 dated 28.06.2016 
made by Mr. G. B. Dissanayaka, Licensed Surveyor of the 
Land called “Palamagawa Asweddume Kumbura Presently 
Watta” situated in the Village of Mangedara, Within the 
Grama Niladari Division No. 345 of Mangedara Within 
the Pradeshiya Limit of Warakapola, Within the Divisional 
Secretary Division of Warakapola in the Beligal Korale, 
Othara Pattuwa. In the District of Kegalle, Sabaragamuwa 
Province and which said lot No. 02 is Bounded on. 

North by Lot No. 01 depicted in Plan No. 7789, 
East by Ambepussa - Kurunegala,
South by Lot No. 03 depicted in Plan No. 7789,
West by Nangalla Channel.

Containing in extent of Twenty Five decimal Five 
Perches (00A., 00R., 25. 5P.) alias Zero decimal Zero 
Six Four Five Hectare (Hec. 0.0645) together with Trees, 
Plantation, Buildings and every thing standing thereon, and 
Right of way and Right of Maintain the Road depicted in the 
above Plan.

(Registered. K 54/ 138- Kegalle).

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot No. 02 depicted in Plan No. 7789 dated 28.06.2016 
made by Mr. G. B. Dissanayaka, Licensed Surveyor of the 
Land called “Palamagawa Asweddume Kumbura Presently 
Watta” situated in the Village of Mangedara, Within the 
Grama Niladari Division No. 345 of Mangedara, Within 
the Pradesiya Limit of Warakapola, Within the Divisional 
Secretary Division of Warakapola In the Beligal Korale, 
Othara Pattuwa, In the District of Kegalle, Sabaragamuwa 
Province and which said lot No. 03 is Bounded on.

North by Lot No. 02 depicted in Plan No. 7789, 
East by Ambepussa - Kurunegala,
South by Lot No. 04 depicted in Plan No. 7789,
West  by Nangalla Channel.

Containing in extent of Twenty-five decimal Five Perches 
(00A., 00R., 25. 5P.) alias Zero decimal Zero Six Four Five 
Hectare (Hect.0.0645) together with Trees, Plantation, 

Buildings and every thing standing thereon. Right of way 
and Right of Maintain the Road depicted in the above Plan.

(Registered. K 202/ 100 - Kegalle).

By Order of the Board of Directors, 

	 Regional Manager, 
	 (Kurunegala).

People's Bank, 
Regional Head Office, 
No.03, Wathhimi Road, 
Kurunegala.

03-106

SANASA  DEVELOPMENT  BANK PLC 
HORANA BRANCH

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Sanasa Development Bank PLC (Registration 

No. PB 62 PQ) under Section 4 of the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 

1990

Loan Account: 2251962.
(1) Mr. Jayaweera Muppu Arachchige Sugandika Upul     	
	 Perera.
(2) Ms. Upeksha Senadeera.

At the meeting of the Board of Directors of Sanasa 
Development Bank PLC held on 18th August, 2020 it was 
resolved specially and unanimously.

Whereas (01) Mr. Jayaweera Muppu Arachchige 
Sugandika Upul Perera (02) Ms. Upeksha Senadeera as the 
obligors have made default in payment due on Mortgage 
Bond bearing No. 220 dated 29.06.2018 attested by S. 
L. S. D. Kumari, Notary Public of Colombo in favour 
of Sanasa Development Bank PLC and there is now due 
and owing to the Sanasa Development Bank PLC as at 
25th October, 2019 a sum of Rupees Eleven Million Four 
Hundred Sixty Thousand Four Hundred and Fifty-eight 
and Cents Ninety-four (Rs. 11,460,458.94) on the said 
bond and the Board of Directors of Sanasa Development 
Bank PLC under the power vested by the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provision) Act, No. 04 of 1990 
as amended, do hereby resolve that the property and 
premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto and 

..
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mortgaged to Sanasa Development Bank PLC by the 
said Mortgage Bond bearing No. 220 be sold by public 
auction by M. H. T. Karunarathne, Licensed Auctioneer 
of No. 50/3, Vihara Mawatha, Kolonnawa for recovery 
of the said sum of Rs.11,460,458.94 together with further 
interest from 26th October 2019 to date of sale together 
with costs of advertising and other charges incurred less 
payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1J depicted in Plan No. 5647 dated 03.12.2017 made by 
K. M. A. H. Bandara, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
Delgahawatta situated at Habarakada village in Grama 
Niladhari Division of No. 481 B Habarakada South within 
the Divisional Secretariat Division and Pradeshiya Sabaha 
Limits of Homagama in the District of Colombo, Western 
Province and which said land Lot 1J is bounded as follows:-

North by Lot	 1K, 1G and 1H in Plan No. 3304,
East by Lot	 1H in Plan No. 3304 & Lindalanga Kumbura,
South by Lindalanga Kumbura & Land claimed by Y. T. 

Madapatha,
West by Land claimed by Y. T. Madapatha & Lot ID in Plan 

No. 2420.	

And containing in extent of Twenty-nine Decimal One 
Seven Perches (0A., 0R., 29.17P.) together with the trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon.

The above said Lot 1J depicted in Plan No. 5647 dated 
03.12.2017 made by K. M. A. J. Bandara, Licensed Surveyor 
is a recent resurvey of land described below:-

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1J depicted in Plan No. 3304 dated 15.09.2008 made by  
A. D. M. J. Rupasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called Delgahawatta situated at Habarakada village in 
Grama Niladhari Division of No. 481 B Habarakada South 
within the Divisional Secretariat Division and Pradeshiya 
Sabaha Limits of Homagama in the District of Colombo, 
Western Province and which said land Lot IJ is bounded as 
follows:-

North 	by Lot	 IK, 1G and 1H in the said Plan,
East by Lot	1H in this Plan & Lindalanga Kumbura,
South by Lindalanga Kumbura & Lot 2 in Plan No. 4690,
West by Lot ID in Plan No. 2420 & IK in Plan No. 3304.

And containing in extent of Twenty-nine Decimal One 
Seven Perches (0A., 0R. 29.17P.) together with the trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon and 
registered under Division/Volume/Folio A 81/114 Land 
Registry of Homagama.

By order of the Board, 

	 Board Secretary.

03-171
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NEW SCALES OF CHARGES FOR NOTICES AND ADVERTISEMENTS IN THE
 “GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA” 

EFFECTIVE AS FROM JANUARY  01st, 2013

All the Gazettes could be downloaded from the www.documents.gov.lk
(Issued every Friday)

	 1. 	All Notices and Advertisements are published at the risk of the Advertisers.
	 2. 	All Notices and Advertisements by Private Advertisers may be handed in or sent directly by post together with full payments to the Government 

Printer, Department of Government Printing, Colombo 8.
	 3. 	The office hours are from 8.30 a.m. to 4.15 p.m.
	 4. 	Cash transactions will be from 9.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m.
	 5. 	All Notices  and  Advertisements must be pre-paid. Notices and Advertisements sent directly by post should be accompanied by Money 

order, Postal Order or Cheque made payable to the Government Printer. Postage stamps will not be accepted in payment of Advertisements. 
Post Office - Borella will be the paying office for Money Orders.

	 6. 	To avoid errors and delay “copy”  should be on one side of the paper only and typewritten.
	 7. 	All signatures should be repeated in block letters below the written signature.
	 8. 	Notices re-change of name from Non-Government Servants and Trade Advertisements are not accepted for publication.
	 9. 	Advertisements purporting to be issued under Orders of Courts will not be inserted unless signed or attested by a Proctor of the Supreme Court.
	 10. 	The authorised scale of charges for Notices and Advertisements is as follows from January 01st, 2013 :‑

		            Rs.	 cts.
	 One inch or less 	 ...	 ...	 ...	 137 	 0
	 Every addition inch or fraction thereof 	 ...	 ...	 ...	 137	  0
	 One column or 1/2 page of Gazette 	 ...	 ...	 ...	 1,300	  0
	T wo columns or one page of Gazette 	 ...	 ...	 ...	 2,600	  0

(All fractions of an inch will be charged for at the full inch rate.)
11. 	The “Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka” is published every Friday. Day of publication is subject to alteration in 

any week where Public Holidays intervene.
12. 	All Notices and Advertisements should reach the Government Printer, Department of Government Printing, Colombo 8, as shown in 

schedule of Separate Notice published at the end of each part of the Gazette of the first week of every month.
13. 	All communications regarding non-receipt, change of address and of the Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka should be 

addressed to the Government Printer, Department of Government Printing, Colombo 08.
14. 	Revised subscription rates effective from JANUARY 1st 2013 :

*Annual Subscription Rates and Postage 
	 Price	 Postage
	 Rs.  cts.	  Rs.   cts.
Part I :

Section I             ...	 ...	 ...	                ...             ...		  4,160 0	 9,340 0
Section II (Advertising, Vacancies, Tenders, Examinations, etc.)		  580 0	 950 0
Section III (Patent & Trade Mark Notices etc.)	 ...	 ..	 405 0	 750 0

Part I (Whole of 3 Sections together)	 ...	 ...	 ...	 890 0	 2,500 0
Part II (Judicial)       ...	 ...	 ...	 ...	 ...	 860 0	 450 0
Part III (Lands)           ...	 ...	 ...	 ...	 ...	 260 0	 275 0
Part IV (Notices of Provincial Councils and Local Government)		  2,080 0	 4,360 0
Part V (Stage carriage permits and Book List)             	 ...	 ...	 1,300 0	 3,640 0
Part VI (List of Jurors and Assessors)         	   ...	 ...	 ...	 780 0	 1,250 0
Extraordinary Gazette	 ...	 ...	 ...	 ...	 5,145 0	 5,520 0

Subscription to the “Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka” are booked per periods of not less than 12 months 
so as to terminate at the end of a calendar year only.

* Rates for Single Copies (if available in stock)
	 Price	 Postage
	 Rs.  cts.	  Rs.   cts.
Part I :

Section I             ...	 ...	 ...	 ...	 40 0	 60 0
Section II            ...	 ...	 ...	 ...	 25 0	 60 0
Section III          ...	    ...	 ...	 ...	 15 0	 60 0

Part I (Whole of 3 Sections together)	 ...	 ...	 ...	 80 0	 120 0
Part II                ...	 ...	 ...	 ...	 12 0	 60 0
Part III               ...	 ...	 ...	 ...	 12 0	 60 0
Part IV (Notices of Provincial Councils and Local Government)		  23 0	 60 0
Part V                ...	 ...	 ...	 ...	 123 0	 60 0
Part VI               ...	 ...	 ...	 ...	 87 0	 60 0

*All single copies could be obtained from Government Publications Bureau, No. 163, Kirulapone Mawatha, Polhengoda, Colombo 05.
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IMPORTANT  NOTICE   REGARDING   PUBLICATION   OF  GAZETTE

THE Weekly issue of the Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka is normally published on 
Fridays. If a Friday happens to be a Public Holiday the Gazette is published on the working day immediately 
preceding the Friday. Thus the last date specified for the receipt of notices for publication in the Gazette also 
varies depending on the incidence of public holidays in the week concerned.

The Schedule below shows the date of publication and the latest time by which notices should be 
received for publication in the respective weekly Gazette. All notices received out of times specified below 
will not be published. Such notices will be returned to the sender by post for necessary amendment and return 
if publication is desired in a subsequent issue of the Gazette. It will be in the interest of all concerned if those 
desirous of ensuring the timely publication of notices in the Gazette  make it a point to see that sufficient time 
is allowed for postal  transmission of  notices to the Government Press.

The Government Printer accept payments of subscription for the Government Gazette.                

Note.—Payments for inserting Notices in the Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka 
will be received by the Government Printer. 

The Schedule

  	   Month	 Date of Publication	 Last Date and Time of
		  	 Acceptance of Notices for
		                   	 Publication in the Gazette

2021

	 March	 05.03.2021	F riday	 —	 19.02.2021	F riday	 12 noon
		  12.03.2021	F riday	 ––	 25.02.2021	T hursday	 12 noon
		  19.03.2021	F riday	 ––	 05.03.2021	F riday	 12 noon
		  26.03.2021	F riday	 ––	 12.03.2021	F riday	 12 noon

	 april	 01.04.2021	T hursday	 —	 19.03.2020	F riday	 12 noon
		  09.04.2021	F riday	 ––	 26.03.2020	F riday	 12 noon
		  16.04.2021	F riday	 ––	 01.04.2021	T hursday	 12 noon
		  23.04.2021	F riday	 ––	 09.04.2021	F riday	 12 noon
		  30.04.2021	F riday	 ––	 16.04.2021	F riday	 12 noon

	 may	 07.05.2021	F riday	 —	 23.04.2021	F riday	 12 noon
		  13.05.2021	T hursday	 ––	 30.04.2021	F riday	 12 noon
		  21.05.2021	F riday	 ––	 07.05.2021	F riday	 12 noon
		  28.05.2021	F riday	 ––	 13.05.2021	T hursday	 12 noon

	 Gangani  Liyanage,
	 Government Printer. 

Department of Government Printing,
Colombo 08, 	
01st January, 2021.

Printed  at  the  Department  of  Government  Printing,  Sri  Lanka.




